





DEK JE NEJVETSI DODAVATEL

MATERIALU PRO STAVEBNICTVI V CR

DEK IS THE LARGEST SUPPLIER OF BUILDING MATERIALS
IN THE CZECH REPUBLIC

DEK JE NEJVETSI DODAVATEL

PROJEKTU TYPOVYCH RODINNYCH DOMU V CR

DEK IS THE LARGEST SUPPLIER OF STANDARDIZED
PROJECTS OF FAMILY HOUSES IN THE CZECH REPUBLIC

DEK JE NEJVETSI DODAVATEL PROJEKTU

OBALOVYCH PLASTU A STAVEBNI FYZIKY V CR

DEK IS THE LARGEST SUPPLIER OF BUILDING SKIN PROJECTS
AND BUILDING PHYSICS IN THE CZECH REPUBLIC

DEK JE PREDNIM VYROBCEM FASADNICH A STRESNICH
SYSTEMU Z PLECHU V CR

DEK IS ONE OF THE MAIN PRODUCERS OF FACADE
AND ROOF METAL SYSTEMS IN THE CZECH REPUBLIC

NA TRHU OD ROKU 1993
IN THE MARKET SINCE 1993



Vit Kutnar



Slovo predsedy
predstavenstva

Vazeni pratelé,

v roce 2009 se ve stavebnictvi CR a SR projevila
svétova hospodarskeé krize. Obrat nasi skupiny po-
klesl o necelych 10%, a tento pokles se projevil také
v dosazeném zisku. Nasim cilem pro rok 2009 bylo
udrZen( stability nasi spole¢nosti, zlepSeni produkti-
vity a optimalizace nasSich zasob, pohledavek a au-
todopravy. Pokracovali jsme ve strategii snizovani
ndkladl a zméné struktury zakazek a zakaznikl
smérem k mensim objektdm. Byli jsme Uspésni také
pfi snizovani podilu cizich zdroj na nasem financo-
vani a zlepSovani finanénf likvidity.

Na vysledcich celé skupiny v roce 2009 se nega-
tivné projevila obtiZzna hospodarska situace na Slo-
vensku, kterd byla provazena vyraznym poklesem
cen stavebnich materidld. Na Slovensku se ndam ne-
podafilo dosahnout planovanych vysledkd, a proto
jsme na konci roku provedli vyznamné zmeény ve
vedeni a obchodni politice DEKTRADE SR a situaci
nynf povaZujeme za stabilizovanou.

V roce 2010 se budeme soustredit na dosazeni pri-
méfené ziskovosti ve vSech spolecnostech skupiny,
zejména v DEKTRADE SR a spole¢nosti DEKME-
TAL, které dosahly v roce 2009 ztraty.

L etter from
the Chairman

Dear friends,

The construction market in the Czech and Slovak
Republics was influenced by the global economic
crisis. The turnover of the Group went down by al-
most 10%, with the same drop in achieved profit.
Our targets for the year 2009 were to maintain com-
pany stability, to improve productivity and to opti-
mise stock levels, receivables and transport costs.
We continued our costs reduction strategy as well
as changing the portfolio of our customers and con-
tracts to also include smaller customers. We further
succeeded in decreasing our external sources on
our finance and improving our liquidity.

In 2009 the results of the Group were negatively in-
fluenced by the difficult economic situation in the
Slovak Republic as well as by a strong decrease
in the price of construction materials. As we did
not achieved planned results in the Slovak market,
important changes were made to the top manage-
ment and business policy of DEKTRADE SR. This
situation is considered to be stable.

In 2010, our main target is to achieved a reasonable
profit in all companies within the Group, especially
in DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. and DEKMETAL s.r.0., both
of which suffered losses in 2009.



V roce 2010 se naddle budeme snazit udrZet na co
nejniZsi Urovni naklady, které primo nesouvisi s nasim
hlavnim prfedmétem cinnosti, ale zarover se budeme
soustfedit a investovat do motivace prodejnich tymd
nasich firem s cilem co nejvice vytéZit jejich kapacity
a zwysit efektivitu prostiednictvim rlstu naseho po-
dilu na trhu. Chceme se vice vénovat aktivnimu ob-
chodovani a zlepSovani péce o nase zakazniky, nez
tomu bylo v pfedchozich dvou letech, kdy jsme se
soustredili pfedevsim na Usporna opatrent.

Kromé tradi¢nich projektd a postupd, které jsme jiz
vyuZivali v minulych letech, chceme vyuzit potencial
statnich program( pro revitalizaci panelovych dom
a Zelena usporam, ve kterych mame diky synergiim
ve skupineé konkurenéni vyhodu oproti nasim kon-
kurentlm. V celé skupiné bude dale nasi dal$i prio-
ritou udrzeni optimalnf struktury zasob.

|'v obtizném roce 2009 meli rozhoduijici podil na na-
Sem Uspéchu nasi zaméstnanci. Ti si zaslouzi vel-
ké podékovani za jejich divéru, pracovni nasazeni
a podporu strategie snizovani nakladd a zvySovani
efektivity.

Diky nim hledime do budoucnosti optimisticky a vé-

skupindm v Ceské a Slovenské republice.

Ing. Vit KUTNAR
Predseda predstavenstva

Our main task for the year 2010 is to ensure that all
costs not directly connected with our main activity
stay on the lowest possible level. We will also focus
on and invest in the motivation of all the sales teams
of our companies, with the aim of ensuring their per-
formance at full capacity and increasing their effec-
tiveness through the increase in our market share.
We will concentrate on active trading and improving
our customer services, whereas our focus in the pre-
vious two years fell more on cost saving measures.

Besides the conventional projects and procedures of
previous years, we would also like to take advantage
of the potential carried by government programmes
aimed at the revitalisation of blocks of flats, as well
as of the programme “Zelena Usporam”, in which
we have an advantage over our competitors thanks
to the synergies achieved within the Group. Main-
taining optimal stock levels will be the main priority
of the whole Group from now on.

In the difficult year of 2009, a crucial part in our success
was played by our employees. They merit our deep
thanks and sincere gratitude for their confidence, hard
work and support of the strategy of cost saving and
the consequent increase in effectiveness.

Thanks to them we can now look at our future with
optimism and we believe that our Group will be
amongst the most successful groups in the Czech
and Slovak Republics.

Pkl g

Ing. Vit KUTNAR
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Profil spoleCnosti

DEK je skupina spole¢nosti zabyvajicich se dodav-
kami materidld a sluZeb ve stavebnictvi.

Skupina DEK provozuje 57 prodejnich skladd sta-
vebniho materidlu na tizemi Ceské a Slovenské re-
publiky, 3 vyrobni stfediska, 3 spole¢nosti zamérené
na poskytovani sluzeb ve stavebnictvi a zaméstna-
v vice nez 1100 zaméstnancd.

Spole¢nost DEKTRADE byla zaloZena v Praze roku
1993. V prvnich letech po zaloZeni se ve spolupraci
s expertni a znaleckou kanceldfi KUTNAR - izolace
staveb soustfedila na distribuci a poradenstvi v ob-
lasti stavebnich izolaci. Sortiment a zabér &innostf
se béhem let rozSifoval a z DEKTRADE a.s. se po-
stupné stal jeden z nejvyznamngjsich distributord
stavebnich materidld a respektovany specialista
v oboru stfech, fasad a izolaci v Ceské a Slovenské
republice.

V roce 2007 byly z plvodni spolecnosti DEKTRA-
DE a.s. vy¢lenény neobchodni aktivity do nékolika
samostatnych firem, které zastfeSuje materska spo-
le¢nost DEK a.s.
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DEK Group profile

DEK is a group of companies supplying materials
and services to the building industry.

The DEK Group operates 57 branches — sale points
of construction materials — in the territory of the Czech
and Slovak Republics, 3 production centres, 3 com-
panies providing services in the construction busi-
ness and it employs more than 1 100 employees.

The company DEKTRADE was established in Prague
in 1993 and provided sales and consultancy in the
field of building insulation by cooperating with the
expert agency “KUTNAR - izolace staveb”, for the
first few years. Its assortment of goods and range of
activities have increased over time and DEKTRADE
has become one of the most important distributors
of construction materials and a respected specialist
in the area of roofs, facades and insulation in the
Czech and Slovak Republics.

In 2007, non-trading activities were removed from
DEKTRADE a.s. and handed over to new compa-
nies that became subsidiaries of the parent com-
pany DEK a.s.



Nejvyznamnejsi oblasti aktivit skupiny DEK je
OBCHOD, ktery tvofi 95% nasich trzeb. Nase ob-
chodni aktivity v CR jsou reprezentovany spole-
nostmi DEKTRADE a.s., nejvetsim dodavatelem
stavebnich materidlfi v CR, internetovym obchodem
Moje-stavebniny.cz s.r.o. a spole¢nosti DEKTRADE
SR s.r.o., kterd patfi mezi nejvyznamné&jsi obchodnf
spole¢nosti se stavebnim materidlem na Slovensku.

Druhou nejvyznamnéjsi oblasti nasSich aktivit jsou
SLUZBY, a to predevsim poskytovani specializo-
vanych projekénich a poradenskych sluzeb ve sta-
vebnictvi. V této oblasti zaméstndva celd skupina
DEK vice jak 130 zaméstnancl ve v8ech firméch.
Ve spole¢nostech DEKTRADE i DEKTRADE SR pd-
sobf pod znackou ATELIER DEK technici poskytujici
zdkaznikdm technickou podporu pfi prodeji materi-
4l a projektantdm pfi navrhovani materiald do pro-
jektd. Spole¢nost DEKPROJEKT s.r.o., je nejvétsim
dodavatelem projekénich, poradenskych a expert-
nich sluZeb v oblasti stavebnich izolaci a stavebnf
fyziky v CR a nejvétsi zpracovatel technické ¢asti
dokumentace pro ziskani dotace v programu Zele-
nd Uspordm. DEKPROJEKT s.r.o. je aktivni jak v CR
tak prostfednictvim své organizaéni sloZky také na
Slovensku. Spole¢nost G-SERVIS s.r.o. je nejvetsim
dodavatelem typovych projektd pro rodinné domy
v Ceské republice a na trhu péisob jiz od roku 1995.
K projektdm spole¢nost dodava i dalsi doplrikove
sluzby jako napt. technicky dozor, BOZPR prikaz
energetické naro¢nosti budov apod. Soucasti sku-
piny je také spole¢nost POLYDEK a.s. specializujici
se na pronajem nemovitosti.

The main group of activities of the DEK Group is
COMMERCE, which constitutes 95% of our revenues.
Our trading activities are represented by the company
DEKTRADE a.s., the largest supplier of building ma-
terials in the Czech Republic, the internet shop Moje-
stavebniny.cz s.r.o., as well as by the company DEK-
TRADE SR s.r.o., one of the most important building
materials trading companies in the Slovak Republic.

The second major group of activities is SERVICES,
which mainly involves the provision of documentation
for building projects, and consultancy services in the
construction industry. These activities employ more
than 130 employees in all companies within the Group.
In the companies DEKTRADE and DEKTRADE SR,
technicians operating under the name ATELIER DEK
provide technical support to customers when selling
materials and to designers when proposing materi-
als for their projects. The company DEKPROJEKT
s.r.o. is the largest provider of consultancy, projection
and expert services in the area of building insulation
and construction physics in the Czech Republic, as
well as the biggest processor of the technical part
of the documentation relating to the state grant pro-
gramme “Zelend usporam”. DEKPROJEKT is active
in the Czech Republic and through its branch also in
the Slovak Republic. The company G-SERVIS s.r.o. is
the largest supplier of standardised projects for family
houses in the Czech Republic and has been operating
in the Czech market since 1995. Projects are further
supported by services such as technical surveillance,
health and safety protection at work, electricity certifi-
cates for buildings, etc. The Group also includes the
company POLYDEK a.s., specialised in the leasing of
buildings.
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Turnover
(CZK bilion)



Tretf oblasti aktivit skupiny DEK je VYROBA. Nej-
vetsi vyrobni firmou skupiny je DEKMETAL s.ro.,
vyrobce stfesnich krytin, fasad a dalSich vyrobkd
z plechu. V oblasti stfeSnich krytin a skladanych
fasad patfi mezi nejvétsi dodavatele na trhu. Spo-
leGnost méa Spickové vybaveni, diky némuz dosa-
huje vysoké produktivity prdce. DEKWOOD s.r.o. se
soustfedi na zakéazkovou vyrobu krovd na automa-
tickém obrabécim centru Hundegger a obchod se
stavebnim fezivem.

Cilem skupiny DEK je dlouhodobé spokojeny za-
kaznik, a to at jiz s funkénim stavebnim materidlem,
konstrukci nebo poradenskou sluzbou. Ve vsech
oborech své ¢innosti se DEK snaZi jit cestou Uzké
specializace a vysoké odbornosti, protoze véri, ze
pouze tyto aspekty mohou pfinést Uspéch a pinou
spokojenost zékaznika v dlouhodobém horizontu.

The third group of activities of the DEK Group is
PRODUCTION. The largest production company in
the Group is DEKMETAL, a producer of roof covers,
facades and a variety of other metal products. The
company is one of the major suppliers of roof covers
and folding facades operating in the market. The com-
pany owns high-end facilities, which enables them to
achieve a very high level of productivity. The company
DEKWOOD sr.o. focuses on trade in construction
wood and on the job order production of trusses using
the automatic machining centre Hundegger.

The main target of the DEK Group is a satisfied cus-
tomer in the long term, with respect to the proper
functioning of construction material, construction
itself or consultancy service. DEK aims to incorpo-
rate specialisation and the highest level of expertise
in the whole range of its activities, as we believe that
only these aspects can bring success and complete
customer satisfaction in the long-run.
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Vyznamne udalosti
roku 2009

Skupina DEK se v roce 2009 umistila na 84. misté
v Zebficku 100 nejvyznamnéjsich firem CR za rok 2008
CZECH TOP 100 s celkovymi trzbami ve vysi 6,9 mid.
K& a na 14. miste v kategorii obchodnich firem.

VSechny firmy skupiny DEK zacaly od dubna 2009 od
svych vyznamnych dodavatel( pfijimat dariové dokla-
dy elektronicky ve formatu EDI a diky tomu doslo k vy-
raznému urychleni zpracovani pfijatych dokladd.

V prvnich meésicich roku 2009 usporadala firma
DEKTRADE na v8ech svych pobockach turné semi-
nard pro realizaéni firmy se zaméfenim na izola¢ni
materidly a naradi. Stejné jako v minulosti se i tento-
krat semindre setkaly s velkym ohlasem.

Na mezinarodnim stavebnim veletrhu IBF v Brné se
DEK v dubnu 2009 prezentoval prostfednictvim vzo-
rového domu spole¢nosti G SERVIS CZ.

| v roce 2009 podarilo navazat na Uspesnou spolu-
préci se spole¢nosti RWE kampari ,Setfim energii.
Pod ndzvem ,Hledani Uspor neni Zadna detektiv-
ka" pomaha RWE svym zakaznikiim ve spolupréci
s DEK fesit Uspory energie.

VSechny firmy skupiny se aktivné zapojily do do-
taéniho programu Zelena Usporam Stétniho fondu
Zivotniho prostfedi s vlastnim programem ,Dotace
bez rizika“.

Milestones in the
year 2009

In 2009 the DEK Group was ranked the 84th most
important company of the year 2008 in the Czech
Republic’'s “CZECH TOP 100", with total revenues
of CZK 6,9 bill. The Group also finished 14th in the
trading companies’ category.

Since April 2009, all the companies in the Group sent and
received documents in EDI (Electronic Data Interchange)
format to and from the major suppliers, thus dramatically
accelerating the processing of documentation.

Atour of seminars for construction companies about
insulation materials and construction tools was held
by the company DEKTRADE at all branches in the
first few months of 2009. These seminars are just as
acclaimed now as they were in the past.

DEK was represented at the International Building
Fair in Brno in April 2009 through a model house
prepared by the company G-SERVIS CZ s.r.o0.

Our successful cooperation with the company RWE
in the “Settim energii” campaign continued in 2009.
Under the name “Hledani Uspor neni zadna detek-
tivka”, the company RWE, in cooperation with DEK,
helped its customers with energy saving solutions.

All the companies in the Group are actively involved
in the “Zelend usporam” grant programme of the
State Environmental Fund with their own programme
called “Dotace bez rizika”.
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Organy spolecnosti
a jejl management

Predstavenstvo spolecnosti

Ing. Vit Kutnar

pfedseda pfedstavenstva,

generalni feditel DEK a.s.

generalni feditel DEKTRADE a.s.

Narozen v roce 1969. Absolvoval Stavebni fakultu
CVUT v Praze. V letech 1989 - 93 se pfi odbornych
stazich v Némecku a USA zameéfil na problematiku
vlastnosti stavebnich izolacnich materiald a na spe-
cifika jejich aplikace v praxi. Je autorem nebo spolu-
autorem fady publikaci a odbornych ¢lankad.
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Company boards
and management

Board of Directors

Ing. Vit Kutnar

Chairman of the Board of Directors

General Director of DEK a.s.

General Director of DEKTRADE a.s.

Born in 1969, he graduated from the Faculty of
Building and Construction at the Technical Univer-
sity (CVUT) in Prague. While on a professional in-
ternship programme in Germany and the USA from
1989 to 1993, he focused his attention on the quality
of insulation materials and its specifics when used
in practice. He is the author and co-author of many
publications and papers.



Vit Kutnar




Zdenék Kutnar Petra Kutnarova



Doc. Ing. Zdenék Kutnar, CSc.

¢len predstavenstva

Narozen v roce 1942. Absolvoval CVUT Praha, fa-
kultu Architektury a pozemniho stavitelstvi. Autorizo-
vany inZenyr pozemnich staveb, konzultacni inZzenyr
a soudni znalec. Vyuéuije stavitelstvi na CVUT v Pra-
ze. Je autorem fady publikaci a odbornych ¢lanka.
Viytvoril ucelené teorie konstrukeni tvorby klicovych
partii budov, zejména stfech a hydroizolace staveb,
obsazené v Ceskych technickych norméch. V do-
zordi radé pasobil od roku 2003. V roce 2009 se stal
¢lenem predstavenstva.

Ing. Petra Kutnarova, MBA

¢len predstavenstva,

finanéni feditel DEK a.s.

Narozena v roce 1973. Absolvovala Fakultu mezi-
nérodnich vztaht VSE v Praze a MBA na Univer-
sity of Pittsburgh. Ve skupiné DEK a.s. plsobi od
roku 1994.

Doc. Ing. Zdenék Kutnar, CSc.

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Born in 1942, he graduated from the Faculty of Archi-
tecture and Structural Engineering at the Technical
University (CVUT) in Prague. He is a chartered struc-
tural engineer, a consultancy engineer and an author-
ised expert. He teaches engineering at the Technical
University (CVUT) in Prague. He is the author of many
publications and papers. He has created comprehen-
sive theories on the construction of key parts of build-
ings, especially roofs and waterproofing of buildings,
which are included in the Czech Technical Norms. He
has been on the Supervisory Board since 2003.

Ing. Petra Kutnarova, MBA

Member of the Board of Directors

Financial Director of DEK a.s.

Born in 1973, she graduated from the Faculty of
International Relations at the University of Eco-
nomics (VéE) in Prague and successfully comple-
ted her MBA at the University of Pittsburgh. She has
been In the DEK Group since 1994.
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Dozorci rada

Ing. Jan Pravecek

predseda dozor¢i rady

Narozen v roce 1942. Absolvoval VSSE Plzef
a postgradudini studium na VSE Praha. Dlouholety
finan&ni feditel SKODA OSTROV a pozdéji feditel
krajské pobocky Ceskomoravské hypotedni banky
v Karlovych Varech. V dozoréi radé DEK plsobi od
roku 2004.

Ing. Jindfich Horak

¢len dozor¢i rady

Narozen v roce 1970. Absolvent Stavebni fakulty
CVUT v Praze. Ve skupiné DEK a.s. plisobi od roku
1993.

Ondrej Hrdli¢ka

¢len dozor¢i rady

feditel regionu PRAHA v DEKTRADE a.s.

Narozen v roce 1970. Absolvoval Stfedni primyslo-
vou zememefickou Skolu v Praze. Ve skupiné DEK
plsobi od roku 1993.
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Supervisory Board

Ing. Jan Pravecéek

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Bornin 1942, he graduated from VSSE in Pilsen and
completed his postgraduate studies at the Univer-
sity of Economics (VéE) in Prague. He was the Fi-
nancial Director of the company SKODA OSTROV
for a long time and later served as the director of
the regional branch of the bank Ceskomoravska
hypote¢ni Banka in Karlovy Vary. He has been on
the Supervisory Board since 2004.

Ing. Jindfich Horak

Member of the Board of Directors

Bornin 1970, he graduated from the Faculty of Building
and Construction at the Technical University (CVUT) in
Prague. He has been in the DEK Group since 1993.

Ondrej Hrdlicka

Member of the Supervisory Board

Director of the PRAHA region of DEKTRADE a.s.
Born in 1970, he graduated from the Geodetical High
School (Stfedni prlimyslova zeméméficka skola) in
Prague. He has been in the DEK Group since 1993.



Vrcholovy management skupiny

Ing. Michal Blahout (*1970)
feditel regionu Severni Cechy

Ing. Jiff Brachacek (*1976)
feditel DEKMETAL s.r.0.

Ing. Zdenek Broukal (*1971)
obchodni feditel ndkupu DEKTRADE a.s.

Ing. arch. Viktor Cerny (*1978)
marketingovy feditel DEK a.s.

Radimir Hajek (*1956)
feditel vyroby DEKWOOD s r.o.

Oldrich Hilger (*1974)
rfeditel DEKTRADE SR s.r.o.

Ing. Petr Horejsi (*1970)
provozni feditel DEK a.s.

Ondrej Hrdlicka (*1970)
feditel regionu Praha a Stfedni Cechy

Ing. Ctibor Hilka (*1977)
feditel DEKPROJEKT s.r.o.

The Group’s top management

Ing. Michal Blahout (*1970)
Director of the North Bohemia Region

Ing. Jifi Brachacek (*1976)
Director of DEKMETAL s.r.o.

Ing. Zdenék Broukal (*1971)
Commercial Director for purchases of DEKTRADE a.s.

Ing. arch. Viktor Cerny (*1978)
Marketing Director of DEK a.s.

Radimir Hajek (*1956)
Production Director of DEKWOOD s.r.o.

Oldrich Hilser (*1974)
Director of DEKTRADE SR s.r.o.

Ing. Petr Horejsi (*1970)
Director of Operations of DEK a.s.

Ondrej Hrdlicka (*1970)
Director of the Central Bohemia Region

Ing. Ctibor Hdlka (*1977)
Director of DEKPROJEKT s.r.o.
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Ing. Zbynék Jefdbek (*1970)
feditel divize Hydroizolace

Michal Jiiza (*1973)
feditel divize Sikmé sttechy

Ing. Lubo$ Kané (*1962)
technicky feditel DEK a.s.

Ing. Martin Keltner (*1974)
reditel IT DEK a.s.

Petr Korbel (*1971)
vyrobn( feditel DEKMETAL s.r.0.

Dalibor Kozmik (*1973)
obchodni feditel DEKMETAL s.r.0.

Ing. Jiff Kucera (*1973)
reditel divize DEKWOOD
a DEKWOOD s.r.o.

Ing. Vit Kutnar (*1969)

generalni feditel DEK a.s. a DEKTRADE a.s.

Ing. Petra Kutnarova (*1973)
finan¢éni feditel DEK a.s.
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Ing. Zbynék Jefdbek (*1970)
Director of the Division of Water-proofings

Michal Jiza (*1973)
Director of the Division of Sloping Roofs

Ing. Lubo$ Kané (*1962)
Technical Director of DEK a.s.

Ing. Martin Keltner (*1974)
Director of IT DEK a.s.

Petr Korbel (*1971)
Production Director of DEKMETAL s.r.0.

Dalibor Kozmik (*1973)
Commercial Director of DEKMETAL s.r.0.

Ing. Jiff KuCera (*1973)
Director of DEKWOOD division
and director of DEKWOOD s.r.0.

Ing. Vit Kutnar (*1969)
General Director of DEK a.s. and DEKTRADE a.s.

Ing. Petra Kutnarova (*1973)
Financial Director of DEK a.s.



Jiff Manak (*1973)
obchodni feditel G SERVIS CZ, s.r.o.

Jan Mezera (*1978)
feditel regionu JiZzni Morava a Vysoc&ina

Ing. Zdenék Militky (*1979)
feditel divize DEKTON

Tomas Rozsival (*1977)
feditel G SERVIS CZ, s.ro.

David Spidla (*1975)
feditel regionu Viychodni Cechy a Olomoucko

Ing. Radek Vit (*1970)
obchodni feditel prodeje DEKTRADE a.s.

Eva Vikové (*1975)
feditel regionu Zapadni Cechy

Bc. Jakub Vytisk (*1973)
feditel divize Tepelné izolace

Jiff Manak (*1973)
Commercial Director of G SERVIS CZ, s.r.o.

Jan Mezera (*1978)
Director of the South Moravia and Vysocina Region

Ing. Zdenék Militky (*1979)
Director of DEKTON division

Tomas Rozsival (*1977)
Director of G SERVIS CZ, s.r.0.

David Spidla (*1975)
Director of the East Bohemia and Olomouc Region

Ing. Radek Vit (*1970)
Commercial Director for sales of DEKTRADE a.s.

Eva Vikova (*1975)
Director of the West Bohemia Region

Bc. Jakub Vytisk (*1973)
Director of the Division of Heat-insulation
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DEK s products and services
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ORGANIZACNI
STRUKTURA

Organizaéni struktura firem skupiny DEK odra-
zi nase cile a plany. Ve vSech firmach se snazime
o vytvareni pruznych organizacnich struktur, které
poskytuji prostor pro volnost jednani, pro vyuzitf
tvQréich talentl a pro rozpoznévani individudlnich
schopnosti. Individuaini Usili je organizaéni struk-
turou usmérfiovano tak, aby bylo v souladu s cili
skupiny a firmy.

Dbame na to, aby organizaéni struktury odrézely
prostfedi kazdé firmy a také velikost a fazi vyvoje.
Organizadni struktury umoZriuji spolupraci a poma-
haji dosahovat cile firem co nejefektivngji. Nevytva-
fime je staticky, ale pribézné je pfizplsobujeme
vyvoji skupiny a jednotlivych firem.

Pri seskupovani ¢innosti a pfi vytvareni vztahl nad-
fizenosti a podfizenosti bereme v Uvahu i moZnosti
a zvyky nasich manazer(l a zaméstnancd.

DEK a.s., matefskd spole¢nost skupiny, poskytuje
software a sluzby v oblasti poradenstvi v oblasti IT,
zpracovani dat, reklamni ¢innosti, marketingu a vede-
ni Ucetnictvi a dariové evidence pro vSechny spolec-
nosti skupiny. Déle zajistuje komplexni spravu viast-
nich i pronajatych prodejnich skladd a servis dopravni
a manipulaéni techniky. Je fizena generalnim fedite-
lem spole¢nosti a tymem odbornych fediteld.
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ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE

The organisational structure of companies within the
DEK Group reflects our targets and plans. Great ef-
forts are made to create a flexible organisational
structure in all our companies, allowing space for
negotiation, utilization of creativity and recognition of
individual needs and abilities. Individual targets are
harmonized with the targets of the Company and the
Group throughout the organisational structure.

We make effort to ensure that organisational structures
reflect the specific environment of each company, its
size and phase of development. Organisational struc-
tures enable cooperation and help to achieve the Com-
pany’s targets with maximum efficiency and effective-
ness. They are not set up statically, but are adapted to
fit the development of the Group as a whole, as well as
the development of each individual company.

When aggregating activities and setting relations of
superiority and subordination, we also take into ac-
count the abilities, habits and practice of our man-
agers and employees.

DEK a.s., the parent company, provides software and
IT consultancy, data processing, marketing, account-
ancy and taxes consultancy services to its subsidiar-
ies. Furthermore it provides complex administration
and management of own and leased warehouses and
servis of transport and manipulation means. The man-
agement of the company includes the general director
and the team of technical directors.



DEKTRADE a.s. — obchodni firma se stavebni-
mi materidly v CR je v oblasti prodeje rozdélena
do sedmi regiond, které fidi Obchodni feditel pro
prodej a s tymem 7 regiondlnich fediteld. Za fize-
ni prodejnich strategii, nakup zbozi a marketingu
je v DEKTRADE odpovedny Obchodni feditel pro
nakup a 6 fediteld divizi. Jednotlivé divize se spe-
cializuji na hydroizolaéni materidly, tepelné-izolaénf
materidly, materialy pro Sikmé stfechy, materidly pro
hrubou stavbu, materidly pro fasady, stavebni vy-
plné a suchou vystavbu a materidly na bazi dreva,
stavebn( a konstrukéni fezivo.

DEKTRADE SR s.ro. — obchodni firma se staveb-
nimi materidly v SR je fizena feditelem spoleCnosti
s tymem product manazer( a fediteld pobocek.

DEKPROJEKT s.r.o. — projekéni a konzultaéni spo-
le¢nost je fizena feditelem spolecnosti a organizac-
né rozdélen do tfech regionalnich oblasti, Cechy,
Morava a Slovensko a z hlediska specializace na
oddéleni projekce a stavebni fyziky.

G-SERVIS s.r.o0. — dodavatel projektd typizovanych
rodinnych domd je fizen feditelem spole¢nosti a ob-
chodnim feditelem.

DEKMETAL s.r.o. — vyrobce stfesnich krytin a fasad-
nich systémd z plechu je fizen feditelem spolecnosti
za podpory obchodniho a vyrobniho feditele.

DEKWOQOOD s.r.o. — vyrobce stfesnich krovd a do-
davatel stavebniho feziva je fizen feditelem spole¢-
nosti.

The company DEKTRADE a.s. — the trading com-
pany with construction materials in the Czech Re-
public, is divided into seven reagions, managed by
the Commercial Director for sales with the team of
7 regional directors. The Commercial Director for
purchase and 6 directors of divisions are responsi-
ble for management of sale strategies, purchase of
goods and marketing. The particular divisions are
specialised for water-proofing insulation, insulation
materials, materials for roofs, building structures
and facades, construction fillings, dry construction
and wood-based materials, construction woods.

DEKTRADE SR s.r.o., the trading company in the
Slovak Republic, managed by the Director of the
company with the team of product managers and
branch directors.

DEKPROJEKT sr.o., the projection and consultancy
company is managed by the Director of the company
and spread over three regions — Bohemia, Moravia
and Slovakia — and, in line with its field of specialisa-
tion, the company comprises the projection depart-
ment and the department of construction physics.

G-SERVIS s.ro., the supplier of the standardised
projects for family houses is managed by the Direc-
tor of the company and the Commercial Director

DEKMETAL s.r.o., the producer of roofs and metal
facade systems is managed by the Director of the
company with the support of Commercial and Pro-
duction Director.

DEKWOOD s r.0., the producer of trusses and sup-

plier of the construction wood is managed by the
Director of the company.
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DEKTRADE
a.s. |
CESKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKTRADE
a.s., org.zl.
SLOVENSKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKTRADE SR
S.r.0. .
SLOVENSKA
REPUBLIKA

MOJE
STAVEBNINY CZ
S.ro.

CESKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKPROJEKT
S.ro.

CESKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKPROJEKT
s.r.o., org.zl.
SLOVENSKA
REPUBLIKA

G SERVIS CZ
S.ro.
CESKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKMETAL
s.ro.
CESKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKMETAL
s.r.o., org.zl.
SLOVENSKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKWOOD
S.ro.
CESKA
REPUBLIKA

POLYDEK

a.s.
CESKA
REPUBLIKA

ENERGO
HELVIKOVICE
a.s. |

CESKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKSTONE
s.ro.
CESKA
REPUBLIKA

DEKSTONE
org.zl. .
SLOVENSKA
REPUBLIKA
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Poslani spoleCnosti
a strategie

Poslani spole¢nosti

Jsme dodavatel materidl( a sluZeb ve stavebnictvi.
Nasim cilem je dlouhodobé spokojeny zékaznik
s funkénim stavebnim materidlem, konstrukci nebo
sluZbou, pfi sou¢asném uspokojeni potfeb zameést-
nancl a akcionard firmy.

Strategie

Vérime, ze stavebni materidly nelze dlouhodobé
Uspeésné obchodovat bez vyborné znalosti kon-
strukénich feSenf a jejich spravné aplikace. Vefime,
Ze Uspéch prindsi Uzka specializace, jak technicka,
tak obchodni na jednotlivé produkty a sluzby v nasi
nabidce. V kazdém oboru, do kterého vstoupime,
chceme patfit mezi firmy s vedoucim postavenim
na trhu. Jsme spolec¢nost, kterd vyrabi pouze to, co
nelze v potfebné kvalité, mnozstvi nebo cené na-
koupit.

Flexibilita

Sledujeme zakazniky, konkurenty i vyvoj na trhu
a jsme pfipraveni se neustéle vyvijet a ménit tak,
abychom pfinaseli pfidanou hodnotu nasim zakaz-
nikdm, dodavatellm a celé spolecnosti.
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Company mission
and strategy

Company mission

We are a supplier of materials and services in the
building industry. Our aim is to satisfy, in the long run,
the needs of our customers with respect to the proper
functioning of construction material, construction and
service. We want meet the needs of our employees
and our shareholders at the same time.

Strategy

We believe that trade with construction materials
can only be successfully conducted with a perfect
knowledge of structural design and the correct ap-
plication thereof. We believe that success can only
be achieved through specialisation, both technical
and commercial, in the particular products and ser-
vices we have on offer. We want to be one of the
leading companies in each of the market sectors
we enter. We are a company that only produces
products that otherwise could not be bought at the
required quality, quantity or price in the market.

Flexibility

We observe our customers, competitors and trends
in the market and we are ready to change and deve-
lop our business so as to bring added value to our
customers and society.



Poctivost

Ke kazdému uvnitf i vné nasi spole€nosti se chce-
me chovat spravedlivé a otevfené a vZdy se bude-
me snazit rozvijet a upevnovat renome, Ze se za-
méstnanci, zdkazniky, dodavateli a statni spravou
jedndme cestné.

Komunikace

Mezi sebou hovorime oteviené. S informacemi za-
chazime svobodné a odpoveédné.

Vedenf

VlyZzadujeme vlastni zodpovédnost nasich pracov-
nikd. Ve fidime pomoci oteviené komunikace, do-
hodnutych cild a vyhodnocujeme nade Uspéchy.

Zameéstnanci

Chceme motivované, angaZované a spravedlivé
odmerniované spolupracovniky, kteff, stejné jako
celd spole¢nost, touzi po Uspéchu.

Tvorivost

Chceme wytvorit prostfedi, ve kterém mohou byt
rozvijeny myslenky a pokrok. Podporujeme a vyZa-
dujeme kreativitu nasich pracovnikd.

Honesty

We behave sincerely and openly to each person
inside and outside our company and we aim to de-
velop and strengthen our reputation of honest be-
haviour towards employees, customers, suppliers
and the state.

Communication

We communicate openly and frankly to each other. We
deal with information responsibly and without restraint.
Management

We require self-discipline from our employees. We
manage all matters by means of open communica-
tion and agreed targets and we perform evaluation
of our achievements.

Employees

We require motivated, committed and justly remu-
nerated employees who, together with the Compa-
ny as a whole, want to be successful.

Creativity

We aim to create an environment in which ideas can

be developed and progress be made. We support
and require creativity from our employees.
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Zisk

Uznavame ziskovost jako hnacf silu nasi spole¢-
nosti.

Kvalita

Usilujeme o prikladnou kvalitu naSich sluZeb a vy-
robkd. Dodrzujeme zakony a systém kontroly jakosti
ISO 9001.

Informacni systém

Vyvijime vlastni informaéni systém. Diky tomu jsme
schopni rychle reagovat na pozadavky nasich za-
kaznik( i dodavatell. V&ichni nasi pracovnici mo-
hou pfijit se zlepSenim funkcionality informacniho
systému tak, aby lépe vyhovoval jejich ¢innosti.

Systém smernic, pravidel a vnitini
kontroly

Neustdle pracujeme na zlepSovani systému nasich
smeémic, pravidel a vnitfniho kontrolniho systému.
Smérnice a pravidla definuji pozadované standardy
¢innosti zaméstnanct DEK. Pomoci vnitiniho kont-
rolntho systému identifikujeme, hodnotime a fidime
rizika, jimz je DEK pfi svém podnikani vystaven. Sys-
tém se snazime stéle pfehodnocovat, aby reflektoval
zmeny ve spole¢nosti a ménici se okolni podminky
a nové se objevujic rizikové faktory. Kli¢ovymi prvky
vnitfniho kontrolniho systému jsou predevsim roz-
poctové a planovaci procedury, které nam zajistujf
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Profit

We acknowledge profitability as the driving force of
our company.

Quality

We are committed to delivering products and servi-
ces of exemplary quality. We observe the law and we
adhere to the ISO 9001 system of quality control.

IT systém

We have developed an in-house information system
and thus we are able to react on the demands of our
customers and suppliers immediately. All employe-
es can contribute with their ideas to the improve-
ment of the functionality of the information system
so that it corresponds to their needs.

System of internal rules and
control

We strive to continually improve our system of inter-
nal rules and control. Internal rules define the stan-
dards required from DEK employees. By making
use of an internal control system, we enable oursel-
ves to identify, evaluate and manage risks that may
result from the business activities of DEK. We re-
evaluate this system so that it can reflect changes
in the Company as well as external conditions and
new risk factors. The key items of the internal control
system are mainly budget and planning procedu-
res, through which a reliable and accurate reflection



spolehlivou a presnou reflexi vykonnosti DEK a usta-
noveni oddéleni vnitiniho auditu, které je zodpovéd-
né za kontinudlni provéfovani dodrzovani pravidel
a vnitfnich kontrolnich mechanisma.

Spolecenska odpovednost

Otevrené se hldsime k nasi spoluodpovédnosti za
stav a chod spole¢nosti.

of the performance of DEK is ensured as well as the
department of internal audit, which is responsible
for the continuous auditing of rules and their adhe-
rence and for internal control mechanisms.

Social responsibility

We are aware of our joint responsibility for the status
and smooth functioning of society.

37



Sortiment 1993-2009

100%

Hydroizolace

Water-proofing

37%

45?/9 Hydroizolace
Stresni Water-proofing
krytiny
[alelelilgle}
Materials




7%
Konstruké
drevo
Wood-based
EEIEL

15%
Séadrokarton

a sucha vystavba
Dry Construction,
Plasterboard

i sortiment
aterials

27%
Stresni krytiny
Roofing Materials

15%
Hydroizolace
Water-proofing




Spolecenska
odpovednost

Spole¢nost DEK si jasné uvedomuje svou roli ne-
jen na stavebnim trhu, ale také v celé spole¢nosti
a spolecenska odpovédnost je proto pevnou sou-
¢asti celého Sirokého spektra jejich Cinnosti.

Ekonomicka oblast

Spolecenska odpovédnost v ekonomické oblasti
je ve firmé uplatiovana predevsim transparent-
nosti jeji ¢innosti a vysokou urovni komunikace.
Ekonomicka ¢innost je proveéfovana nezavislym
finanénim auditem, jehoz vysledky jsou verejné
prezentovany ve Sbirce listin. Rovnéz oblast per-
sondlni a mzdové agendy je pravidelné kontrolo-
vana prislusnymi statnimi Urady. Mezi samozfej-
mé zasady spoleCenské odpovednosti firmy patff
odmitani korupce a poctivé vztahy k zakaznikim,
dodavatel&m i vyrobctim.

Vztah s dodavateli
a zédkazniky

Skupina DEK si je védoma, Ze na kvalité vztahu
s dodavateli a zékazniky je zaloZen Uspéch a dalsf
rozvoj. DEK spolupracuje se svymi dodavateli dlou-
hodobé a vztahy s nimi jsou zaloZeny na vzajemné
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Social
responsibility

DEK is aware of its role, not only in the construc-
tion materials market, but also in society. Social
responsibility is thus one of the foundations on
which the range of the Company’s activities has
been built.

Economic scope

Social responsibility in the economic area is as-
sured by transparency of the Company’s activities
and a high level of communication. Economic ac-
tivities are revised by means of an independent
financial audit. The results of this audit are than
presented in the Commercial register. The areas
of human resources and wages and salaries are
regularly controlled by state authorities. One of the
apparent rules of social responsibility is the refusal
to take part in any form of corruption, thus ens-
uring fair relations between customers, suppliers
and producers.

Relation to suppliers and
customers

The DEK Group is aware of the fact that our success
and further development is based on the quality of
the relationship between us and our customers and
suppliers. DEK cooperates with its customers on



o vy

ddvére a partnerstvi. Vétdina dodavatell, s nimiz
spole¢nost spolupracuje, splfiuje prisné podminky
ISO norem.

Vac¢i zékaznikdim se spole¢nost vzdy snaZi o osobni
a individualni pfistup. Vyraznou devizou je v tomto
sméru schopnost pruZzné reagovat na poZadavky
nasich zakaznikd.

Vztah k verejnosti

Vztah k vefejnosti, a to at jiz odborné, nebo laické
buduje spole¢nost DEK dlouhodobg.

Od svého zalozeni se firma soustfedi na spravnou
aplikaci a pouziti dodavanych stavebnich mate-
riald. Pocinaje rokem 2005 vydava pro architekty
a projektanty odborny ¢asopis DEKTIME, nabize-
jici vhodna technologicka feSeni a mozna pouZiti
stavebnich materidl( véetné konstrukénich fesent
a detaild od névrhu po aplikaci. Odborné respekto-
vany DEKTIME ddle pfinasi informace o novinkdch
v oblasti stavebn( legislativy a pozornost zaméfuje
i na poruchy staveb a stavebnich konstrukci a je-
jich odstrariovani. Nedilnou soucasti této Cinnosti je
i pfiprava a distribuce celé rfady technickych a mon-
tdZnich prirucek, stejné jako dalsich odbornych pu-
blikacf.

Spolecnost se také aktivné podili na praci Technic-
ké normalizacnf komise €. 65, kterd je poradnim or-
ganem Ceského normalizadniho institutu (CNI) pro
oblast stavebnich izolac.

DEK zdroveri pravidelné porada konference a vzde-
lavaci seminéare pro Sirokou odbornou stavebnf ve-
fejnost.

a long-term basis and relations are based on mutu-
al trust and partnership. The majority of cooperating
suppliers meet the strength terms of ISO-norms.
Our company has always had an individual and per-
sonal approach to each of our customers. A major
tool that has enabled us to this is our ability to react
flexibly to the needs of our customers.

Relation to the public

Our relation to the public, both professional and ge-
neral, is built on a long-term basis.

Since its establishment, the Company has always
concentrated on the right application and utilisation of
construction materials. Since 2005, a technical journal
for architects and designers called ,DEKTIME" has
been published. This journal offers suitable technolo-
gical solutions and looks at the possible utilisation of
construction materials. It also focuses on construction
solutions and gives detailed advice that covers the
whole process from the first proposal up to the realisa-
tion of projects. DEKTIME, which is well respected by
professionals, informs readers about developments in
building legislation and also deals with construction
faults and their removal. Within this scope of activities,
DEK is also involved with the preparation and distri-
bution of technical manuals and fixing instructions, as
well as with other professional papers.

The Company takes part in the activities of the Tech-
nical Standardizing Committee (Technicka normali-
zacni komise) No.65, which is the consultancy body
of the Czech Standardising Institute (CNI) in the
area of building insulation.

DEK also holds regular conferences and educati-
onal seminars for professionals in the construction
industry.
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Neméné dllezitym pojitkem mezi firmou a verej-
nostf je i projekt DEKPARTNER STUDENT, ktery stu-
dentlim vysokych $kol nabizi pfistup k technickym
informacim a detaillim a také moznost zajimavé
praxe jiZz v prdbéhu studia a nasledny kariérni rdst
po absolvovani vysoké skoly. Ve spolupréci s Ce-
chem klempif, pokryvadil a tesarti Ceské republi-
ky dlouhodobé podporujeme ucriovské Skolstvi ve
stavebnictvi.

Svou pozornost v8ak skupina DEK vénuje i sféram
mimo svdj obor. V loriském roce spolecnost zastre-
Sila nékolik sportovnich akci. Ve své filantropické
¢innosti se DEK zaméfuje na podporu organizact
pecujicich o zdravotngé a mentalné postizené ob-
Cany, kterym pfispiva stavebnimi materidly na re-
konstrukce objektd. Finanéné podporujeme také
nadaci Terezy Maxoveé, ktera se zameéfuje na pomoc
opusténym a znevyhodnénym détem.

DEK jako zaméstnavatel

Vzhledem k $iroké regiondini plsobnosti skupiny
DEK je nutné vyzdvihnout vliv, ktery mé spole¢nost
na zaméstnanost zejména v problematickych ob-
lastech Moravskoslezského kraje, severnich Cech
nebo Vysodiny. Sit pobocek nabizi fadu prileZitostf
k ziskdni prace, a to i pro méné kvalifikované pra-
covniky.

Jako zaméstnavatel se DEK snaZi pfistupovat ke
svym zaméstnancim oteviené. Soucasti péce o za-
méstnance je cela fada benefitd, z nichZ na prvnim
misté je vzdéldvani. Spolecnost zajistuje pro své za-
méstnance nejen vzdeldvaci programy odborného
charakteru vedouci ke zvySeni kvalifikace, ale i pro-
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A further very important connection between the
Company and the public is the project ,DEKPART-
NER STUDENT", which offers access to technical
information and details for university students, as
well as the possibility of an internship during their
studies, followed by career options after they have
graduated. The Company also supports, in associ-
ation with ,Cech klempiidi, pokryvadl a tesaf(l Ces-
ké Republiky” (the Guild of Tinsmiths, Tillers and
Carpenters of the Czech Republic), continuation
schools specialised in construction.

The DEK Group also focuses on areas outside its
line of business. Last year the Company supported
several important sport events. As part of its philan-
thropic activities, DEK actively supports organisati-
ons providing care for disabled people by contribu-
ting construction materials for the reconstruction of
their houses. We also support the Tereza Maxova
foundation, which provides foster care and helps
handicapped children.

DEK as employer

With regard to our wide range of activities in many
regions, it is necessary to emphasize the great influ-
ence the Company has on employment, especially
in the problematic regions of Moravskoslezsky kraj,
severni Cechy and Vysogina. Our net of branches
offers many job opportunities to even less qualified
people.

The Company's approach to its employees is open.
Our employees enjoy a wide range of benefits,
starting with education. The Company provides its
employees not only with professional educational
programs leading to a higher level of qualification,
but also with programmes for personal develop-



gramy rozvijejici osobnost a manaZerské doved-
nosti. K samozfejmé péci a podpoie zaméstnanc(
dale patfi také pfispévky na penzijni a ddchodové
pojisténi, pfispévky na kulturu, sport, o¢kovani, re-
kreaci, ubytovani nebo pfispeévky na jazykoveé kurzy.
Dulezitym motivaénim prvkem je préatelské prostiedi
ve firmé a vysoka uroven firemni kultury. Nedilnou
soucasti podpory je téZ prodej viastniho zboZi za-
méstnanctim za zvyhodnénych podminek.

DEK a zivotni prostredi

Ochrana zivotniho prostfedi je jednim ze zakladnich
principd, jimiz se fidi celd skupina DEK a ktery je ne-
dilnou soucasti kazdodenni prace vSech zaméstnan-
¢l skupiny. Zékladnim stavebnim kamenem této filo-
zofie je tfidéni a nasledna recyklace odpadu na vSech
pracovistich. Skupina DEK v tomto duchu jednoznac-
né preferuje elektronickou podobu véech dokumentd,
vcetné doslych a vydanych faktur, ¢imz se snazi o mi-
nimalizaci spotfeby kanceldrského papiru. K dalsim
krokdm sméfujicim k eliminaci mozZnych dopadd na
Zivotni prostfedi patfi postupna vyména klasickych
vysokozdviznych vozik( za voziky pohanéné plynem.

Spole¢nost DEKTRADE je od roku 2008 partne-
rem projektu ,Setiim energii“ uréeném zakaznikdm
RWE, ktery byl zameéfen na zlepSeni energeticke na-
ro€nosti bydlent.

ment and management skills. The Company also
contributes to the pension plans of employees, and
makes further contributions towards cultural events,
sports events, vaccinations, holidays, accommoda-
tion and language courses. An important motiva-
tional element is a friendly environment within the
company together with a high level of corporate
culture. Our employees can further benefit from pri-
vileged purchases that are on offer to them.

DEK and the environment

Protection of the environment is one of the main
principles of the whole DEK Group and forms part
of the daily routine of each employee in the Group.
The cornerstone of this philosophy is the sorting and
recycling of all waste material in every workplace in
the Company. In keeping with this, the DEK Group
prefers to store all of its documentation in electronic
form, including invoices issued and received, thus
minimising the consumption of office paper. A fur-
ther step to eliminate any negative impact on the
environment is the replacement of lift trucks by tho-
se powered by gas.

Since 2008, the company DEKTRADE participates
as a partner in the programme ,Setfim energii*,
which focuses on customers of RWE and aims to
reduce the consumption of energy in normal hou-
seholds.
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Poboéky v CR a SR 1993-2009

branch branches

1993 20[0))

3 pobocky / 33 pobocek /
%

1997 2009

10 pobocek / 59 pobocek /



Zprava o Cinnosti
v roce 2009

K 31. 12. 2009 zahrnovala skupina DEK celkem
14 podnikatelskych subjektd, z toho 10 se sidlem
v Ceské republice, 1 na Slovensku a 3 organizaé-
ni slozky na Slovensku. Nové se v roce 2009 stala
soudasti skupiny spole¢nost ENERGO HELVIKO-
VICE a.s., kterd vznikla vy¢lenénim casti podniku
ze spoleénosti DEKWOOD s.r.o. a nyni je dcefinou
spolecnosti spole¢nosti POLYDEK a.s. Tato spole¢-
nost byla zaloZzena za Ucelem podnikani v oblasti
energetiky.

Vlysledky hospodareni skupiny DEK

Cisty zisk skupiny DEK meziroéné poklesl vlivem
hospodarské krize o 24,1 mil. K& (0 14,6%) na
140,1 mil. K&. Zisk pfed zdanénim dosahl C¢astky
184,1 mil. K& pfi poklesu 0 55,8 mil. K& (0 23,3%)
a provozni zisk pfed odpisy (EBITDA) pokles| o 84
mil. K& (0 16%) na 454 mil. K&. Darl z pifjmd se
sniZila oproti lofiskému roku o 31,7 mil. K& (41,9%)
na 43,9 mil. K&.

Aktiva

Konsolidovana aktiva skupiny DEK klesla meziro¢-
né 0 394,9 mil. K& na 8 099,7 mil. KE Hmotna aktiva
se snizila o0 147,7 mil. K& (12,5%) jednak diky dobi-
hajicim leasinglim (snzeni o 83 mil. K&), jednak diky
dspornym opatfenim, kdy se pldnované nakupy
dlouhodobych aktiv eliminovaly pouze na nezbytné

Report on
operations in 2009

The DEK Group includes 14 companies as at 31
December 2009 — ten with registered offices in the
Czech Republic and one in the Slovak Republic, as
well as three branches in the Slovak Republic. The
company ENERGO HELVIKOVICE a.s. has become
a new member of the Group in 2009. This company
was established through a split-off from DEKWOOD
s.r.0. and is now a subsidiary of the company PO-
LYDEK a.s. The main activity of this new company
should lie in the field of energetics.

Business results of the DEK Group

The net profit of the DEK Group was influenced
by the global economic crisis and thus decreased
by CZK 24,1 million (14,6 %) to CZK 140,1 million
compared to the preceding year. Earnings before
tax were CZK 184,1 million, a decrease of CZK 55,8
million (23,3%) and EBITDA decreased by CZK 84
million (16%) to CZK 454 million. Income tax decre-
ased by CZK 31,7 million (41,9%) to CZK 43,9 milli-
on compared to the preceding year.

Assets

Consolidated assets of the DEK Group decreased
by CZK 394,9 million to CZK 8 099,7 million. Tangible
non-current assets decreased by CZK 147,7 million
(12,5%) compared to the preceding year due to finan-
cial leases finished in this year (decrease of CZK 83
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nutnou miru. Obéznd aktiva poklesla o 243,9 mil.
K& (10,3%) na 2 128,5 mil. K. Pohledavky z ob-
chodnich vztah( zlstaly témér na stejné trovni jako
v roce 2008 (mirny narlst o 17,0 mil. K& (1,8%)),
zejména diky dobrému managementu pohledavek.
V roce 2009 nedoslo ke zhorseni vékové struktury
techto pohleddvek. Zésoby poklesly o0 228,8 mil. K&
(21,3%) na 847,4 mil. KE. Stav zésob koresponduje
s vyvojem obratu spole¢nosti, navic se v roce 2009
uskutecnilo nekolik akcii na vyprodej nizkoobratko-
vych zésob a doslo tak ke zlepSeni obratkovosti.

Zavazky

Pokles zdvazk( je dan zejména spldcenim Uvérd
0 529,7 mil. K& (23,7%) na 1 692,7 mil. K& a ddle
poklesem jinych zavazkd o 59,1 mil. K& (22,8%) na
200,1 mil. K&. Na druhou stranu doslo k nardstu za-
vazk( z obchodnich vztah( o 134,6 mil. K& (79,9%)
na 303,2 mil. K& Tento narlst souvisi zejména
s prodlouzenim poskytovanych dob splatnosti u na-
Sich klicovych dodavateld.

DEKTRADE a.s.

DEKTRADE a.s. je nejvétsi spole¢nost skupiny a za-
byva se distribuci stavebnich materidl(. Jeji obrat
oproti roku 2008 klesl 0 9%, coz vzhledem k situaci
ve stavebnictvi v roce 2009 povazujeme za Uspéch.
Nejvétsich trzeb dosdhla divize STRECHY, celkem
1,5 mid. K&. NejvétsSim Uspéchem byl dosaZzeny ob-
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mil.) as well as due to saving measures, where plan-
ned purchases of non-current assets were reduced
to the unavoidable level. Current assets decreased
by CZK 243,9 million (10,3%) to CZK 2 128,5 million.
Trade receivables were on the almost same level com-
pared to the year 2008 (the slight increase of CZK 17,0
million (1,8%)) mainly due to a good management of
receivables. The age structure of these receivables
have not got worse in 2009. The value of inventories
decreased by CZK 228,8 million (21,3%) to CZK 847,4
million. The level of inventories corresponds with the
overall development of the business revenues, in ad-
dition, some project for decrease of slow moving in-
ventories took part in 2009 and thus the stock turnover
improved.

Liabilities

A decrease in liabilities is mainly the result of repay-
ment of bank loans of CZK 529,7 million (23,7%) to the
total of CZK 1 692,7 mil. and due to decrease of othe
liabilities of CZK 59,1 mil. (22,8%) to CZK 200,1 mil.
Conversely, trade payables increased by CZK
134,6 million (79,9%) to CZK 303,2 million. This incre-
ase in connected wih the extention of due dates which
was renegotiated with the key suppliers.

DEKTRADE a:s.

DEKTRADE a.s. is the largest company in the Group
and its main activities are sales and the distribution of
construction materials. Its turnover decreased by 9%
compared to the year 2008. Taken into account situa-
tion on the construction market, the achieved result is
successful. Sales were the highest in the STRECHY



rat divize DEKSTAVIVA ve vysi 944 mil. K&, kde i pres
nepfiznivou situaci na trhu doslo k nérdstu o 9%
oproti roku 2008, dobre si téZ vedla divize DEKWO-
OD s celkovymi trzbami 406 mil. K&, kde byl pokles
region Stfedocesky a Praha, s obratem 1,104 mid.
K& nasledovany regionem Vychodo&eskym véetné
Olomouce s obratem 1,065 mld. K&. Nejvy$si podil
na celkovych trzbach podle typu odbératele majf
stejné jako v roce 2008 vSeobecné stavebni firmy
(42%), nésledovany obchodnimi firmami vcetné
stavebnich (16 %) a pokryvaci (13%).

DEKTRADE SR s.r.o.

DEKTRADE SR s.ro. je distributorem stavebnich
materidld na Slovensku. Obraty v letodnim roce
dosahly celkové hodnoty 29,1 mil. EUR. Nejvétstho
obratu 7,0 mil. EUR doséhla divize SIKME STRE-
CHY, nésledovana divizi HYDROIZOLACE prodava-
jici zejména asfaltové pasy a fdlie s obratem 3,9 mil.
K&. Nejvetsi podil na obratu spole¢nosti maji stejné
jako v predchozim roce vSeobecné stavebni firmy
(45%), zvysil se podil individudlnich stavebnik( (na
21%) a naopak snizZil podil obchodnich firem véetné
stavebnich (na 10%). Vyrazné se zvysil podil zahra-
ni¢nich odbérateld (na 5% z celkovych trzeb).

division, totalling CZK 1,5 billion. The greatest success
story was the turnover of the DEKSTAVIVA division,
amounting to CZK 944 million, which represents, de-
spite of the unfavourable situation on the market, an
increase of 9% compared to 2008. A very good result
was also achieved in the turnover of the DEKWOOD
division with the total of CZK 406 mil. (the minimal de-
crease of 3,4%). The most successful region was the
Strednf éechy and Prague region with a total turnover
of 1,104 billion, followed by the Vychodocesky-olo-
moucky region with CZK 1,065 bill. The main portion
on the total revenues relate — as in the previous peri-
od - to general building companies (42%), followed by
trade companies (16 %) and roofers (13%).

DEKTRADE SR s.r.o.

DEKTRADE SR sr.o. is a distributor of building ma-
terials in the Slovak Republic. Its total turnover was
EUR 29,1 million in 2009. The highest turnover of EUR
7,0 million was achieved in division SIKME STRECHY
(roofs), followied by division HYDROIZOLACE (water-
proofing) which sells mainly bitumen and plastic sheets
with the total turnover of CZK 3,9 mil. The major part
of the turnover relates to general building companies
(45%), which is the same result compared to 2008, the
share of customers (private individuals) increaesed to
21% and trade companies decreased to 10% from the
total turnover. There is a significant increase of foreign
customers (5% from the total turnover.)
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DEK a.s.

DEK a.s., matefska spoleCnost skupiny poskytuje
software a sluzby v oblasti poradenstvi v oblasti IT,
zpracovan( dat, reklamni ¢innosti, marketingu a veden(
Ucetnictvi a dariové evidence pro véechny spole¢nos-
ti skupiny. Déle zajistuje komplexni spravu viastnich
i pronajatych prodejnich skladd a servis veskeré do-
pravni a manipulaéni techniky. V roce 2009 spole¢nost
posilila svoji financni stabilitu pomoci dividend pfija-
tych od dcefinych spole¢nosti ve vysi 165,2 mil. K&.

POLYDEK, a.s.

Spoleénost POLYDEK, a.s. se vénuje poskytovan(
sluZeb pro firmy skupiny DEK a.s., pfedevsim pro-
najmu nemovitosti. Obrat spole¢nosti dosahl v roce
2009 65 mil. K&. | pfes pokles obratu oproti roku
2008 0 37% spolecnost vykazuje i v roce 2009 pro-
vozni hospodarsky vysledek ve vysi 38 mil. KE a cel-
kovy zisk ve vysi 22 mil. K&.

DEKMETAL s.r.o.

Spole¢nost DEKMETAL s.ro. je pfednim Ceskym
vyrobcem plechovych fasadnich systéma a velko-
formdtovych stfesnich krytin. Ke svym vyrobkim
poskytuje komplexni technicky servis. Tato spolec-
nost byla z celé skupiny nejvice zasazena probihaji-
ci hospodarskou krizi (zejména poklesem trhu v ob-
lasti vystavby primyslovych staveb) a skoncila pfi
celkovém obratu 144 mil. K& v roce 2009 se ztratou
4 mil. K&. Spole¢nost se i v dal$ich letech zaméfi na
zvySeni svého podilu na trhu plechovych krytin.
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DEK a.s.

DEK a.s. is the parent company of the Group and
provides software and [T, data processing, marke-
ting, accounting and tax advisory services for all the
companies within the Group. Furthermore it provides
complex administration and management of own and
leased warehouses and servis of transport and mani-
pulation means. The financial stability of the company
was strenghtened by means of dividends received
from subsidiaries totalling CZK 165,2 mil. KC.

POLYDEK, a.s.

The company POLYDEK a.s. provides services for
companies in the DEK Group, primarily as a lessor of
land and buildings. The turnover of the company was
CZK 65 million in 2009. Despite of the decrease in the
turnover of 37% compared to the prior year, the com-
pany achieved in 2009 the profit from the operating
activity of CZK 38 mil. And net profit of CZK 22 mil.

DEKMETAL s.r.o.

The company DEKMETAL s.r.o. is one of the main
Czech producers of metal facade systems and large
format roofings. It provides complex technical servi-
ces with its products. This company was influenced
by the economic crisis worst of all companies in the
DEK Group (especially by the decrease of the market
of industry constructions). This situation results with
the loss of CZK 4 mil. by the turnover of CZK 144 mil.
The target of the company for next years is to increase
its market share in the metal roofs market.



DEKPROJEKT s.r.0.

DEKPROJEKT s.ro. se zabyva tvorbou specializo-
vanych projektd, posudkd, poskytovanim technic-
kych dozor( staveb, diagnostikou staveb a dalsi-
mi specialnimi sluzbami pro investory, projektanty
a izolatérské firmy. | pres probihajici krizi dosahla
spole¢nost vynikajicich vysledkd. Jeji obrat se zvysil
0 18% na 49,4 mil. K&, celkovy hospodarsky vysle-
dek vzrostl 0 883 tis. K& (51,5%).

DEKSTONE s.r.o.

DEKSTONE s.ro. je dodavatel vyrobk( z pfirodni-
ho kamene. V roce 2009 se spole¢nost orientovala
predevsim na obchodni ¢innost a doslo ke sniZe-
ni podilu prodeje vlastnich vyrobkd. Vysledek roku
2009 predstavoval stejné jako v predchozim roce
lehky zisk. Spole¢nost ke konci roku zacala preda-
vat své aktivity do spole¢nosti DEKTRADE a.s. a do
budoucna planuje utlumeni své ¢innosti.

DEKWOOD s.r.o.

V roce 2009 probéhla reorganizace spole€nosti
a DEKWOOD s.r.o. se nadéle nezabyva zpracova-
nim kulatiny a feziva a orientuje se vyhradné na vy-
robky s vy$si pfidanou hodnotou, jako jsou stfesnf
krovy a vibrodesky. Obrat spole¢nosti v roce 2009
dosahl vyse 138 mil. K&, spolecnost skondila hos-
podareni roku 2009 s lehkou ztratou.

DEKPROJEKT s.r.o0.

DEKPROJEKT s.ro. deals with specialised pro-
jects, offers expert advice, technical surveillance of
buildings, diagnostics of buildings and other spe-
cial services for investors, designers and insulati-
on companies. Despite of the economic crisis, the
company achieved extraordinary results. Its turno-
ver increased by 18% to CZK 49,4 million, the net
profit increased by CZK 883K¢ (51,5%).

DEKSTONE s.r.o.

DEKSTONE sr.o. is a supplier of products of na-
tural stone. The company mainly focused on trade
activities in 2009 and the sales of its own produ-
cts decreased. The company achieved slight profit
— the same result compared to the prior year. The
company is about to transfer its activities to the
company DEKTRADE a.s. with a view to reducing
its workload..

DEKWOOD s.r.o.

The restructuring of the company DEKWOQOD s.r.o.
was realised in 2009 and the company does not
process round logs any more, but is entirely orien-
ted towards products with a higher added value,
i.e. roofs and wooden boards. The turnover of the
company achieved the amount of CZK 138 mil., the
company suffered slight loss in 2009.
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G SERVIS CZ s.r.o.

Spoleénost G SERVIS CZ s.ro. se stala ¢lenem
skupiny v roce 2008 a jako nejvétsi dodavatel ty-
povych projektd prispiva svymi sluzbami k rozsitent
nabidky skupiny smérem k zékaznikovi. Tyto projek-
ty jsou pak ddle individuainé upravovany na miru
konkrétnimu zakaznikovi. Obrat spole¢nosti v roce
2009 lehce poklesl 0 3% na 55 mil. K&. Spole¢nost
dosahla zisku 953 tis. K&.

50

G SERVIS CZ s.r.o.

The Group acquired G SERVIS CZ in 2008 and, as
the largest supplier of standardised projects, it con-
tributed greatly to the wide range of product on offer
for customers. These projects are then tailored for
each individual customer. The turnover of the com-
pany in 2009 decreased slightly of 3% to CZK 55
million. The net profit of the company was CZK 953
ths.



Vyhled skupiny na
rok 2010

Vzhledem k pokracujici krizi v oblasti stavebnic-
tvi, predpoklddéame dalsi pokles relevantniho trhu
0 zhruba 10%, a v dlsledku toho snizeni obratu
skupiny o0 4%. Zisk skupiny by mél byt v roce 2010
na stejné urovni jako v roce 2009.

Nasim hlavnim ndstrojem pro podporu &innosti
skupiny je aktivni obchodni politika, jejimz cilem je
zapojit co nejvice pracovnikd do obchodu. Mzdové
naklady, které tvoif vyznamnou ¢ast nékladd skupi-
ny, jsou vézany na dosazeni planovanych cild.

Vyvoj obratu budeme peclivé sledovat a vyhodno-
covat. Pokud bude na zdkladé analyz prvniho polo-
letl roku 2010 zfejmé, Ze nebude rediné dosahnout
planovaného obratu, zvaZzime pfijeti dodate¢nych
dspornych opatrent.

V roce 2010 by se na relevantnim trhu skupiny DEK
méla projevit kulminace Cerpani dotacnich progra-
md zamérenych na Uspory energil a revitalizace.
Vétsina stavebnich materiald dosdhla svého ceno-
vého dna jiz v roce 2009, a proto se v roce 2010
o¢ekava jejich mirny nardst.

Events anticipated
in 2010

Taking the ongoing crisis in the construction market
into account, we anticipate a further down-turn of
10% in the relevant market and a consequent de-
crease of 4% in the Group’s turnover. The net profit
of the Group should remain on the same level in
2010 as it was in the previous year.

Our main means of support of the Group’s activities
is an active trading policy aimed at involving most
employees in our day-to-day business. Wages
and salaries, which make up the largest part of the
Group’s costs, are related to the achievement of
planned results.

Profit trends are carefully monitored and analysed.
If these analyses were to show that the budgeted
turnover was not realistic, the implementation of fur-
ther cost saving measures would be considered.

In 2010 we expect the culmination of the utilisation
of grant programmes relating to energy savings and
house revitalisation to have a positive impact on the
market in which the DEK Group operates. The ma-
jority of the prices of construction materials botto-
med-out in 2009, and therefore a slight increase is
expected in 2010.
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Vyrok auditora
K vyrocni zprave

k 31.12. 2009
spolecnosti DEK a.s.

Za vedeni UCetnictvi, Uplnost, prikaznost a sprav-
nost odpovidd statutéarni organ Ucetni jednotky.
Povinnosti auditora je zpracovat zpravu a vyjadrit
nazor na Ucetni zavérku a vyroéni zpravu v souladu
se zakonem ¢. 93/2009 Sb., o auditorech a Komore
auditori Ceské republiky.

Na zékladé vyhodnoceni pouzitych auditorskych
postupt jsme nezjistili Zadné vyznamné skute¢nos-
ti, které by naznacovaly, Ze UcCetnictvi ové&fované
dcetni jednotky by nebylo ve vSech vyznamnych
ohledech v souladu s platnymi predpisy, Upiné, pri-
kazné a spravné.

Auditor’s opinion on
the Annual Report

for the year ended 31 December 2009
of the company DEK a.s.

The statutory body of the Company is responsible
for complexity, demonstrativeness, correctness and
accuracy of it's accountancy. The duty of the auditor
is to prepare a report and express an opinion on the
financial statements and the annual report in accor-
dance with the Act No. 93/2009 Col. on Auditors and
Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic.

Based on evaluation of our audit procedures we did
not detect any material facts which can lead to the
opinion that the accountancy of the audited compa-
ny was not in all material aspects in accordance with
valid legislation, complex, demonstrative, correct and
accurate.
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Overili jsme soulad informaci, o auditované spo-
leCnosti za uplynulé obdobi, uvedenych ve vyroénf
zprave s ovefovanou Ucetni zaverkou sestavenou
k 31.12. 2009.

Podle naseho ndzoru jsou tyto informace ve vSech
vyznamnych ohledech v souladu s touto Ucetnf za-
vérkou, z niz byly prevzaty.

v Celdkovicich, dne 10. 5. 2010
ATLAS AUDIT s.r.o.

Ing. Tomas Barto$
auditor
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We have audited compliance of information of the
Company included in the annual report with the audi-
ted financial statements prepared as at 31 December
2009.

In our opinion, the information included in the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 Decem-
ber 2009 is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited financial statements of the company as at
31 December 20009.

Celdkovice, on 10 May 2010

ATLAS AUDIT s.r.o.
Ing. Tomas Barto$
auditor



/Zprava nezavisleho
auditora

0 overeni konsolidované
rocni ucetni zaverky DEK a.s.
za rok 2009

1. Pfilemce zpravy

Zprava je ur€ena pro predstavenstvo akciové spolec-
nosti a jejf akcionare dale uvedené Ucetni jednotky:

Obchodni jméno ucetni jednotky

Ndzev spole¢nosti:  DEK a.s.

Sidlo spole¢nosti: Praha 10, Tiskarska 10/257
PSC 108 00

Identifika¢ni ¢islo: 276 36 801

Predmét cinnosti spole¢nosti:

= &innost Ucetnich poradcd, vedeni Uéetnictvi, ve-
deni dariové evidence

= vyroba, obchod a sluzby neuvedené v pfilohach 1
az 3 zivnostenského zakona.

Independent
Auditors’s Report

on Consolidated Financial Statements
DEK a.s. for the year ended
31 December 2009

1. Addressee of the report

The report has been prepared for the Board of
Directors and the shareholders of the company
mentioned below:

Company

Name: DEK a.s.

Registered office: Praha 10, Tiskarska 10/257
Postal Code 108 00

ID No.: 276 36 801

The company'’s principal business:
* accountancy, tax evidence and accountancy con-
sultation

* production, sales and services not specified in Ap-
pendices No. 1 to 3 of the Trades Licences Act
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2. Predmét a ucel ovérovani

Predmétem ovefovani byla konsolidovana ucetnf
zavéerka sestavena ke dni 31. 12. 2009 za obdobi od
1.1.2009 do 31. 12. 2009. Uéetni jednotka sestavila
konsolidovanou ucetni zavérku v souladu s Mezina-
rodnimi standardy Ucetniho vykaznictvi ve znéni pri-
jatém Evropskou unif, platnymi k 31.12.20009.

3. Vymezeni odpovednosti

Oveili jsme konsolidovanou rozvahu, vykaz zisku
a ztraty, pfilohu konsolidované ucetni zaverky spo-
leCnosti DEK a.s. k 31. 12. 2009.

Za sestaveni konsolidované ucetni zavérky je zod-
povédné vedeni spole¢nosti DEK a.s. Pfi sesta-
vovani konsolidované ucetni zavérky musi vedenf
Ucetni jednotky provadet vyznamné Ucetni odhady
a posuzovat situaci a zvolit pfimérené ucetni postu-
py a metody. Tyto kroky vedeni provadi v kontextu
ramce Ucetniho vykaznictvi, ktery si zvolilo.

Provérka spravnosti konsolidované ucetni zaverky
nezbavuje spole¢nost odpovédnosti za spravnost
vykdzanych hospodérskych vysledkd. Spole¢nost
pIné zodpovida za ddsledky, které vyplynou z jinych
reviz a kontrol.

Nasim ukolem je vydat na zékladé provedeného au-
ditu vyrok k této konsolidované ucetni zavérce.
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2. Subject and purpose of the audit

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 De-
cember for the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 De-
cember 2009 have been audited. The Company is
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the IFRS —
International Financial Reporting Standards as ado-
pted by the EU, valid as at 31 December 2009.

3. Responsibilities

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2009, consolidated income
statement for the year then ended and notes to
consolidated financial statements of the company
DEK a.s. as at 31 December 2009.

The management of DEK a.s. is responsible for
preparation of the consolidated financial sta-
tements. This responsibility includes making
significant accounting estimates, assessment of
the situation and selecting and applying appro-
priate accounting policies and methods. All these
steps are performed in the context of accounting
framework, which is obligatory and chosen by the
management of the company.

The audit of financial statements does not relieve
liability of Company’s management for correctness
and accuracy of disclosed financial results. The
Company is fully responsible for the consequences
of other audits and revisions.

Our task is to express an opinion on these consoli-
dated financial statements based on our audit.



4. Rozsah auditu

Auditor ovéfuje informace prokazujici Udaje uvede-
né v konsolidované Ucetni zavérce v souladu se za-
konem ¢. 93/2009 Sb., o auditorech a Komore audi-
tor Ceské republiky a Mezinarodnimi auditorskymi
standardy ve znéni platném k datu vyhotoveni této
zpravy nezavislého auditora.

Naplanovali a provedli jsme audit tak, abychom
ziskali pfimérenou jistotu, Ze konsolidovana ucetni
zavérka neobsahuije vyznamné zkreslent.

Ovéreni ddkaznich informaci prokazujicich ¢astky
a skute€nosti uvedené v konsolidované ucetni za-
vérce bylo provedeno vybérovym zplsobem.

Posoudili jsme pouZzité Ucetni zésady pfi sestavo-
vani konsolidované Ucetni zavérky. Posoudili jsme
také vyznamné odhady a rozhodnuti Ucetni jednot-
ky, které se promitaji do konsolidované ucetni za-
verky a zhodnotili pfimérenost prezentace konsoli-
dované ucetni zavérky.

Nasi povinnosti je postupovat tak, abychom ziskali
vSechny informace, které jsou podle naseho nejlep-
$tho védomi nezbytné pro ovéfeni konsolidované
Ucetni zavérky a poskytuji prfiméfenou zaruku, Ze
konsolidovana Ucetni zaveérka neobsahuje vyznam-
né nespravnosti, at jiz byly zplsobeny omylem,
podvodem nebo jinou pricinou.

Prohlasujeme, Ze provedeny audit konsolidované
Ucetni zavérky spolecnosti DEK a.s. poskytuje pri-
méreny podklad pro vydani vyroku auditora.

4. Audit’'s scope

The Auditor conducted the audit of information in the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the Act No. 93/2009 Col. on Auditors and Chamber
of Auditors of the Czech Republic and in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing as adopted at
the date of this Independent Auditor’'s Report.

We have planned and conducted the audit to obtain
sufficient assurance that the consolidated financial
statements are not materially distorted.

Examination of information relating to amounts and
facts in the consolidated financial statements was
performed on a selection basis.

We also considered accounting principles and me-
thods used for preparation of the consolidated finan-
cial statements as well as significant judgments and
assessments of the entity in the consolidated financial
statements. We assessed the suitability of the consoli-
dated financial statements presentation.

Our responsibility is to perform such procedures so
that we in our best opinion obtain all the information
essential for the auditing of consolidated financial
statements and we obtain sufficient evidence that the
consolidated financial statements are not significant-
ly misstated (whether caused by mistakes, fraud or
other cause).

We declare that the audit performed on the consoli-
dated financial statements of the company DEK a.s.
provides sufficient evidence for the issue of the audit
opinion.
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5. Vyrok auditora k ucetni zaverce

Podle naseho ndzoru informace uvedené v konsoli-
dované Ucetni zaverce ve vSech vyznamnych ohle-
dech vérné zobrazuji majetek, zavazky a vlastni ka-
pitdl spolec¢nosti DEK a.s. k 31. 12. 2009, vysledek
hospodareni a penéZnf toky za Ucetni obdobf 2009
v souladu s Mezindrodnimi standardy Ucetniho vy-
kaznictvi ve znénf prijatém Evropskou unif, platnymi
k 31. prosinci 2009.

6. Obchodni jméno a Cislo
osvedceni auditora

Audit provedla firma ATLAS AUDIT s.ro., K Bilé-
mu vrchu 1717, Celékovice, PSC 250 88, auditor
Ing. Tomas Bartos, ¢islo osvédceni 300.

v Celdkovicich, dne 10. 5. 2010
ATLAS AUDIT s r.o0.

Ing. Tomas Barto$
auditor
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5. Audit opinion

In our opinion, information included in the consolida-
ted financial statements give in all material respects
a true and fair view of assets, liabilities and equity of
the company DEK a.s. as at 31 December 2009, of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with the IFRS — Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU, valid as at 31 December 2009.

6. Auditor’'s name and licence

Audit was performed by the company ATLAS AUDIT
s.ro., K Bilému Vrchu 1717, Celdkovice, postal code
250 88, auditor Mr. Tomas Bartos, licence No. 300.

Celdkovice, on 10 May 2010

ATLAS AUDIT s.r.o.
Ing. Tomas Barto$
auditor



Konsolidované financni vykazy

Consolidated financial statements
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Konsolidovany vykaz Uplného vysledku
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Rok kondici Year ended Bod prilohy 2009 2008 2007
31. prosince 31 December Note tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Trzby Sales 3,15 6 296 264 6 853 729 5 629 036
Néklady na prodané Cost of sales 27 -4 941 387 -5 254 671 -4 355016
vyrobky, zboZi a sluzby
Hruby zisk Gross profit 1354 877 1599 058 1274 020
Odbytove naklady Distribution expenses 27 -984 195 -1102 414 -812 168
Spravni néklady Administration expenses 27 -118 531 -204 584 -168 581
Ostatnf provozni vynosy Other operating income 16 34 285 25339 16 205
Ostatni provozni naklady Other operating expenses 17 -14 638 -12 249 -7 768
Ostatni Cisté (ztréty)/ zisky Other net (losses)/ gains 18 -28 324 37204 -31 846
Provozni vysledek Operating profit 243 474 342 354 269 862
Finanéni vynosy Financial income 19 5558 8988 7821
Finanéni néklady Financial expenses 19 -64 978 - 111490 -55 331
Finanéni vysledek Financial result -59 420 -102 502 -47 510
Zisk pred zdanénim Profit before income tax 184 054 239 852 222 352
Dari z pfijmd Income tax 20 -43 946 -75 654 -64 631
- splatna - current -48 020 -83 563 -64 684
- odlozena - deferred 13 4074 7909 53
Zisk po zdanéni Profit for the year 22 140 108 164 198 157 721
Ostatni Uplny vysledek Other comprehensive income 0 0 0
Uplny vysledek za obdobi Comprehensive income for period 140 108 164 198 157 721
Pripadajici na: Attributable to:
— akcionéare spole¢nosti - Equity holders of the Company 140 108 164 198 157 721
—mensinovy podil — Minority interests 0 0 0
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Konsolidovany vykaz o financni situaci

Consolidated statement of financial position

Bod K 31. prosinci 2009 K 31. prosinci 2008 K 31. prosinci 2007
prilohy tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
Note As at As at As at
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
AKTIVA ASSETS
Pozemky, budovy a zafizen( Property, plant and equipment 4 1035 860 1183517 1015010
Nehmotny majetek Intangible fixed assets 5 42 842 2307 8 682
OdloZené dariové pohledavky Deferred tax receivables 13 23 452 19117 10 883
Goodwill Goodwill 5,26 4 869 086 4917 306 4867 118
Finanéni majetek Long term investment 0 2 306
Investice do nemovitostf Investment property 0 0
Ostatni pohledavky a finanénf Other receivables and financial 0 0
aktiva assets
Dlouhodoba aktiva Non-current assets 5971 240 6 122 247 5903 999
Z4asoby Inventories 7 847 447 1076 224 856 291
Pohledavky z obchodnich vztahG  Trade receivables 6 978 633 961 652 1033812
Pohledavky ze splatnych danf Prepaid income tax 6 60 045 4707 0
z pijma
Ostatni pohledavky a finanéni Other receivables and financial 6 163 407 229994 198 937
aktiva assets
Penize Cash and cash equivalents 8 78 967 99 857 86 944
Obézna aktiva Current assets 2128 499 2372434 2175984
AKTIVA CELKEM TOTAL ASSETS 8099 739 8 494 681 8 079 983
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Konsolidovany vykaz o financni situaci (pokracovani)
Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

Bod K 31. prosinci 2009 K 31. prosinci 2008

K 31. prosinci 2007

prilohy tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
Note As at As at As at
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
VLASTNI KAPITAL EQUITY
Z&akladni kapitél Share capital 9 5502 000 5502 000 5502 000
Fondy Retained earnings and other 10 400177 265 428 213998
reserves
Vlastni kapital bez Equity attributable to equity 5902 177 5767 428 5715998
mensinovych podil( holders of the Company
Mensinové podily Minority interests 0 0 0
VLASTNI KAPITAL CELKEM EQUITY TOTAL 5902 177 5767 428 5715998
ZAVAZKY LIABILITIES
Dlouhodobé finanéni zévazky Non-current financial liabilities 12 366 868 440 402 273 282
Ostatni dlouhodobé zavazky Other non-current liabilities 11 0 42 702 133 702
Odlozené dariové zdvazky Deferred tax liabilities 13 1212 857 519
Dlouhodobé zavazky Non-current liabilities total 368 080 483 961 407 503
Zavazky z obchodnich vztahd Trade payables 1 303 202 168 573 253 456
Kratkodobé finanéni zavazky Current financial liabilities 12 1325789 1798 482 1336 369
Ostatni kratkodobé zavazky Other current liabilities 11 200 088 259 200 354218
Za’vazk}/ ze splatnych danf Income tax liabilities 11 403 17 037 12439
z pijma
Kratkodobé zavazky Current liabilities total 1829 482 2243 292 1956 482
ZAVAZKY CELKEM LIABILITIES TOTAL 2197 562 2727 253 2 363 985
ZAVAZKY A VLASTNI KAPITAL  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 8 099 739 8 494 681 8 079 983

CELKEM

TOTAL
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Konsolidovany vykaz zmén vlastniho kapitalu
Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Z&kladni Emisni azio Ostatnf Konsolida¢ni Zakonny Nerozdéleny Celkem
kapital tis. K& kapitdlové kurzovy rozdil rezervni fond zisk / tis. K&
tis. KE fondy tis. K& tis. K& Neuhrazena
tis. K& ztrdta
tis. K&
Share capital ~ Share premium Other capital Consolidation Statutory Retained Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 reserves forex fund reserve fund earnings CZK'000
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Zlstatek k 1. lednu As at 1 January 2007* 2000 2000
2007*
Ocerovaci rozdily Revaluation
z pfecenéni na redinou
hodnotu
Pofizeni dcefiné Acquisition of subsidiary 5 500 000 5500 000
spolecnosti —vklad do  — contribution to share
zékladniho jménf capital
Pofizeni dcefinych
spole¢nostl
Pridél do rezervniho Contribution to statutory 7 500 0 21700 27077 56 277
fondu reserve fund
Viysledek hospodareni  Net profit/(loss) for the 157 721 157 721
za Ucetni obdobf current period
Zlstatek k 31. prosinci  As at 31 December 5502 000 0 7 500 0 21700 184798 5715998

2007

2007

* ke dni vzniku spole¢nosti DEK | * date of establishment of company DEK a.s.
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Konsolidovany vykaz zmeén vlastniho kapitalu (pokracovani)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity (continued)

ZéKladni Emisni azio Ostatni Konsolidaénf Zékonny Nerozdéleny Celkem
kapital tis. K& kapitdlové kurzovy rozdil rezervni fond zisk / tis. K&
tis. K& fondy tis. K& tis. K& Neuhrazend
tis. K& ztrata
tis. KE
Share capital ~ Share premium Other capital Consolidation Statutory Retained Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 reserves forex fund reserve fund earnings CZK'000
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Zlstatek k 1. lednu As at 1 January 2008 5 502 000 0 7 500 0 21700 184798 5715998
2008
Oceriovaci rozdily Revaluation
z pfecenéni na redinou
hodnotu
Prevzeti jmént (fuze) Merger of subsidiaries -110 823 200 13818 -96 805
dcefinych spole¢nosti
Pofizeni dcefinych Acquisition of 20 -5 829 -5809
spole¢nostf subsidiaries
Konsolidaéni kurzovy Consolidation exchange 70 70
rozdil (konsolidace differences
DEKTRADE SR s.r.0.) (consolidation of
DEKTRADE SR s.r.0.)
Pridél do rezervniho Contribution for 82 -82 0
fondu statutory reserve fund
Vlyplacené dividendy Dividend paid -10224 -10224
Viysledek hospodareni Net profit/(loss) for the 164 198 164 198
za Ucetni obdobf current period
ZGstatek k 31. prosinci  As at 31 December 5 502 000 0 -103323 70 22 002 346 679 5767 428

2008

2008
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Konsolidovany vykaz zmeén vlastniho kapitalu (pokracovani)
Consolidated statement of changes in equity (continued)

Ostatni Konsolidaénf Zékonny Nerozdéleny Celkem
kapitdlové kurzovy rozdil rezervni fond zisk / tis. K&
fondy tis. K& tis. K& Neuhrazend
tis. K& ztréta
tis. K&
Other capital Consolidation Statutory Retained Total
reserves forex fund reserve fund earnings CZK'000
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Zlstatek k 1. lednu As at 1 January 2009 -103 323 70 22 002 346 679 5767 428
2009
Ocerovaci rozdily Revaluation
z pfecenéni na redinou
hodnotu
Konsolida¢ni kurzovy Consolidation exchange 1339 -303 -6 395 -5 359
rozdil (konsolidace differences
DEKTRADE SR s.r.0.) (consolidation of
DEKTRADE SR s.r.o.)
Pridél do rezervniho Contribution for 508 -508 0

fondu

statutory reserve fund

Vyplacené dividendy

Dividend paid

Vlysledek hospodarent
za Ucetni obdobi

Net profit/(loss) for the
current period

140 108 140 108

ZUstatek k 31. prosinci

2009

As at 31 December
2009

-101 984 -233 22510 479884 5902177

Ostatni kapitélové fondy vznikly v roce 2008 vylou-
¢enim investice a zakladnich kapitald spole¢nosti
Stejstav spol. sr.0., Dektrans a.s., Prazdkova 52 a.s.
a Stavebniny Matyas a.s. po pfevzeti jméni téchto
spole¢nosti. Nedilnou souc¢asti této konsolidované
Ucetni zavérky je priloha k finanénim vykazdm.

Other capital reserves arisen in 2008 as a conse-
quence of merger of companies Stejstav spol. sr.0.,
Dektrans a.s., PraZdkova 52 a.s. and Stavebniny
Matya$ a.s. These reserves include amounts of
investment of subsidiaries and their share capital.
The notes to these statements are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Konsolidovany vykaz penéznich tok(
Consolidated cash flow statement

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Penézni toky z provozni ¢innosti Cash flow from operating activities
Udetni zisk (+) / ztrata (-) z bézné Profit before income tax 184 054 239 852 222 352
¢innosti pfed zdanénim
Upravy o nepenézni operace: Adjustments for non-cash movements:
Odpisy dlouhodobych aktiv Depreciation of fixed assets 210 437 196 030 122 837
Zména stavu opravnych polozek Change in provisions 42 547 30 155 31066
Zisk (-) / ztréta (+) z prodeje (Profit)/loss from disposal of fixed assets -7 647 -39 502 -3775
dlouhodobych aktiv
Vyuctované ndkladové a vynosové Uroky — Net interest expense (income) 59 722 107 497 52 502
Konsolidaéni kurzovy rozdil Consolidation exchange difference -5 359 70 0
reserve
Cisty penézni tok z provozni &innosti Net cash flow from ordinary activities 483 754 534 102 424 982
pred zdanénim, zménami pracovniho before tax, changes in working capital
kapitalu a mimoradnymi polozkami and extraordinary items
Zmény stavu nepenéZnich slozek Working capital changes:
pracovniho kapitalu:
Zména stavu pohleddvek (Increase)/decrease in receivables and 10610 21097 -426 449
prepayments
Zména stavu zévazk( Increase/(decrease) in short-term 41 826 -266 470 184 859
payables and accruals
Zména stavu zasob (Increase)/decrease in inventories 229 559 -219 933 -376 718
Cisty penézni tok z provozni &innosti Net cash flow from ordinary activities 765 749 68 796 -193 326
pred zdanénim a mimoradnymi before tax and extraordinary items
polozkami
Uroky vyplacené Interest paid -59 733 -107 735 - 52 563
Uroky pfijaté Interest received 11 238 61
Zaplacend dari z pifjm0 za béZnou ¢innost  Income tax on ordinary activities paid -119 991 -83673 - 74627
Cisty penézni tok z provozni &innosti Net cash flow from ordinary activities 586 036 -122 374 -320 455
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Konsolidovany vykaz penéznich tok( (pokracovani)

Consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Penézni toky z investi¢ni ¢innosti Cash flows from investing activities
Vlydaje spojené s nabytim dl. aktiv Acquisition of fixed assets -80 502 -610 240 - 631 766
Prijmy z prodeje dlouhodobych aktiv Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 19 802 126 518 18 247
PUjcky a Uvéry spiiznénym osobam Loans to related parties 0 0 0
Cisty penézni tok z investiéni ginnosti Net cash flow from ordinary activities -60 700 -483 722 -613 519
Penézni toky z finanéni €innosti Cash flows from financing activities
Dopady zmén dlouhodobych resp. Change in long- and short-term liabilities -546 226 629 233 984 765
krétkodobych zavazkd
Zména stavu vlastniho kapitalu: Changes in equity:
Vyplacené dividendy Dividends paid 0 -10 224 0
Cisté penézni toky z finanéni ginnosti Net cash flow from financing activities -546 226 619 009 984 765
Cisté zvy$eni /snizeni penéznich Net increase/(decrease) in cash and -20 890 12913 50 791
prostfedkid a penéznich ekvivalentd cash equivalents
Stav penéznich prostiedkd a penéznich Cash and cash equivalents at the 99 857 86 944 36 153
ekvivalentd na poéatku roku beginning of the year
Stav penéznich prostfedkl a penéznich Cash and cash equivalents at the end 78 967 99 857 86 944

ekvivalent(i na konci roku

of the year
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Priloha ke
konsolidované
ucetni zavérce

1. Udaje o spole¢nosti

1.1. Zalozeni a prfedmét ¢innosti

Spole¢nost DEK a.s. byla zapsdna do obchodniho
rejstifku dne 18. prosince 2006. B&hem roku 2007
byla vytvofena skupina spolecnosti, které tvoif konso-
lida¢ni celek DEK (ddle ,Skupina®). Do konsolida¢ni-
ho celku byla za¢lenéna spole¢nost DEKTRADE a.s.,
z které se oddélily spole¢nosti DEKWOOD s.r.o.,
DEKMETAL s.r.o., DEKPROJEKT s.r.o a DEKSTONE
s.ro. V roce 2007 byly zaloZeny spolecnosti Moje
stavebniny s.ro. a DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. Spole¢nost
DEK a.s. uzavfela v roce 2007 ovlddaci smlouvu se
spole¢nosti POLYDEK a.s. Béhem roku 2008 ziskala
Skupina 100% podil ve spole¢nosti G Servis CZ s.r.0.
V roce 2009 byla ze spole¢nosti DEKWOOD vyclené-
na spole¢nost Energo Helvikovice, ktera je nyni dce-
finou spole¢nosti spole¢nosti POLYDEK a.s.

Pfedmétem podnikani Skupiny je zejména nakup
a prodej stavebnich materidlQ, projektova a pora-
denskd cinnost ve stavebnictvi, vyroba izolagnich
materidld, stavebnich hmot a vyrobkd, zpracovani
kamene, kovoobrabecstvi, ¢innost pilarska a zpraco-
vani dfeva.
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Notes to
Consolidated
Financial Statements

1. General information

1.1. Establishment and business activities

DEK a.s. was incorporated in the Commercial Regis-
ter on 18 December 2006. During 2007, the group of
companies (the DEK consolidation group) was estab-
lished (“The Group"®). The company DEKTRADE a.s.
was incorporated into the Group, whilst the subsidi-
aries DEKWOOD s.ro., DEKMETAL s.ro., DEKPRO-
JEKT s.ro and DEKSTONE s.ro were split off from
DEKTRADE a.s. The companies Moje stavebniny
s.ro. and DEKTRADE SR s.ro. were established in
2007. The Controlling agreement between the com-
panies DEK a.s. and POLYDEK a.s. was concluded in
2007. The company G SERVIS CZ s.r.o. was acquired
in 2008 (a 100% share). In 2009 the company ENER-
GO HELV[KOVICE, which is currently 100% subsidi-
ary of the company POLYDEK a.s., was split off from
DEKWOOD s.r.o.

The company’s principal business activities are the
purchasing and selling of construction materials, engi-
neering and advisory activities, the production of insu-
lation materials, construction materials and products,
stone working, the machining of metals, woodworking
and sawmill activities.



1.2. Sidlo spole¢nosti

DEK a.s.
Tiskarska 10/257
Praha 10

108 00

Ceska republika
IC: 276 36 801
www adresa: www.dek.cz

Spolec¢nost je zapsana v obchodnim rejstfiku ve-
deném Méstskym soudem v Praze, oddil B, vlozka
11400.

Organizacni struktura spolecnosti se ¢leni do nasle-
dujicich oblast:

= obchodni oddélenf

= technické oddéleni

= provozni oddélenf

= marketing

= finan&ni oddélen( a lidské zdroje
= oddéleni IT

Skupina ma zdvod na zpracovani kovu a kamene
v Dfisech u Staré Boleslavi, pilu na zpracovani dfeva
v Helvikovicich u Zamberka a sit 47 (2008: 48, 2007:
40) obchodnich pobocek v Ceské Republice a 15
(2008: 15, 2007: 10) ve Slovenskeé republice.

1.2. Registered office

DEK a.s.

10/257 Tiskarska

Prague 10

108 00

The Czech Republic

ID Number: 276 36 801

www address: www.dek.cz

The company is registered in the Commercial Register
maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section
B, Insert 11400.

The organisational structure of the company is di-
vided into the following main areas:

= purchasing and sales

= technical department

= operational support

= marketing

= finance department and human resources
= |IT department

The Group has a plant for stone working and the
machining of metals in Dfisy near Stara Boleslav,
a sawmill for woodworking in Helvikovice near
Zamberk and a network of 47 (2008: 48, 2007: 40)
business branches in the Czech Republic and 15
(2008:15, 2007: 10) business branches in the Slo-
vak Republic.
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2. Informace o pouzitych
ucetnich metodach
a zasadach

2.1. Prohlaseni

Konsolidovana ucetni zavérka spole¢nosti DEK a.s.
a jejich dcefinych spolecnosti (,Skupina“) k 31. pro-
sinci 2009 je sestavena v souladu s Mezindrodnimi
standardy Ucetniho vykaznictvi ve znénl pfijatém Ev-
ropskou unif (,IFRS"), platnymi k 31. prosinci 2009.

Nasledujici standardy, novely a interpretace existuji-
cich standardd Gcinné pro Ucetni obdobi pocinajici
1. ledna 2009 Skupina neaplikovala, protoze pro né
nemela naplni nebo jejich dopad nebyl vyznamny:

= IAS 11 — Stavebni smlouvy
(datum dcinnosti 1. ledna 1995)

= IAS 20 - Vykazovani statnich dotaci a zvefejnéni
statni podpory (datum ucinnosti 1. ledna 1984)

- IAS 26 — Udtovan( a vykazovan( penzijnich
nakladd (datum ucinnosti 1. ledna 1990)

= IAS 28 — Investice do pridruzenych podnikd
(datum dcinnosti 1. ledna 2005)

= 1AS 29 - Vlykazovani v hyperinflanich
ekonomikdch (datum uUginnosti 1. ledna 1990)

= IAS 31 — Vlykazovan( Ucasti v pfidruzenych
podnicich (datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2007)

= IAS 41 - Zemédélstvi
(datum ucinnosti 1. ledna 2003)

* IFRS 2 — Uhrady akciemi
(datum dcinnosti 1. ledna 2005)
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2. Summary of significant
accounting policies and
principles

2.1. Summary statement

The consolidated financial statements of DEK a.s. (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2008 have been pre-
pared in accordance with International Financial Re-
porting Standards as adopted by the European Union
(“IFRS”) as at 31 December 2009.

The following standards, amendments and interpre-
tations to published standards are mandatory for ac-
counting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009,
but they are not relevant to the Group’s operations:

= IAS 11 — Construction contracts
(effective from 1 January 1995)

= |AS 20 — Accounting for governments grants
(effective from 1 January 1984)

= IAS 26 — Accounting and reporting of Retirement
benefits (effective from 1 January 1990)

= IAS 28 — Investments in associates
(effective from 1 January 2005)

= |IAS 29 - Financial reporting in hyperinflationary
economies (effective from 1 January 1990)

= IAS 31 - Interests in Joint Ventures
(effective from 1 January 2007)

= IAS 41 — Agriculture
(effective from 1 January 2003)

= IFRS 2 — Share based payment
(effective from 1 January 2005)



= IFRS 4 - Pojistné smlouvy

(datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2006)

* IFRS 6 — Priizkum a vyhodnocovani nerostnych
zdrojd (datum ucinnosti 1. ledna 2006)

= IFRS 8 —Provozni segmenty

(datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2009)

= SIC 10 - Statni podpora bez specifické vazby
k provoznim ¢innostem

(datum dcinnosti 1. srpna 1998)

= SIC 12 — Konsolidace — jednotky zvlastniho
uréeni (datum ucinnosti 1. Cervence 1999)

= SIC 13 — Spoluovladané jednotky

— nepenézni vklady

(datum dcinnosti 1. ledna 1999)

= SIC 29 - Zverejfiovani — ujedndni o poskytovani
licencovanych sluzeb

(datum ucinnosti 31. prosince 2001)

= SIC 31 -Vynosy — barterové transakce
zahrnujici reklamni sluzby

(datum ucinnosti 31. prosince 2001)

+ IFRIC 1 — Zmény zavazkd vyplyvajicich

z demontaZe, ukonceni provozu a podobnych
aktivit (datum ucinnosti 1. zarf 2004)

- IFRIC 2 - Clenské podily v druzstvech

a podobné nastroje

(datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2005)

* IFRIC 5 - Prava na podily na fondech
vytvofenych na demontaz, ukonceni provozu,
uvedeni do pdvodniho stavu a ekologickou
likvidaci (datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2006)

» IFRIC 6 — Zavazky vznikajici z plsobenf

na zvlastnim trhu

— elektricky a elektronicky odpad

(datum ucinnosti 1. prosince 2005)

= IFRIC 7- PouZitl metody prepracovani

vykazl v IAS 29 Viykazovani v hyperinflacnich
ekonomikach

(datum dcinnosti 1. bfezna 2006)

= IFRS 4 - Insurance contracts

(effective from 1 January 2006)

= IFRS 6 — Exploration and Evaluation of Mineral

Assets (effective from 1 January 2006)

= IFRS 8 — Operating Segments

(effective from 1 January 2009)

= SIC 10 — Government Assistance — No Specific

Relation to Operating Activities
(effective from 1 August 1998)

= SIC 12 — Consolidation — Special Purpose

Entities (effective from 1 July 1999)

= SIC 13 - Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-

Monetary Contributions by Venturers
(effective from 1 January 1999)

= SIC 29 - Disclosure — Service Concession

Arrangements
(effective from 31 December 2001)

= SIC 31 — Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving

Advertising Services
(effective from 31 December 2001)

= IFRIC 1 — Changes in Existing Decommissioning,

Restoration and Similar Liabilities
(effective from 1 September 2004)

= IFRIC 2 — Members’ Shares in Co-operative

Entities and Similar Instruments
(effective from 1 January 2005)

= IFRIC 5 — Rights to Interests Arising

from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Funds
(effective from 1 January 2006)

= IFRIC 6 - Liabilities Arising from Participating

in a Specific Market — Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment
(effective from 1 December 2005)

= IFRIC 7- Applying the Restatement Approach

under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies
(effective from 1 March 2006)
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= IFRIC 8 — Rozsah plsobnosti IFRS 2

(datum Ucinnosti 1. kvétna 2006)

= IFRIC 9 — Pfecenéni vioZenych derivétd

(datum dcinnosti 1. ¢ervna 2006)

= IFRIC 10 — Mezitimni vykaznictvi a sniZzeni hodnoty
aktiv (datum Ucinnosti 1. listopadu 2006)

= IFRIC 11 —IFRS 2: Transakce s akciemi skupiny
a s vlastnimi akciemi

(datum dcinnosti 1. brezna 2007)

= IFRIC 12 — Ujednani o poskytovani licencovanych
sluZeb (datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2008)

= IFRIC 13 -V&rnostni zdkaznické programy
(datum dcinnosti 1. Cervence 2008)

= IFRIC 14 — IAS 19 - Limit u aktiv z definovanych
pozitk(, minimalni pozadavky na financovani

a jejich vzajemné souvislosti

(datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2008)

= IFRIC 15 — Smlouvy o vystavbé nemovitosti
(datum dcinnosti 1. ledna 2009)

= IFRIC 16 — Zajistén( ¢isté investice do zahrani¢ni
jednotky (datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2009)

= IFRIC 8 — Scope of IFRS 2
(effective from 1 May 2006)

= IFRIC 9 — Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
(effective from 1 June 2006)

= IFRIC 10 - Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment (effective from 1 November 2006)

= IFRIC 11 = IFRS 2: Group and Treasury
Share Transactions
(effective from 1 March 2007)

= IFRIC 12 — 12 Service Concession Arrangements
(effective from 1 January 2008)

= IFRIC 13 — Customer Loyalty Programmes
(effective from 1 July 2008)

= IFRIC 14 —IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction
(effective from 1 January 2008)

= IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate (effective from 1 January 2009)

= IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation (effective from 1 January 2009)

Nasledujici standardy, novely a interpretace existu- The following standards, amendments and interpreta-
jicich standardd, které byly publikovany a jesté ne- tions to existing standards have been published and
nabyly Uc¢innosti, Skupina neaplikovala nebo pro né are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods be-
nema napln: ginning on or after 1 January 2010 or later periods but

= IFRS 1 - novela - Prvni pfijetl IFRS
(datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2010)

= IFRS 3 - novela - Podnikové kombinace

(datum dcinnosti 1. Eervence 2009)

= IAS 1 - novela - Prezentace Ucetni zavérky
(datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2010)

= IAS 7 - novela — Vykaz o penéznich tocich
(datum dcinnosti 1. ledna 2010)
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are not relevant for the Group’s operations:

= IFRS 1 —amendment - First-time adoption of IFRS
(effective from 1 July 2010)

= IFRS 3 —amendment - Business combinations
(effective from 1 July 2009)

= IAS 1 —amendment — Presentation of financial
statements (effective from 1 January 2010)

= IAS 7 — amendment —Statement of cash flows
(effective from 1 January 2010)



= IAS 17 — novela - Leasingy
(datum Ucinnosti 1. ledna 2010)

= IAS 36 — novela Snizeni hodnoty aktiv
(datum dcinnosti 1. ledna 2010)

= IAS 38 — novela - Nehmotna aktiva
(datum ucinnosti 1. ledna 2010)

= IAS 39 - novela — Finan¢ni nastroje
(datum dcinnosti 1. ledna 2010)

= IFRIC 17 — Rozdélovani nepenéznich aktiv vlast-
nikdm (datum ucinnosti 1. cervence 2009)

* IFRIC 18 — Pfevod aktiv od zakaznikd
(datum Ucinnosti 1. Eervence 2009)

Skupina neoCekdva vyznamné dopady na metody
ocerlovani a vykazovani z titulu budouci aplikace
vy$e uvedenych standardd a interpretaci.

2.2. Zakladni zasady sestaveni konsolidované
ucetni zavérky

Tato konsolidovana Ucetni zaverka je pfipravena
na principu historickych nékladd. Sestaveni tcetni
zavérky v souladu s Mezindrodnimi standardy Ucet-
niho vykaznictvi vyZaduje uplatiiovani uréitych za-
sad Udetnich odhadd. Vyzaduje rovnéz, aby vedeni
vyuzivalo svlj Usudek v procesu aplikace Ucetnich
pravidel. Oblasti kladoucf vy$si naroky na uplatrio-
vani Usudku, nebo s vyssi mirou sloZitosti, ¢i oblasti,
ve kterych jsou pro Ucely sestaveni konsolidované
Ucetni zavérky uplatriovany dllezité predpoklady
a odhady, jsou zvefejnény nize. Céstky v konsolido-
vané Ucetni zaverce a v pfiloze jsou uvedeny v tisi-
cich Eeskych korun (tis. K&), neni-li uvedeno jinak.

= IAS 17 —amendment — Leases
(effective from 1 January 2010)

= |AS 36 — amendment — Impairment of assets
(effective from 1 January 2010)

= IAS 38- amendment — Intangible assets (effective
from 1 January 2010)

= |AS 39- amendment — Financial Instruments
(effective from 1 January 2010)

= IFRIC 17 —Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners (effective from 1 July 2009)

= IFRIC 18 —Transfers of Assets from Customers
(effective from 1 July 2009)

The Group does not expect that this amendments
and interpretations will have a significant impact on
its financial statements.

2.2. Basis of preparation of consolidated finan-
cial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been pre-
pared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s ac-
counting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assump-
tions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in the notes below.
Amounts in the consolidated financial statements
and in the notes are disclosed in thousands of Czech
crowns (CZK ths.), unless stated otherwise.
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2.3. Udaje o Skupiné

Kromeé spole¢nosti DEK a.s. se sidlem v Praze za-
hrnuje konsolidovana ucetni zavérka také vSech-
ny dcefiné spoleCnosti. Dcefiné spoleCnosti jsou
v8echny jednotky, ve kterych je matefské spole¢nost
opravnéna pifmo nebo neptimo fidit financni a pro-
vozni ¢innost, coZ je pravomoc, ktera byva obecné
spojena s vlastnictvim vic nez poloviny hlasovacich
prav. Pfi posuzovani toho, zda skupina ovlada néja-
kou Ucetni jednotku, je zvaZzovana existence a dopad
potencidinich hlasovacich prav, ktera jsou v soucas-
né dobeé uplatnitelna nebo prevoditelnad. Tyto spolec-
nosti (dcefiné spolec¢nosti) jsou pIné konsolidovany
od data, kdy byla na skupinu prevedena pravomoc
vykondvat nad nimi kontrolu, a jsou vylouceny z kon-
solidace k datu pozbyti této pravomoci.

Spole¢nost DEK a.s. ovlada k 31.prosinci 2009 tyto
dcefiné spole¢nosti:

a) majetkova ucast 100 %:

= DEKTRADE a.s.

- DEKTRADE SR s.r.o.
= DEKWOOD s.r.o.

= DEKMETAL s.r.0.

= DEKSTONE s.r.o.

= DEKPROJEKT s.ro.

= Moje stavebniny s.r.o.
G SERVIS CZ, s.r.0.

b) ovladaci smlouva:
= Polydek, a.s.

- ENERGO HELVIKOVICE a.s. (100% dcefina spo-
le¢nost spole¢nosti Polydek a.s.)
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2.3. Details of the Group

In addition to the company DEK a.s. with its reg-
istered office in Prague, the consolidated financial
statements include all subsidiaries. Subsidiaries
are all companies in which the Company is able,
directly or indirectly, to control financial and oper-
ating policies, which is the authority usually con-
nected with holding majority voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are consid-
ered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. The controlled companies (“sub-
sidiaries”) are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de'consolidated from the date that control of the
Group ceases.

The subsidiaries of the Company DEK a.s. as at 31
December 2009 are as follows:

a) shareholding - 100 %:

= DEKTRADE as.

= DEKTRADE SR s.r.0.
= DEKWOOD s.r.o.

» DEKMETAL s.ro.

- DEKSTONE s.r.0.

= DEKPROJEKT s.r.o.

= Moje stavebniny s.r.o.
G SERVIS CZ, sr.o.

b) controlling agreement:

= POLYDEK, a.s.
- ENERGO HELVIKOVICE a.s. (100% subsidiary of
the company POLYDEK a.s.)



Pridruzené podniky jsou vSechny jednotky, ve kterych
ma Skupina podstatny vliv, avSak nevykonava nad
nimi kontrolu, cozZ je pravomoc, ktera byva obecné
spojena s vlastnictvim 20% aZ 50% hlasovacich prav.
Skupina DEK neuplatriuje v souc¢asné dobé podstat-
ny vliv v Zadném pridruZzeném podniku.

2.4. Konsolidaéni zasady

Dceriné spole¢nosti jsou konsolidovany metodou piné
konsolidace. Aktiva a pasiva konsolida¢ni skupiny za-
hrnuta v konsolidované Ucetni zaverce jsou vykazova-
na v souladu s jednotnymi ucetnimi pravidly Skupiny.

Pro Uétovani o poiizeni deefinych podnikt Skupinou je
pouzivana metoda koupe. Cenu akvizice pfedstavuje
realnd hodnota danych aktiv, vydanych kapitalovych
nastrojd a vzniklych nebo predpokladanych zévazk
k datu vymény plus néklady pifmo souvisejici s pofize-
nim. Pofizend identifikovatelna aktiva, zévazky a pod-
minéné zavazky prevzaté v ramci podnikové kombina-
ce jsou prvotné oceriovany realnou hodnotou k datu
pofizeni bez ohledu na rozsah mensinového podilu.

Castka, o kterou je pofizovaci cena ziskaného po-
dilu vy8si, nez je redlna hodnota podilu Skupiny na
pofizenych identifikovatelnych Cistych aktivech, je
zaldtovana jako goodwill. Pokud je pofizovaci cena
niZzsi nez redlnd hodnota cistych aktiv pofizeného
dcefiného podniku, tento rozdil se zauctuje pfimo
do vykazu zisk( a ztrat.

Vnitropodnikové transakce, zlstatky a nerealizované
zisky z transakci mezi spole¢nostmi ve skupiné DEK
jsou z konsolidace vylouceny.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally ac-
companying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. The DEK Group does not
have any significant influence in any associate at
present.

2.4. Consolidation principles

The subsidiaries are consolidated using the full-scope
consolidation method. Assets and liabilities of the
subsidiaries are recognised in accordance with the
uniform accounting policies used within the Group.

The purchase method of accounting is used to ac-
count for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
The cost of the acquisition is measured as the fair val-
ue of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Iden-
tifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.

The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net as-
sets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
the acquisition is less than the fair value of the net as-
sets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is rec-
ognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated.
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2.5. Vykazovani podle segment(

Oborovy segment je skupina aktiv a transakci pou-
Zitych pfi vyrobé a prodeji produktl a sluzeb, které
jsou prfedmétem takovych vynosd a rizik, které je
mozné odliit od vynosU a rizik v ostatnich oboro-
vych segmentech. Uzemni segment je tvofen pro-
dukty a sluzbami v rdmci daného ekonomického
prostredi, kde je mozné identifikovat vynosy a rizika,
kterd se lisi od vynos a rizik jinych segmentd vznik-
lych v ostatnich ekonomickych prostredich.

2.6. Funkéni ména a ména vykazovani

PoloZky, které jsou soucéasti Ucetni zavérky kazdé
z Ucetnich jednotek skupiny, jsou oceriovany za
pouzitl meny primdrniho ekonomického prostred,
ve kterém Ucetni jednotka plsobi (,funkéni ména®).
Konsolidovana Ucetni zavérka je vykazovana v ¢es-
kych korundch, které jsou pro Skupinu ménou
funkéni i ménou vykazovant.

Transakce v cizi meéneé se prepocitavaji do tzv.
funkéni mény na zakladé pevnych kurzl, které jsou
stanoveny Ctvrtletné podle kurzu platného k prvému
dni &tvrtleti podle kurzového listku Ceské narodni
banky. Kurzové zisky nebo ztraty vyplyvajici z téch-
to transakci a z pfepoctu penéZnich aktiv a zavaz-
k vyjadrenych v cizich mé&ndch sménnym kurzem
platnym ke konci uU€etniho obdobi se vykazuji ve
vykazu ziskd a ztrat.

80

2.5. Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and op-
erations engaged in providing products or serv-
ices that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of segments operating
in other economic environments.

2.6. Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the curren-
cy of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
‘Czech crowns’ (‘CZK’), which is the Group’s func-
tional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the fixed exchange
rates determined quarterly in accordance with the
exchange rate valid on the first day in the quarter on
the exchange rate list of the Czech National Bank.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curren-
cies are recognised in the income statement.



2.7. Pozemky, budovy a zafizenf{

Veskeré pozemky, budovy a zafizeni se vykazuiji v po-
fizovacich ndkladech po odecteni opravek a kumulo-
vanych ztrat ze snizeni hodnoty majetku. Pofizovaci
naklady zahrnuji ndklady, které se pfimo vztahuijl k po-
fizeni danych poloZek.

Veskeré ndklady na opravy a Udrzbu, jakoZ i zaplacené
droky, jsou vykazany jako naklady bézného ucetniho
obdobi. Nasledné vydaje jsou zahrnuty do Ucetni hod-
noty prislusného aktiva nebo jsou pfipadné vykazany
jako samostatné aktivum, ovSem pouze tehdy, pokud
je pravdépodobné, Ze budouci ekonomicky prospéch
spojeny s danou polozkou Skupina ziskd a Ze pofizo-
vaci cena polozky je spolehlivé méfitelna.

Pozemky se neodepisuji. U ostatnich aktiv jsou uplat-
riovany rovnomérné odpisy. Sazby odpis( jsou stano-
veny na zékladé predpokladané doby Zivotnosti. Doby
Zivotnosti jsou stanoveny dle nasleduijiciho prehledu:

= budovy a stavby 10-30 let
= stroje 4 roky
= dopravni prostifedky — leasing ~ obvykle 3 roky
= dopravni prostfedky — ostatn( 4 roky

= obchodni a provozni vybavent, inventaf 3 roky

Zisky/ ztraty z prodeje hmotného majetku se urci
porovnanim vynosl z prodeje se zlstatkovou ce-
nou a jsou vykazany v poloZce ,Ostatni Cisté (ztra-
ty)/ zisky" ve vykazu ziskd a ztrat.

2.7. Property, plants and equipment

All property, plants and equipment are stated at his-
torical cost less depreciation and - where necessary
- write-downs for impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisi-
tion of the assets.

All repairs and maintenance costs, as well as borrow-
ing costs, are charged to the income statement dur-
ing the reporting period in which they are incurred.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life as follows:

= Buildings 10-30 years
= Machinery 4 years
= Vehicles - leasing usually 3 years
= Vehicles — others 4 years
= Furniture, fittings and equipment 3 years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘Other net (losses)/gains’
in the income statement.
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2.8. Nehmotny majetek

Nakoupeny nehmotny majetek je vykézan v pofizo-
vacich ndkladech snizenych o opravky a kumulované
ztraty ze sniZeni hodnoty.

Goodwill pfedstavuje ¢astku, o kterou cena akvizice
prevySuje redinou hodnotu podilu Skupiny na Cistych
identifikovatelnych aktivech nabytého dcefiného pod-
niku k datu akvizice. Goodwill je vykazovan zviast, nenf
odepisovdn, ale je kazdoro¢né testovan na snizeni
hodnoty a je vykazovan v porizovacich nékladech po
odecteni kumulovanych ztrat ze snizeni hodnoty.

U ostatniho nehmotného majetku Skupiny uplatriuje
rovnomeérné odpisy. Sazby odpist jsou stanoveny na
zakladé predpokladané doby Zivotnosti nehmotného
majetku. Doby Zivotnosti jsou stanoveny nasledovné:

= Software 3 roky
= Ostatni nehmotny majetek 5 let

2.9. Snizeni hodnoty aktiv

Aktiva, ktera jsou odepisovana, se posuzuiji z hle-
diska sniZzeni hodnoty, kdykoli ur¢ité udalosti nebo
zmeény okolnosti naznacuji, Ze jejich ucetni hodnota
nemusi byt realizovatelnd. Ztrata ze sniZzenf hodnoty
je Uctovana ve vysi ¢astky, o kterou Ucetni hodnota
pfesahuje jeho zpétné ziskatelnou hodnotu. Zpét-
né ziskatelna hodnota predstavuje realnou hodnotu
snizenou o ndklady prodeje nebo hodnotu z uziva-
ni, je-li vySsi.
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2.8. Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are stated at historical
cost less amortisation and - where necessary -
write-downs for impairment.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an ac-
quisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of sub-
sidiaries is included in ‘intangible assets’. Separately
recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Other intangible assets are amortised using the
straight-line method over its estimated useful life,
as follows:

= Software 3 years
= Other intangible assets 5years

2.9. Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation and depreci-
ation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the car-
rying amount may not be recoverable. An impair-
ment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recover-
able amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use.



2.10. Financ¢ni aktiva

PUjcky a pohleddvky jsou nederivatova finanéni akti-
va s danymi nebo prfedpokladanymi platbami, které
nejsou kdtovana na aktivnim trhu. Vznikajf tehdy, kdyz
Skupina poskytne penéZni prostfedky, zboZ nebo
sluzby primo diuZnikovi, aniz by planovala s pohledav-
kou obchodovat. Jsou zahrnuty do kratkodobych ak-
tiv, s vyjimkou pdj¢ek a pohledavek, jejichz zlistatkova
doba splatnosti od rozvahového dne je delsi neZ 12
mésicy. Ty jsou klasifikovany jako dlouhodobd aktiva.
PUijcky a pohleddvky jsou zahrnuty v rozvaze v pohle-
davkéch z obchodnich vztahl a ostatnich pohledav-
kach a finan¢nich aktivech (pozn. €. 6).

Ke kazdému rozvahovému dni Skupina posuzuje,
zda existuji objektivni dikazy potvrzujici, Ze hodnota
financniho aktiva nebo skupiny finanénich aktiv byla
snizena. Opravna polozka na snizeni hodnoty ob-
chodnich pohledévek se vytvaii tehdy, jestlize existuijf
objektivni ddikazy o tom, Ze Skupina nebude schopna
inkasovat veskeré diuzné ¢astky podle plvodné sjed-
nanych podminek. Vyznamné finanéni potize, prav-
dépodobnost, Ze diuznik vstoupi do konkurzu nebo
finanéni restrukturalizace, nedodrzeni splatnosti nebo
prodleni ve splatnosti zavazku jsou indikatory, Ze ob-
chodni pohledavky jsou znehodnoceny.

Kromé vySe uvedeného wytvali Skupina nespecific-
kou opravnou polozku ve vysi procenta stanoveného
z obratu jednotlivych spolecnosti skupiny DEK. Vyse
procenta se stanovi pro kazdy rok vedenim spole¢-
nosti na zakladé predchozich zkuSenosti s inkasem
pohledévek po uvedené Ihdté splatnosti.

Vy8e opravné polozky je rozdil mezi icetni hodnotou
aktiva a sou¢asnou hodnotou odhadovanych budou-
cich penéznich tokd diskontovanych efektivni troko-

2.10. Financial assets

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finan-
cial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods or serv-
ices directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivable. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receiv-
ables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and
‘cash and cash equivalents' in the balance sheet
(note 6).

The Group determines at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Al-
lowance for impairment of trade receivables arises
when objective evidence exists that the Group is
unable to collect all amounts receivable in accord-
ance with originally accepted conditions. Signifi-
cant financial problems, probability of bankruptcy,
financial restructuralisation and overdue receiva-
bles are indicators of impairment of receivables.
Except for the policy mentioned above, the Group
creates a non-specific allowance for bad debts to
the total of determined percentage of the turnover
of particular companies within the Group. The per-
centage is determined by the management of the
Group based on previous experience with the col-
lection of these overdue receivables.

The value of the allowance is the difference be-
tween the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the receiv-
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vou sazbou. Tvorba opravné polozky je vykézana ve
vykazu zisku a ztréty v poloZzce Ostatni provozni na-
klady.

2.11. Zasoby

Nakoupené zasoby, tj. materidl a zboZi, jsou oce-
fovany v pofizovacich cendch nebo ¢istou realizo-
vatelnou hodnotou, je-li nizsi. Pofizovaci naklady
zahrnuji cenu pofizeni a ostatni néklady vynalozené
s uvedenim nakupovanych zdsob na jejich soucas-
né misto a do souc¢asného stavu (napf. naklady na
dopravné, balné, clo).

Zasoby vlastni vyroby jsou ocefiovdny vlastnimi
naklady nebo Cistou realizovatelnou hodnotou, je-li
niZsi. Vlastni naklady zahrnuji pfimy material, pfimé
osobni naklady a pfislusnou vyrobnireZii. Do ocené-
ni zasob vlastni vyroby nenf zahrnuta spravni rezie.

Cista realizovatelnd hodnota je odhadnuté prodejni
cena v bézném podnikani snizena o odhadované
ndklady nutné pro uskuteénéni prodeje. Cisté reali-
zovatelnd hodnota zohledriuje vSechna rizika z titulu
nepotfebnych a nadmérmnych zasob.

Pro ocenovani Ubytku zdsob je pouzivdna metoda,
kdy se cena prvniho pfirGistku zdsob pouZije jako
prvni cena pro ocenent jejich Ubytku (FIFO).

2.12. Penize a penézni ekvivalenty
Penize a penézni ekvivalenty zahrnuji penize v ho-
tovosti, zUstatky béznych Uctd v bankdch a ostatni

likvidni prostfedky s dobou splatnosti nepfevysujici
tfi mésice.
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able. The value of the allowance is recognised in
the income statement within ‘Other operating ex-
penses’.

2.11. Inventories

Purchased inventories (raw materials, consuma-
bles, supplies and materials used in production,
goods) are stated at the lower of cost and net realis-
able value. Costs include purchase costs and other
acquisition costs (e.g. transport, customs duty, and
packaging).

Inventories generated from own production are stat-
ed at the lower of own production costs or net re-
alisable value. Own production costs include direct
material, direct wages and production overheads.
The administration overhead expenses are not in-
cluded in the valuation of finished goods.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion less applicable variable selling expenses.
Net realisable value reflects all risks of obsolete and
redundant raw materials and excessive original parts.

The first-in, first-out (FIFO) method is used to ac-
count for the consumption of materials and for all
sales.

2.12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturi-
ties of three months or less.



2.13. Zavazky a puijcky

Pri vychozim zachyceni jsou dlouhodobé zavazky
a pdjcky ocenény v redlné hodnoté. V nasleduji-
cich obdobich se vykazuji v zlstatkové hodnoté.
Veskeré rozdily mezi skutenym vynosem (bez
transakénich nédkladd) a hodnotou spldtek se vy-
kazuiji ve vykazu zisku a ztraty postupne po celou
dobu trvani zavazku (pQjcky) s pouzitim metody
efektivni Urokové sazby. Kratkodobé zavazky jsou
vykazovany v rozvaze v hodnoté vyporadani nebo
splacent.

Pajcky jsou klasifikovany jako kratkodobé, pokud
nema Skupina pravo na bezpodmine¢né posunuti
splatnosti pdjcky o nejméné 12 mésicd po rozva-
hovém dni.

2.14 Dan z pfijmU splatna a odloZena

Sazba dané z pfijm0 je déna Zakonem o dani z pif-
jmG €.586/1992 ve znéni platném k datu Ucetni z&-
vérky v Ceské republice a ¢. 595/2003 ve Slovenské
republice.

Odlozena dari z pfijm0 je Uctovana v piné wysi, s po-
uZitim zévazkové metody, z prechodnych rozdil(
vznikajicich mezi dariovou hodnotou aktiv a zévazk(
a jejich ucetni hodnotou v konsolidované ucetni za-
vérce. Pokud ovéem odloZzena dar z piijm0 vyplyva
z vychoziho zachyceni aktiva nebo zdvazku z transak-
ci jinych, neZ je podnikova kombinace, které v dobé
vzniku nemaji dopad ani na Ucetni, ani na dariovy zisk
nebo ztrétu, pak se o ni nedctuje.

2.13. Trade payables, loans and borrowings

Trade payables, borrowings and loans are recognised
initially at fair value. Borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Trade
payables, borrowings and loans are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemp-
tion value is recognised in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective inter-
est method. Trade payables are recognised in the bal-
ance sheet in the recoverable amount.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settle-
ment of the liability for at least 12 months after the bal-
ance sheet date.

2.14 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of Tax law No. 586/1992 enacted or substan-
tively enacted at the balance sheet date in the Czech
Republic and No.595/2003 in the Slovak Republic.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the li-
ability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not ac-
counted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.
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V souladu s IAS 12 jsou odloZené dariové pohledav-
ky a odloZené dariové zavazky vzdjemné kompenzo-
vany, pokud existuje ze zakona vymahatelné pravo
kompenzace piislusnych splatnych dariovych pohle-
davek proti splatnym dariovym zévazkdm a pokud se
odloZend dart vztahuje k danim z pifjmd vyméfova-
nym stejnym finan¢nim Uradem.

OdloZena dariova pohledavka je vykazovana pouze
tehdy, je-li pravdépodobné, Ze v budoucnosti vznikne
dostate¢ny dariovy zéklad, proti kterému bude moci
byt uplatnéna.

2.15. Vykazovani vynosu a naklad(

Vynosy predstavuji redlnou hodnotu prijaté nebo
narokované protihodnoty za poskytnuté zbozi nebo
sluzby, po odecCtu dané z pfidané hodnoty, slev
a skont a po vylouéeni prodejd v rdmci skupiny.

Vynosy z prodeje zboZi jsou vykazany v okamziku,
kdy bylo zbozi dodano, to je, kdy pfesla na kupuiji-
ciho vyznamna rizika a odmeény z vlastnictvi zboZi,
¢astka vynos( je dohodnuta nebo spolehlivé uréena
a |ze predpoklddat pfijeti Uhrady. To obecné odpovi-
da okamziku, kdy jsou vyrobky a sluZby poskytnuty
zékaznikdm.

Soucasti naklad na prodané vyrobky, zboZi a sluz-

by jsou vyrobni ndklady a porizovaci naklady nakou-
peného zbozi.
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In accordance with IAS 12, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset if the deferred tax assets and li-
abilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority, and where the companies of the
Group have the enforceable right to offset the cur-
rent tax assets and liabilities.

The Group recognises deferred income tax assets in
the income statement to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised.

2.15. Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration re-
ceived or receivable for the goods sold and services
provided, net of Value Added Tax, rebates and dis-
counts and after elimination of sales within the Group.

Sales of goods are recognised only when the goods
have been delivered, that is, when the significant risks
and rewards have passed to the customer, the sales
price is agreed or determinable and receipt of pay-
ment is probable. This corresponds generally to the
delivery date when the products and services are pro-
vided through direct sales to consumers.

Costs of sales include production costs and costs of
goods purchased for resale.



Odbytové naklady vyplyvaji z odbytové Einnosti
a zahrnuji krome personalnich a reZijnich nakla-
dd také odpisy majetku z oblasti prodeje, naklady
spojené z expedici, néklady na propagaci, podporu
prodeje, prizkum trhu a sluzby zakaznikim.

Spravni naklady zahrnuji personainf a rezijni nakla-
dy a také odpisy pfifaditelného majetku ze spravnf
oblasti.

2.16. Leasing

Leasing je klasifikovan jako operativni leasing, jestlize
podstatna ¢ast rizik a odmen vyplyvajicich z viastnictvi
zstéva pronajimateli. Splatky uhrazené na zékladé
operativniho leasingu jsou Uctovany rovnomémeé do
wykazu zisku a ztraty po celou dobu trvani leasingu.

2.17. Vyznamné ucetni odhady a predpoklady

Skupina ¢ini odhady a predpoklady tykajici se bu-
doucnosti. Z toho vznikaji Ugetni odhady, jeZ ze samé
podstaty své definice jen malokdy odpovidajl prislus-
nym skute¢nym vysledkiim. Odhady a Usudky jsou
vedenim Skupiny prlilbézné vyhodnocovany a jsou
zalozeny na historickych zkuSenostech a jinych fakto-
rech, véetné ocekdvani budoucich udalosti, které jsou
za danych okolnost povazovany za primefené. Sku-
pina si neni védoma Zadnych odhad( a predpokladd,
u kterych existuje znacnd mira rizika, Ze béhem piristiho
Ucetniho obdobf dojde k vyznamnym Upravam ucetni
hodnoty aktiv a zavazkd.

Distribution expenses include personnel and material
costs, and depreciation and amortisation applicable
to the distribution function, as well as the costs of ship-
ping, advertising, sales promotions, market research
and customer service.

Administrative expenses include personnel costs and
overheads as well as depreciation and amortisation
applicable to administrative functions.

2.16. Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.17. Critical accounting estimates
and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions con-
cerning the future. The resulting accounting esti-
mates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions are
continuously assessed by management. The es-
timates and assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors, including the realistic
assessment of future developments. The Group is
not aware of any estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjust-
ment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabili-
ties within the next financial year.
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3. Informace o segmentech

Prvotni format vykaznictvi
- oborové segmenty

Ke konci roku 2009 identifikovala Skupina jeden
oborovy segment vykaznictvi, a to ten, ktery se za-
byva vyrobou, nékupem a prodejem stavebnich ma-
teriald. Ostatni aktivity se za samostatny segment
vykaznictvi nepovazuiji, protoze jejich vysledky, trzby
a celkové aktiva jsou v porovnani s identifikovatel-
nym segmentem nevyznamné.

Druhotny format vykaznictvi
- Uzemni segmenty

Sidlem Skupiny a vyrobni zékladnou je Ceska re-
publika. Trzby Skupiny jsou vytvéreny ve dvou ze-
mé&pisnych regionech: Ceska republika a Slovenské
republika. Ve Slovenské republice plsobila Skupina
prostfednictvim organizacnich slozky spole¢nosti
DEKTRADE a.s., DEKMETAL s.ro. a DEKSTONE
s.r.o. a DEKPROJEKT s.r.o. a prostfednictvim spo-
le¢nosti DEKTRADE SR s.ro.
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3. Segment reporting

Primary reporting format
— business segments

At the end of 2009, the Group identified only one
business segment — sales and production of con-
struction materials. Other activities do not constitute
a separate reportable segment as their financial re-
sults, revenues and total assets are not material in
comparison to the business segment identified.

Secondary reporting format
— geographical segments

The company and main production activities are
situated in the Czech Republic. Sales are generated
from two geographic regions: the Czech and Slovak
Republics. The Group operates in the Slovak Re-
public through the company DEKTRADE SR s.r.o.
and through the branches of the companies DEK-
TRADE a.s., DEKMETAL s.r.o. and DEKSTONE s.r.o0.
and DEKPROJEKT s.r.o.



3. Informace o segmentech

3. Segment reporting

v / .
(pokracovani) (continued)
2009 Ceska republika Slovenskd republika Celkem
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
Czech Republic Slovak Republic Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Trzby Sales 5550 970 745294 6 296 264
Vlydaje na pofizeni stalych aktiv. = Costs incurred to acquire 45 831 34 671 80 502
segment assets
Aktiva podle jejich umisténi Assets - according to their 7934771 164 968 8099 739
location
2008 Ceska republika Slovenska republika Celkem
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
Czech Republic Slovak Republic Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Trzby Sales 5771796 1081933 6853 729
Vlydaje na pofizeni stélych aktiv.~ Costs incurred to acquire 557 478 52762 610 240
segment assets
Aktiva podle jejich umisténi Assets - according to their 7 855 368 639 313 8 494 681
location
2007 Ceska republika Slovenska republika Celkem
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
Czech Republic Slovak Republic Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Trzby Sales 5014 003 615033 5629 036
Vydaje na pofizeni stélych aktiv ~ Costs incurred to acquire 613 992 17910 631902
segment assets
Aktiva podle jejich umisteénf Assets — according to their 7 655 854 424129 8079983

location
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4. Pozemky, budovy a zarizeni 4. Property, plants
and equipment

2007 Pozemky, Dopravni Provoznf Poskytnuté Celkem
budovy zafizenf a obchodnf zalohy tis. K&

a stavby a stroje vybaveni a nedokoncené

tis. K& tis. K& a inventar investice

tis. K& tis. K&
Land and Vehicles and Furniture, Payments on Total
buildings machinery fittings and account and CZK'000

CZK'000 CZK'000 equipment assets under

CZK'000 construction

CZK’'000

Porizovaci cena Costs

Stav k 1.1.2007 Balance as at 1 Jan 2007 148 702 216 263 24 566 16 754 406 285
PrirGstky Additions 600 313 297 030 96 973 386 542 1380858
Ubytky Disposals 0 -68 684 -69 992 -347 277 -485 953
Stav k 31.12.2007 Balance as at 31 Dec 2007 749 015 444 609 51 547 56 019 1301 190

Opravky a kumulované Accumulated depreciation
ztraty ze snizeni hodnoty and impairment losses

Stav k 1.1.2007 Balance as at 1 Jan 2007 -54 070 -125 659 -14 580 0 -194 309
Odpisy Depreciation -31 863 -116 855 -40 269 - -188 987
Snizeni hodnoty Impairment 0 0 0 0 0
Ubytky a pretiétovani Disposals and transfers 0 67 524 29 592 - 97 116
Stav k 31.12.2007 Balance as at 31 Dec 2007 -85 933 -174 990 -25 257 0 - 286 180
ZGstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 663 082 269 619 26 290 56 019 1015010
k 31.12.2007 as at 31 December 2007
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4. Pozemky, budovy a zarizeni
(pokracovani)

4. Property, plants
and equipment (continued)

2008 Pozemky, Dopravnf Provoznf Poskytnuté Celkem
budovy zarizenf a obchodnf zélohy tis. K&
a stavby a stroje vybaven( a nedokoncené
tis. K& tis. K& a inventdr investice
tis. K& tis. K&
Land and Vehicles and Furniture Payments on Total
buildings machinery fittings and account and CZK'000
CZK'000 CZK'000 equipment assets under
CZK'000 construction
CZK'000
Pofizovaci cena Costs
Stav k 1.1.2008 Balance as at 1 Jan 2008 749 015 444 609 51 547 56 019 1301 190
Prirtistky Additions 397 432 215212 13 553 331816 958 013
Ubytky Disposals -219 119 -68 146 6077 -356 092 -637 280
Stav k 31.12.2008 Balance as at 31 Dec 2008 927 328 591 675 71177 31743 1621923
Opravky a kumulované Accumulated depreciation
ztraty ze snizeni hodnoty and impairment losses
Stav k 1.1.2008 Balance as at 1 Jan 2008 -85 933 -174 990 -25 257 0 -286 180
Odpisy Depreciation -127 240 -156 364 -5412 - -289 016
Snizeni hodnoty Impairment 0 0 0 0 0
Ubytky a pretiétovani Disposals and transfers 87 279 57 131 -7 620 - 136 790
Stav k 31.12.2008 Balance as at 31 Dec 2008 -125 894 -274 223 -38 289 0 -438 406
ZUstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 801 434 317 452 32 888 31743 1183517
k 31.12.2008 as at 31 December 2008
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4. Pozemky, budovy a zarizeni
(pokracovani)

4. Property, plants
and equipment (continued)

2009 Pozemky, Dopravni Provozni Poskytnuté Celkem
budovy zarizenf a obchodnf zélohy tis. K&
a stavby a stroje vybaveni a nedokoncené
tis. K& tis. K& a inventdr investice
tis. K& tis. K&
Land and Vehicles and Furniture, Payments on Total
buildings machinery fittings and account and CZK'000
CZK'000 CZK'000 equipment assets under
CZK'000 construction
CZK'000
Pofizovaci cena Costs
Stav k 1.1.2009 Balance as at 1 Jan 2009 927 328 587 671 75181 31743 1621 923
Priristky Additions 66 039 56 416 2068 89 555 214078
Ubytky Disposals -4 396 -137 530 -16 230 -97 566 -255 722
Stav k 31.12.2009 Balance as at 31 Dec 2009 988 971 506 557 61019 23732 1580 279
Opravky a kumulované Accumulated depreciation
ztraty ze snizeni hodnoty and impairment losses
Stav k 1.1.2009 Balance as at 1 Jan 2009 -125 894 -273 997 -38 515 0 -438 406
Odpisy Depreciation -45 248 -155 098 -13 831 0 -214 177
Snizeni hodnoty Impairment 0 0 0 0 0
Ubytky a pretiétovani Disposals and transfers 534 91 400 16 230 0 108 164
Stav k 31.12.2009 Balance as at 31 Dec 2009 -170 608 -337 695 -36 116 0 -5 44 419
ZU(statkova hodnota Carrying amount 818 363 168 862 24 903 23732 1 035 860
k 31.12.2009 as at 31 December 2009
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4. Pozemky, budovy a zarizeni
(pokracovani)

Majetek pofizeny formou finanéniho leasingu zahr-
nuty do majetku:

4. Property, plants
and equipment (continued)

Property, plants and equipment acquired under
financial lease and included in ‘Property, plants and
equipment’:

k 31.12.2009 k 31.12.2008 k 31.12.2007

tis. k& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Pofizovaci cena Costs 297 357 326 037 154 670
Oprévky Depreciation -174 008 -102 627 -78 513
ZUstatkovd cena Carrying amount 123 349 223410 76 157

Celkové odpisy budov a zafizeni ve vysi 8 680 tis. K&
(2008: 6 768 tis. K&. 2007: 1 668 tis. KE&) byly zahr-
nuty do nakladd na prodané vyrobky, zboZi a sluz-
by, 197 691 tis. K& (2008: 187 241 tis. K&, 2007:
116 523 tis. K&) do odbytovych nakladl a 4 065 tis. K&
(2008: 2 020 tis. K&, 2007: 3 585 tis. KE) do spravnich
nakladd.

Celkovd vySe nakladl za operativni najem budov,
stroji a zarizeni (véetné oprav) ve vysi 96 402 tis. K&
(2008: 92 669 tis. K&, 2007: 22 844 tis. K&) je uvedena
ve wkazu zisku a ztréty (pozn. €. 27).

Bankovni Uvéry jsou zajistény zastavnim pravem na
nemovitostech a zafizeni v celkové vysi, v pofizova-
cf cené 443 774 tis. K& (2008: 451 686 tis. K&, 2007:
163 410 tis. K&) (pozn. ¢. 12).

Total depreciation of the property, plants and equip-
ment of CZK 8 680 ths. (2008: CZK 6 768 ths.,
2007: CZK 1 668 ths.) is included in the cost of
sales, CZK 197 691 ths. (2008: CZK 187 241 ths.,
2007: CZK 116 523 ths.) in distribution expenses,
and CZK 4 065 ths. (2008: CZK 2 020 ths., 2007:
CZK 3 585 ths.) in administrative expenses..

Lease rentals (including repairs) amounting to
CZK 96 402 ths. (2008: CZK 92 669 ths., 2007:
CZK 22 844 ths.) relating to the lease of property,
plants and equipment are included in the income
statement (note 27).

Bank borrowings are secured on land and
buildings to the value of CZK 443 774 ths. (2008:
CZK 451 686 ths., 2007: 163 410 ths. CZK)
(note 12).
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5. Nehmotny majetek

5. Intangible assets

2007 Goodwill Software Jiny nehmotny Celkem
tis. K& tis. K& majetek tis. K&
tis. K&
Goodwill Software  Other intangible Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 assets CZK'000
CZK'000
Pofizovaci cena Costs
Stav k 1.1.2007 Balance as at 1 Jan 2007 0 4 960 1408 6 368
PrirCistky Additions 4867 118 2992 5344 4875 454
Ubytky Disposals 0 0 0 0
Stav k 31.12.2007 Balance as at 31 Dec 2007 4867 118 7 952 6 752 4 881 822
Opravky a kumulované Accumulated amortisation
ztraty ze snizeni hodnoty and impairment losses
Stav k 1.1.2007 Balance as at 1 Jan 2007 0 -3 555 -1408 -4 963
Odpisy Amortisation 0 -1 0589 0 -1 059
Snizeni hodnoty Impairment 0 0 0 0
Ubytky a pretiétovani Disposals and transfers 0 0 0 0
Stav k 31.12.2007 Balance as at 31 Dec 2007 0 -4 614 -1 408 -6 022
ZGstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 4867 118 3338 5344 4 875 800

k 31.12.2007

as at 31 December 2007
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5. Nehmotny majetek

5. Intangible assets

v / .
(pokraCovani) (continued)
2008 Goodwill Software Jiny nehmotny Celkem
tis. K& tis. K& majetek tis. K&
tis. K&
Goodwill Software  Other intangible Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 assets CZK'000
CZK'000
Pofizovaci cena Costs
Stav k 1.1.2008 Balance as at 1 Jan 2008 4867 118 7 952 6 752 4 881 822
PrirGstky Additions 91 410 637 185 92 232
Ubytky Disposals -41 222 -1453 -6 289 -48 964
Stav k 31.12.2008 Balance as at 31 Dec 2008 4917 306 7 136 648 4 925 090
Opravky a kumulované Accumulated amortisation
ztraty ze snizeni hodnoty and impairment losses
Stav k 1.1.2008 Balance as at 1 Jan 2008 0 -4 614 -1 408 -6 022
Odpisy Amortisation 0 -1360 -24 -1384
Snizeni hodnoty Impairment 0
Ubytky a pretitovani Disposals and transfers 0 984 945 1929
Stav k 31.12.2008 Balance as at 31 Dec 2008 0 -4 990 -487 -5 477
ZUstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 4917 306 2146 161 4919613

k 31.12.2008

as at 31 December 2008
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5. Nehmotny majetek

5. Intangible assets

4 / .
(pokracovani) (continued)
2009 Goodwill Software Jiny nehmotny Celkem
tis. K& tis. K& majetek tis. K&
tis. K&
Goodwill Software  Other intangible Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 assets CZK'000
CZK'000
Porizovaci cena Costs
Stav k 1.1.2009 Balance as at 1 Jan 2009 4917 306 7136 648 4 925 090
Priristky Additions 0 235 50 883 51118
Ubytky Disposals -48 220 -1 -4 -48 225
Stav k 31.12.2009 Balance as at 31 Dec 2009 4 869 086 7370 51527 4 927 983
Opravky a kumulované Accumulated amortisation
ztraty ze snizeni hodnoty and impairment losses
Stav k 1.1.2009 Balance as at 1 Jan 2009 0 -4 990 -487 -5 477
Odpisy Amortisation 0 -1198 -9 385 -10 583
Snizeni hodnoty Impairment 0 0 0 0
Ubytky a pretiétovani Disposals and transfers 0 0 5 5
Stav k 31.12.2009 Balance as at 31 Dec 2009 0 -6 188 -9 867 -16 055
ZUstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 4 869 086 1182 41 660 4911928

k 31.12.2009

as at 31 December 2009

Odpisy nehmotného majetku ve vysi. 61 tis. K&
(2008: 57 tis K&, 2007: 11 tis. K&) byly zahrnu-
ty do nédkladd na prodané vyrobky, zboZi a sluz-
by, 1 421 tis. K& do odbytovych nakladl (2008:
1 288tis. K&, 2007: 789 tis. K& a 41 360 tis. K&
(2008: 39 tis. K&, 2007: 259 tis. K&) do spravnich
nakladd. Jiny nehmotny majetek zahrnuje ocenitel-
na prdva, zalohy na pofizeni nehmotného majetku
a nedokoncené investice.
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Amortisation of intangible assets of CZK 61 ths.
(2008: CZK 57 ths., 2007: CZK 11 ths.) is included
in the cost of sales, CZK 1 421 ths. in distribution ex-
penses (2008: CZK 1288 ths., 2007: CZK 789 ths.)
and CZK 41 360 ths. (2008: CZK 39 ths., 2007:
CZK 259 ths.) in administration expenses. Other
intangible assets include valuable rights, payments
on account and intangible assets under course of
construction.



Goodwill se vztahuje k nasledujicim podnikovym
kombinacim:

Goodwill relates to following business combina-
tions:

VloZena spolec¢nost 2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

Acquired company 2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Dektrade a.s. 4 825 895 4 825 895 4 825 895
Stavebniny Matyas a.s. 0 0 41223
G SERVIS CZ s ro. 91 411 91 411 0
Energo Helvikovice -48 220 0 0
Total 4 869 086 4917 306 4867 118

Testy na snizeni hodnoty goodwillu

Pro ucely testovani snizeni hodnoty je goodwill
testovdn metodou kapitalizace vynosd. Ocenéni
touto metodou vychazi z pfedpokladu, Ze jednou
z vlastnosti jméni je pfinos ve formé opakované do-
sahovaného zisku. Z tohoto zisku je odvozena jeho
hodnota jako celku. Tyto vypocty pouZivajl projekce
hospodarskych vysledk( zalozené na finan¢nich
rozpoctech schvélenych vedenim na obdobi 5 let.

Impairment tests of goodwiill

The capitalisation rate method is used for the purpo-
se of impairment testing of goodwill. This method is
based on the assumption that the principal feature
of equity is to bring benefits in the form of repeated
profits. These profits are thus the basis of valuation
of the total. The calculations use a projection of the
Company’s profits for a period of 5 years as appro-
ved by the Company’s management.
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6. Pohledavky z obchodnich
vztah( a ostatni pohleddvky

6. Trade and other receivables

k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
As at As at As at
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Pohledavky z obchodnich vztahd Trade receivables
— do splatnosti current 913212 848 702 774 828
— po splatnosti vice nez 30 dnf — overdue more than 30 days 201 019 205 348 322 929
Zalohy placené Prepayments 9 507 9378 9313
Pohledavky za spfiznénymi stranami  Receivables from related parties 0 0 278
Opravnd polozka na snizeni hodnoty ~ Provision for impairment of trade -145105 -101 776 -73 536

receivables
Pohledavky z obchodnich vztaht Trade receivables 978 633 961 652 1033812
- netto - net

Ostatni pohledavky Other receivables 223 452 234 701 198 937
Pohledavky celkem Receivables total 1202 085 1196 353 1232749

Vzhledem ke kratkodobé povaze pohledavek z ob-
chodnich vztah( se bliZi jejich Ucetni hodnota (po
pfipadném sniZeni o opravnou polozku) realné hod-
noté. Pohledavky jsou zastaveny zastavnim pravem
(pozn. €. 12). Ostatni pohledavky zahrnuji zejména
pohledavky vici zaméstnancim. Na ostatni pohle-
davky nejsou vazdna Zadna vyznamna omezeni z ti-
tulu uzivaciho prava.
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Fair value of trade receivables approximates (after de-
duction of provision for impairment) to the accounting
value as receivables have short-term nature. Bank bo-
rrowings are secured on receivables (note 12). Other
receivables mainly include receivables to employees.
There are no significant restrictions relating to other
receivables.



Pohledavky z obchodnich vztahl a ostatni pohle-

davky Ize rozdélit podle mény:

Trade and other receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK’'000 CZK’000 CZK'000

Pohleddvky v CZK Receivables in CZK 1030 527 1009 502 1225687
Pohleddvky v SKK* Receivables in SKK* 0 185917 7 062
Pohleddvky v EUR Receivables in EUR 171 558 934 0
Celkem Total 1202 085 1196 353 1232749

* meéna SKK byla k 1.1.2009 nahrazena ménou EUR, a to v kurzu 1 EUR za 30,126 SKK
* SKK was transformed to EUR as at 1 January 2009 in the foreign exchange rate 1 EUR for 30,126 SKK

Analyza opravné polozky je nasleduijici:

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment

of trade receivables are as follows:

2009 2008 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

2009 2008 2007

CZK’'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Stavk 1.1. Balance as at 1 January 101 776 73 536 42 514
Tvorba opravné polozky Provision for receivables impairment 51710 51628 35272
ZruSeni opravné polozky Unused amounts reversed 0 0
Pouzitl na odpis Receivables written off -8 381 -23 388 -4 250
Stav k 31.12. Balance as at 31 December 145105 101 776 73 536

Tvorba a zruseni opravné poloZky je zahrnuta do
,ostatnich Cistych ziskd a ztrat* do vykazu zisk(
a ztrat (pozn. ¢. 18). Opravna poloZka je pouZita na
odpis v okamziku, kde se jiz neoCekava, ze bude
pohledavka nebo jeji ¢ast uhrazena a tato pohle-

davka je odepsana.

The creation and release of provision for impairment
is included in ‘Other net (losses)/ gains’ in the consoli-
dated income statement (note 18). Amounts charged
to the provision account are generally written off, when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash

and the receivable is written off.
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7. Zasoby 7. Inventories

Struktura zdsob Structure of inventories k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Materidl Materials 58 283 97 774 88 956
Viyrobky Finished goods 9534 16 903 11102
Zbozi Goods for resale 780 435 954 508 732 473
Zalohy na pofizeni zasob Advances paid for inventory 3276 11902 26 709
Opravna poloZka k zadsobam Provision for diminution in value -4 081 -4 863 -2.949
Zasoby celkem Inventories total 847 447 1076 224 856 291
Hodnota zdsob vykdzdna v nékladech v roce 2009 The amount of inventories recognised as an ex-
¢inila 4 916 485 tis. K& (2008: 5 241 615 tis. KC. pense during 2009 was CZK 4 916 485 ths. (2008:

2007: 4 234 671 tis. K&). CZK 5 241 615 ths., 2007: CZK 4 234 671 ths.).
7/ .
8. Penize 8. Cash and cash equivalents

k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Penize v hotovosti Cash in hand 57019 6 554 12 636
Usty v bankéch Bank accounts 21948 93 303 74 308
Celkem Total 78 967 99 857 86 944
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9. Zakladni kapital 9. Share capital

Upsany zakladni kapitdl se skldada z 275 100 kme- The issued share capital consists of 275 100 ordi-
novych akcil ve jmenovité hodnoté 20 tis. K&, plné nary shares at par value of CZK 20 ths. per share,
splacenych. fully repayable.

Hlavni akcionafi (s podilem vice nez 20 %): The primary shareholders exceeding 20% of the

share capital are as follows:

31. prosince 2009 31. prosince 2008 31. prosince 2007

% % %

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

% % %

Ing. Vit Kutnar Ing. Vit Kutnar 71 69 69
Ostatni akcionafi (méné nez 20%)  Other shareholders (less than 20 %) 29 31 31
Celkem Total 100 100 100
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10. Fondy

10. Retained earnings and
other reserves

k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12. 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK’'000 CZK’'000 CZK'000

Kapitdlové fondy Other capital reserves -101 984 -103 323 7 500

Zakonny rezervni fond Statutory reserve fund 22510 22 002 21700

Ostatni fondy ze zisku Retained earnings 339 776 182 481 27 077

Konsolida¢ni kurzovy rozdil Consolidation forex fund -233 70 0

Zisk bézného obdobf Net profit/(loss) for the 140 108 164 198 157 721
current period

Fondy celkem Total 400 177 265 428 213 998

Zakonny rezervni fond Ize pouzit vyhradné ke kryti
ztrat. V souladu s pfislusnymi ustanovenimi Obchod-
niho zékoniku Ceské republiky vytvaii spole¢nosti
Skupiny zékonny rezervni fond ve vysi 5% z Cistého
zisku ro¢né, dokud vySe tohoto fondu nedosahne
nejméne 20% jejiho zakladniho kapitalu u akciové
spolecnosti a 10% u spolec¢nosti s ru¢enim ome-
zenym. V souladu s pfislusnymi ustanovenimi Ob-
chodniho zékoniku rozhodne o nekonsolidovaném
vysledku hospodaren( spole¢nosti za rok 2009 val-
na hromada spole¢nosti.
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The statutory reserve fund may not be distributed
to shareholders, but may be used to offset losses.
The Company is required by the Commercial Code
of Czech Republic to transfer 5% of its annual net
profits to the statutory reserve fund until the balance
of this reserve reaches 20% (limited liability com-
pany (s.r.o.): 10%) of the issued share capital. In
accordance with relating articles of the Commercial
Code, the non-consolidated net profit for 2009 is
approved and allocated by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.



11. Zavazky z obchodnich
vztah( a ostatni zavazky
(kromé finan¢nich zavazk()

11. Trade payables and other

liabilities

(except of financial liabilities)

k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Zavazky z obchodnich vztahd Trade payables 303 202 168 573 253 456
celkem

Zévazky za spiiznénymi stranami  Liabilities to related parties 0 0 0

Dariové zdvazky Tax liabilities 34 202 49934 69 412

Zavazky vici zaméstnanciim Liabilities to employees 23188 24 894 22019

Socidlni pojisténi Social insurance 11735 12975 13410

Kratkodobé zdvazky - leasing Leases — current portion 40 840 84 999 99 542

Ostatni kratkodobé zavazky Other current liabilities 90 526 103 435 162 274

Kratkodobé zavazky celkem Current liabilities total 503 693 444 810 620 113

OdloZena dan Deferred tax 1212 857 519

Ostatnf dlouhodobé zavazky - Leases - non-current portion 0 42 702 133 702
leasing

Dlouhodobé zavazky celkem Non-current liabilities total 1212 43 559 134 221

Zavazky celkem Liabilities total 504 905 488 369 754 334

(kromé finanénich)

(except financial)
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11. Zavazky z obchodnich
vztah( a ostatni zavazky
(kromé finan¢nich zavazk( —
pokracovani)

Dlouhodobé zavazky se tykaji zavazkd z finanéniho
leasingu a jsou diskontovany na souc¢asnou hodnotu
za pouziti vnitfni rokové miry leasingového vztahu.
Ostatni uvedené zdvazky jsou kratkodobé. Redina
hodnota odpovida vykazovanym Ucetnim hodnotdam.
Ostatni kratkodobé zavazky jsou vétSinou dohadné
Ucty pasivni (sluzby a vyrobky poskytnuté Skuping,
ale nevyfakturované do konce obdobi).

Zavazky Ize rozdélit podle mény:

11. Trade payables and other
liabilities

(except of financial liabilities —
continued)

Non-current liabilities relating to leases are dis-
counted to the current value using the internal rate
of return of the leasing agreements. Other above-
mentioned liabilities are current. The fair value of
current liabilities approximates the carrying value in
all material aspects. Other current liabilities include
mainly estimates (products and services provided
to the Group, but not invoiced as at the year-end).

Liabilities are denominated in the following curren-
cies:

k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Zavazky v CZK Liabilities in CZK 439 073 411 522 703 097
Zavazky v SKK Liabilities in SKK 0 3774 2333
Zavazky v EUR Liabilities in EUR 62 697 70 483 47 693
Zévazky v USD Liabilities in USD 91 2590 1178
Zavazky v ostatnich méndch Liabilities in other currencies 3044 0 33
Celkem Total 504 905 488 369 754 334
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12. Kratkodobé a dlouhodobé
financni zavazky

12. Current and non-current
financial liabilities

k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Bankovn( Uvéry — dlouhodobé Bank borrowings — non-current 366 868 440 402 273 282
Bankovn( Uvery - kratkodobé Bank borrowings — current 1325789 1798 482 1336 369
PGjcky od spiiznénych stran Borrowings from related parties 0 0 0
Celkem Total 1692 657 2238 884 1609 651

V8echny poskytnuté tvéry a pljcky jsou poskytova-
ny v ¢eskych korundch(1 692 657 tis.KE v roce 2009,
2228 242 tis. K¢ v roce 2008, 1 609 651 tis. KE v roce
2007) a v eurech (0 tis. K& v roce 2009, 10 642 tis. K&
v roce 2008 a 0 tis. K& v roce 2007). Vzhledem ke
kratkodobé povaze vétsiny bankovnich uGvérl, se
jejich Ucetni hodnota bliZi rediné hodnoté (dopad
diskontovani neni vyznamny). Bankovni Uvéry jsou
zajistény zdstavnim pravem k nemovitostem (pozn.
€. 4), k pohledavkam (pozn. ¢€. 6),vinkulaci pojistného
plnéni u zastavenych nemovitosti, biankosménkami
a ru¢enim spolecnosti ve Skupiné.

All borrowings are denominated in Czech crowns
(CZK 1 692 657 ths. in 2009, CZK 2 228 242 ths. in
2008, CZK 1 609 651 ths. in 2007) respectively in
euro (CZK 0 ths. in 2009, CZK 10 642 ths. in 2008
and CZK 0 ths. in 2007). The fair value of current
borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the
impact of discounting is not significant. Bank bor-
rowings are secured by land and buildings (note 4),
by receivables (note 6), the blockage of payment of
insurance benefits on secured land and buildings,
blanc bills and the subsequent cover of the Group’s
companies.
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13. Odlozené danove zavazky

13. Deferred tax assets and

/ . oy .

a pohledavky liabilities
k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
As at As at As at
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK’'000
OdloZené dariové pohledavky Deferred tax assets 23 452 19117 10883
Odlozené dariové zavazky Deferred tax liabilities -1212 -857 -519
Celkem Total 22 240 18 260 10 364

Zmény odloZenych dariovych pohleddvek a zavaz-
k{ v daném obdobi mély nésledujici strukturu:

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:

Odpisy Opravné Odcitatelné Celkem
tis. K& polozky ztréty tis. K&
tis. K& tis. K&
Depreciation Provisions Tax deductible Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 losses CZK’'000
CZK’'000
Stav k 1.1.2007 Balance as at 1 Jan 2007 5684 4598 10 282
Zaluctovani na vrub (-)/ ve Credited/(debited) to the income -853 906 53
prospéch vykazu zisku a ztraty statement
Zauctovani na vrub (-)/ ve Charged to equity 29 0 0 29
prospéch vlastniho kapitalu
Stav k 31.12.2007 Balance as at 31 Dec 2007 4 860 5504 10 364
Zauctovani na vrub (-)/ ve Credited/(debited) to the income 1068 6 841 0 7 909
prospéch vykazu zisku a ztraty statement
Zauctovani na vrub (-)/ ve Charged to equity -13 0 0 -13
prospéch vlastniho kapitalu
Stav k 31.12.2008 Balance as at 31 Dec 2008 5915 12 345 18 260
Zauctovani na vrub (-)/ ve Credited/(debited) to the income 5793 -1719 4 074
prospéch vykazu zisku a ztraty statement
Zauctovani na vrub (-)/ ve Charged to equity -94 0 0 -94
prospéch vlastniho kapitalu
Stav k 31.12.2009 Balance as at 31 Dec 2009 11614 10 626 0 22 240
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14. Penézni toky

vy s

Penézni toky z provozni ¢innosti jsou odvozeny ne-
pfimo z vysledku pfed zdanénim. Nasledné je vy-
sledek ocistén o nepenézni operace (napf. odpisy)
a zmény provozniho kapitalu.

Penézni toky z financni ¢innosti zahrnuiji prijmy a vy-
daje z finan¢nich Gvérd a z pljéek a vyplacené di-
videndy.

15. Trzby

14. Cash flow

Cash flow from operating activities is derived in-
directly from profit before tax. Profit before tax is
adjusted to eliminate non-cash expenses (mainly
depreciation and amortisation) and income and
changes in working capital.

Financing activities include outflows and inflows

from the bank and other borrowings and outflows of
cash from dividend payments.

15. Sales

2009 2008 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

2009 2008 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Trzby za zboz{ Sales of goods for resale 5904 793 5715479 5395 437
Trzby za sluzby Sales of services 194 614 261843 123 842
Trzby za vlastni vyrobky Sales of finished goods 196 857 876 407 109 757
Celkem Total 6 296 264 6853 729 5629 036
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16. Ostatni provozni vynosy

16. Other operating income

2009 2008 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

2009 2008 2007

CZK'000 CZK’'000 CZK'000

Smluvni pokuty a troky Contractual penalties and 3 289 1359 532
z prodlenf interests on late payments

Ostatnf Others 30 996 23980 15673

Celkem Total 34 285 25 339 16 205

17. Ostatni provozni naklady

17. Other operating expenses

2009 2008 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

2009 2008 2007

CZK’'000 CZK’'000 CZK’'000

Poplatky a ostatni dané Charges and other taxes 13 488 10 956 6 487
Ostatnf Others 1150 1293 1281
Celkem Total 14 638 12249 7768
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18. Ostatni Cisté ztraty/(zisky)

18. Other net (losses)/ gains

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Inventurn( rozdily zdsoby Inventory — shortages and surpluses 262 1464 2507
zisk (-) / ztréta (+) gain(-) /loss(+)
Tvorba a rozpousténi rezerv Creation and release of provisions 33509 31649 31065
a opravnych polozek
Odepsané pohleddvky Receivables written off 5198 16 855 1142
Prodej majetku a materidlu Sale of non-current assets -7 647 -39 503 -3 775
zisk (-) / ztréta(+) gain(-) / loss(+)
Prodej materialu Sale of unused material 0 0 760
zisk (-) / ztrata(+) gain (-) / loss (+)
Kurzové rozdily netto Foreign exchange differences — net -2 998 -47 669 147
zisk (-) / ztréta (+) gain (-)/ loss (+)
Ostatnf Others 0 0 0
Celkem Total 28 324 -37 204 31 846
. 4 / 7 . .
19. Financni vysledek 19. Financial result
2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Urokové vynosy Interest income 11 238 61
Ostatni finanéni vynosy Other financial income 5547 8750 7 760
Finanéni vynosy celkem Financial income total 5558 8988 7 821
Urokové naklady Interest expenses 59 734 107 735 52 563
Ostatni finan¢ni néklady Other financial expenses 5244 3755 2768
Finanéni naklady celkem Financial expenses total 64 978 111 490 55 331
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Vv v/ o .

20. Dan z primu 20. Taxation
2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Splatnd dari Current tax -48 020 -83 563 -64 684
OdloZena dan Deferred tax 4074 7909 53
Celkem Total -43 946 -75 654 -64 631

Zékonna sazba dané z pijmé v Ceské republice
pro zdanovaci obdobi roku 2009 cinila 20% (2008:
21%, 2007: 24%). V roce 2009 byly odlozené dane
vypocteny darfiovou sazbou 19% (2008: 19,5%,
2007: 20%), které odpovida zdkonné dariové sazbé
stanovené pro budouci obdobi, kdy dojde k realiza-
ci odloZené dané. Spole¢nost nema zadné nevyuzi-
té dariové ztraty z minulych let.
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The statutory income tax rate in the Czech Repub-
lic for the 2009 assessment period was 20% (2008:
21% and 2007: 24%). In 2009, deferred income ta-
xes attributable to the Czech tax jurisdiction were
measured at a tax rate of 19% (2008: 19.5%, 2007:
20%) that corresponds with the statutory tax rates
enacted for the future periods when realisation of
deferred tax assets and liabilities is expected. The
Group does not have any tax-deductible losses
from previous periods.



21. Kurzové zisky a ztraty 21. Foreign exchange gains

and losses
Do vykazu zisk( a ztrat byly zahrnuty ndsledujici The following amounts were included in the conso-
Castky: lidated income statement:
2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Kurzové zisky -provozni Foreign exchange gains 10177 22744 20014
-operating
Kurzové ztraty-provozni Foreign exchange losses - -7179 -70 413 -20 161
operating
Kurzové zisky/ztréty — finanénf Foreign exchange gains/losses 0 0 0
— financial
Celkem zisky(+)/ ztraty (-) Total gains(+)/ losses (-) 2998 -47 669 -147

22. éisty zisk na akcii 22. Earnings per share

Cisty zisk na akcii (,earnings per share") se vypo- Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
¢ita vydélenim Cistého zisku Skupiny vazenym prd- profit attributable to equity holders of the Group by
mérem poctu kmenovych akcil. the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

2009 2008 2007
2009 2008 2007
Cisty zisk Skupiny Net Group profit attributable to 140 108 164 198 157 721
(tis. K&) equity holders (CZK ths.)
Pocet akeif No. of shares 275100 275100 275100
éisty zisk na akcii Net earnings per share 509 597 573
(v K& na akecii) (CZK per share)
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23. Dividendy

Pro rok konéici 31.prosince 2009 neni zatim navrze-
na valné hromadé ke schvaleni Zadna vyplata divi-
dend. V roce 2009 nebyly vyplaceny zadné dividen-
dy (v roce 2008 byly vyplaceny dividendy v celkové
vySi 10 224 tis. K&, 2007: 0 tis. K&).

24. Podminéne zavazky

Skupina ma podminéné zavazky viéi bance (pozn.
€. 12), ostatni zaruky a zalezitosti vyplyvajici z béZzné
¢innosti. Neogekava se, Ze z téchto podminénych
zavazk( vzniknou néjaké vyznamné zavazky.

Finanéni Ufady jsou opravnény provést kontrolu
Ucetnich zédznam( kdykoliv v pribéhu 5 let nésle-
dujicich po skonceni zdariovaciho obdobf a v na-
vaznosti na to mohou dodate¢né vyméfit dan z pfi-
jm0 a pendle. Finan¢ni Ufad neproved! v roce 2009
Z&dnou kontrolu podkladd spole¢nosti k dariovym
pfiznanim k dani z pffjmd. Vedeni Skupiny si nenf
védomo Zadnych okolnosti, které by v budoucnosti
mohly vést ke vzniku vyznamného potencialniho za-

vazku vyplyvajictho z téchto darfiovych kontrol.

112

23. Dividends

For the year ended 31 December 2009, no divi-
dends have yet been proposed for approval to the
annual general meeting. In 2009 no dividends were
paid (2008: CZK 10 224 ths.. 2007: CZK 0 ths.)

24. Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent liabilities in respect of
bank borrowings (note 12) and other obligations
arisen from its normal course of business. It is not
expected that these contingencies will cause any
significant liabilities in the foreseeable future.

The tax authorities may at any time inspect the ac-
counting books and records within five years sub-
sequent to the reported tax year, and may impo-
se additional tax assessments and penalties. The
tax authorities did not perform any control of the
Group’s accounting books and records relating to
income tax in 2009. The management of the Com-
pany is not aware of any circumstances that could
lead to any significant contingent liability relating to
these taxation controls in the future.



25. Smluvni pfisliby a jiné
budouci zavazky

K 31. prosinci 2009 nebyly sjednany Zadné vydaje
na nakup dlouhodobych hmotnych a nehmotnych
aktiv, ke kterym ale dosud nedoslo.

Skupina si na zékladé nezrusitelnych smluv o ope-
rativnim leasingu rovnéz pronajima rlizné nemovi-
tosti. Najemni smlouvy jsou obvykle uzavieny na
dobu neurcitou, v pfipadé smiuv na dobu urcitou je
Ize obnovit po uplynutf jejich platnosti za obvyklych
trznich podminek. V pfipade, Ze by Skupina hodlala
tyto smlouvy ukoncit, musf je vypovedét obvykle ve
Ihcté nejméné 3 a nejvice 12 mésict. Udaje uvede-
né v tabulce niZze nebyly diskontovany na soucas-
nou hodnotu, nebot vétsina ndjemnich smiuv obsa-
huje inflaénf doloZku.

Celkové minimaini splatky ndjemného z nezrusitel-
nych smluv o operativnim leasingu jsou ndsledujici:

25. Commitments

No capital expenditure was contracted but not yet
incurred for at the balance sheet date.

The group leases various offices and warehouses
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.
Lease terms are usually of indefinite duration, but
where leases are for fixed periods, agreements are re-
newable at the end of the lease period at market rate.
If the Group decides for the denunciation of these
agreements, the usual length of a notice of termination
period is between 3 and 12 months. Data disclosed in
the table below is not discounted to the present value
as the majority of lease agreements include an infla-
tion clause.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2009 2008 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

2009 2008 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Splatné do 1 roku No later than 1 year 88 105 93577 69 741

Splatné v obdobi 1-5 let Later than 1 year and no later 299 434 321 057 254 663
than 5 years

Splatné za vice nez 5let Later than 5 years 75 524 78 226 62 933

ro¢né roéné roéné

annually annually annually

* Udaje konsolidované zavérky DEKTRADE | * data from consolidated financial statements of DEKTRADE
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26. Podnikové kombinace

V roce 2009 byla ze spole¢nosti DEKWOQOD s.r.o.
vyClenéna ¢ast podniku, ktera byla vioZena do za-
kladniho kapitalu jeji nove zaloZené dcefiné spolec-
nosti ENERGO HELVIKOVICE a.s. Vklad &&sti pod-
niku byl ocenén znaleckym posudkem na 52 mil. K&.
Tato dcefina spole¢nost byla zapsana v obchodnim
rejstitku dne 24. biezna 2009 pod IC 285 47 551,
oddil B, vlozka 15128 a byla v roce proddna v rdmci
skupiny ze spole¢nosti DEKWOOD s.r.o0. do spole¢-
nosti POLYDEK a.s.

27. Druhové ¢lenéni naklad(’ —
doplnuijici informace

26. Business combinations

In 2009, the part of the company DEKWOOD s r.o.
was split off and was contributed to the share capital
of the newly established company ENERGO HELVI-
KOVICE a.s. (the subsidiary of DEKWOOD s.r.0.).
The contribution of this part of the company was
evaluated by an authorised expert to the amount
of CZK 52 mil. The subsidiary was incorporated
in the Commercial Register on 24 March 2009 un-
der ID Number 285 47 551, section B Insert 15128
and was sold within the Group from the company
DEKWOOD s.r.o. to the company POLYDEK a.s.

27. Expenses by nature —
additional information

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Materialové naklady- Material costs — material 5024 508 5433 697 4504 168
spotrebovany material, consumed, cost of goods and
nakupované zbozi a sluzby production related services
Osobni naklady Personnel costs 605 768 607 371 421 888
— Mzdové naklady —Wages and salaries 461 511 442 157 306 490
— Ostatni osobnfi naklady — Other personnel costs 144 257 165214 115 398
Odpisy majetku Depreciation and amortisation 210 436 195 793 122 835
Ostatni sluzby Other services 203 401 324 808 286 874
— z toho operativni ndjem — from this operating lease 96 402 92 669 22 844
Naklady na prodané vyrobky,  Total cost of sales, distribution 6044 113 6 561 669 5335 765
zbozi a sluzby, spravni and administration expenses
a odbytové naklady
Pocet zaméstnanci* Number of employees* 1105 1323 1025

* prdmérmy prepocteny stav zaméstnancl | * average number of employees (including temporary employees)
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28. Transakce se spfiznenymi
stranami

Spfiznéné strany jsou dle IAS 24 definovany jako
strany, které je spole¢nost schopna kontrolovat
nebo pfes které mlze uplatriovat vyznamny vliv
nebo strany, které jsou schopny kontrolovat nebo
uplatriovat vyznamny vliv pfes spole¢nost.

Skupina se v letech 2007- 2009 nepodilela na zad-
nych transakcich se spfiznénymi stranami.

Informace o odménach kli¢ovym ¢lenlim vedent:

28. Related-party transactions

Related parties are, in accordance with IAS 24, par-
ties that are controlled by or over which the Compa-
ny has significant influence or parties that control or
have significant influence over the Company.

The Group did not participate in any transactions
with related parties during 2007-2009.

Information on key management personnel remune-
ration:

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Platy a ostatnf kratkodobé Salaries and other short-term 5285 8084 22 472
zameéstnanecké poZitky employee benefits
Pozitky souvisejici s ukoncenim  Post-employment benefits 0 0 0
pracovniho poméru
Jiné dlouhodobé Other long term employee 0 0 0
zamestnanecké poZzitky benefits
Celkem Total 5285 8 084 22472

Do skupiny Kkli¢ovych ¢lend vedeni Skupiny je
zahrnuto predstavenstvo, dozor¢i rada a ve-
douci zaméstnanci Skupiny, ktefi maji ze své
pozice pravomoc a odpovédnost za planovani,
fizeni a kontrolovani ¢innosti Skupiny. V roce
2009 se jednalo o 5 osob (2008: 7 osob, 2007:
13 osob).

The key management of the Group includes the Bo-
ard of Directors, the Supervisory Board and the ma-
nagement of the Group that has authority over and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Group. In 2009, key management
personnel comprised 5 people (2008: 7 people, 2007:
13 people).
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28. Transakce se spfiznenymi
stranami (pokracovani)

Kromé vySe uvedeného nebylo v pribéhu let 2007-
2009 akcionardm, ¢lendm statutdrnich a dozordich
organ( a fidicim zaméstnancim poskytnuto Zadné
dalsf plnénf ani v penézni, ani v naturdlnf formé (kro-
mé vyplacenych dividend — viz. pozn. ¢. 23).

Skupina méla na konci tc¢etniho obdobf tyto zdstat-
ky se spfiznénymi stranami:

28. Related-party transactions
(continued)

Besides the above stated remuneration and bene-
fits, there was no other consideration neither in cash
nor in kind provided to the Company’s shareholders,
members of the Company’s boards or management
in 2007-2009 (exception — dividends paid, note 23).

The following Group related party balances were out-
standing as at:

k 31.12. 2009 k 31.12. 2008 k 31.12.2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

As at As at As at

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK’'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Pohleddvky Receivables 0 0
Zévazky Liabilities 0 0
PGjcky Loans and borrowings 0 278

Pohledavky a zavazky vznikaji zejména z béznych
obchodnich transakei, ndjemného a pdj¢ek. Pohle-
davky nejsou zajistené a nejsou pod Urokovym zati-
Zenim. PUjcky jsou splatné do 1 roku a jsou zatizeny
trzni drokovou mirou.

29. Ostatni informace

Odmény uhrazené auditordm za Ucetni obdo-
bi v roce 2009 ¢inily 402 tis. K¢ (v roce 2008: 309
tis. K&, v roce 2007: 170 tis. K&). Odmény se tykajf
ovéren( ucetnich zavérek spolec¢nosti skupiny DEK
a ovéreni konsolidované ucetni zaverky.

116

Receivables and liabilities arise from the normal cour-
se of business and rentals. Receivables are not secu-
red and are not interest bearing. Loans are short-term
loans and bear interest at market interest rates.

29. Other information

Compensation paid to auditors for the 2009 accoun-
ting period was CZK 402 ths. (2008: CZK 309 ths.,
2007: CZK 170 ths.) for the auditing of the financial
statements of companies within the DEK Group and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.



30. Vyznamneé udalosti, které
nastaly po datu konsolidované
ucetni zaverky

Po datu ucetni zaverky nedoslo k Zadnym udalos-
tem které by mély zdvazny dopad na konsolido-
vanou Ucetni zavérku za rok koncici 31. prosince
2009.

4 v

Schvaleni ucetni zaverky

Tato konsolidovana Ucetni zavérka byla predsta-
venstvem schvalena k predloZeni valné hromadé
a z povéreni predstavenstva podepsana:

V Praze, dne 10. kvétna 2010

Ing. Vit Kutnar

predseda predstavenstva
Chairman of the Board of Directors

30. Significant events after the
balance sheet date

No events occurred after the balance sheet date
that should have a significant impact on the con-
solidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

Statutory approvals

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for submission to the general meeting of
shareholders by the Company’s Board of Directors
and have been signed on their behalf.

Prague, on 10 May 2010

/

Ing. Petra Kutnarova, MBA
financéni reditelka
Finance Director
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/prava nezavisleho
auditora

0 overeni roCni ucetni zaverky
DEK a.s. za rok 2009

1. Prijemce zpravy

Zprava je urCena pro predstavenstvo akciové spo-
leCnosti a jej akcionare dale uvedené ucetni jednot-
ky:

Obchodni jméno ucetni jednotky

Nédzev spole¢nosti: DEK a.s.

Sidlo spole¢nosti:  Praha 10, Tiskarska 10/257
PSC 108 00

Identifikacni &islo: 276 36 801

Predmét &innosti spole¢nosti:

= ginnost Ucetnich poradcd, vedeni Uéetnictvi, ve-
denf dariové evidence

= vyroba, obchod a sluzby neuvedené v pfilohdch
1az 3 Zivnostenského zékona
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Independent
Auditors’s Report

on Financial Statements DEK a.s. for
the year ended 31 December 2009

1. Addressee of the report

The report has been prepared for the Board of
Directors and the shareholders of the company
mentioned below:

Company

Name: DEK a.s.

Registered office:  10/257 Tiskarska, Prague 10
Postal Code 108 00

ID No.: 276 36 801

The Company’s principal business:

= accountancy, tax evidence and accountancy con-
sultation

= production, sales and services not specified in
Appendices No. 1 to 3 of the Trades Licences Act



2. Predmeét a ucel ovérovani

Prfedmétem ovéfovani byla Ucetni zavérka sesta-
vena ke dni 31.12.2009 za obdobi od 1.1.2009 do
31.12.2009. Udetni jednotka sestavila Ugetni zavér-
ku v souladu s pravnimi normami CR upravuijicimi
oblast Ucetnictvi ve znéni platném k 31.12.2009,
a to zakonem €. 563/1991 Sb., o Ucetnictvi, vyhlas-
kou 500/2002 Sb. a Ceskymi Udetnimi standardy

3. Vymezeni odpovednosti

Oveéfili jsme rozvahu, vykaz zisk( a ztréty, piilohu
Ucetni zavérky spolecnosti DEK a.s. k 31.12.2009.

Za sestaven( Ucetni zavérky je zodpovedné vedeni
spole¢nosti DEK a.s. Pri sestavovani Ucetni zavérky
musi vedeni Ucetni jednotky provadét vyznamné
Ucetni odhady a posuzovat situaci a zvolit pfimére-
né Ucetni postupy a metody. Tyto kroky vedeni pro-
vadi v kontextu ramce Ucetntho vykaznictvi, ktery si
zvolilo, nebo ktery je povinno pouZivat.

Provérka spravnosti ro¢ni Ucetni zavérky nezbavuje
spole¢nost odpovednosti za spravnost vykazanych
hospodarskych vysledkd. Spole¢nost piné zodpovi-
da za dlsledky, které vyplynou z jinych revizf a kon-
trol.

2. Subject and purpose of the audit

The financial statements as at 31 December for the
period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009
have been audited. The Company is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements in accor-
dance with the legislation of the Czech Republic re-
lating to the accountancy and taxes as valid as at 31
December 2009, namely Act No. 563/1991 Col. on
Accountancy, Decree No. 500/2002 Col. and Czech
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

3. Responsibilities

We have audited the balance sheet as at 31 De-
cember 2009, income statement for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements of the
company DEK a.s.

The management of DEK a.s. is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements. This respon-
sibility includes making significant accounting esti-
mates, assessment of the situation and selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies and
methods. All these steps are performed in the con-
text of an accounting framework, which is obligatory
and chosen by the management of the Company.

The audit of financial statements does not relieve li-
ability of the Company’s management for correctne-
ss and accuracy of disclosed financial results. The
Company is fully responsible for the consequences
of other audits and revisions.
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Nasim tkolem je vydat na zékladé provedeného au-
ditu vyrok k této Ucetni zaverce.

4. Rozsah auditu

Auditor ovéefuje informace prokazujici Udaje uve-
dené v Ucetni zavérce v souladu se zakonem ¢.
93/2009 Sb., o auditorech a Komote auditor(i Ces-
ké republiky a Mezindrodnimi auditorskymi standar-
dy ve znéni platném k datu vyhotovenf této zpravy
nezdvislého auditora.

Naplanovali a provedli jsme audit tak, abychom zis-
kali pfiméfenou jistotu, Ze Ucetni zaverka neobsahu-
je vyznamné zkreslent.

Oveérovani diikaznich informaci prokazujicich ¢astky
a skuteénosti uvedené v Ucetni zaverce bylo prove-
deno vybérovym zpdsobem.

Posoudili jsme pouzité Ucetni zasady pfi sestavo-
vani Ucetni zavérky. Posoudili jsme také vyznamné
odhady a rozhodnuti Géetni jednotky, které se pro-
mitaji do Ucetni zavérky a zhodnotili pfimérenost
prezentace Ucetni zaverky.

Nasi povinnosti je postupovat tak, abychom ziskali
vSechny informace, které jsou podle naseho nejlep-
$tho védomi nezbytné pro ovéreni Ucetni zaverky
a poskytuji pfimeéfenou zdruku, Ze Ucetni zaverka
neobsahuje vyznamné nespravnosti, at jiz byly zpl-
sobeny omylem, podvodem nebo jinou pricinou.
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Our task is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

4. Audit’'s scope

The Auditor conducted the audit of information in
the financial statements in accordance with Act No.
93/2009 Col. on Auditors and Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic and in accordance with Inter-
national Standards on Auditing as adopted at the
date of this Independent Auditor’'s Report.

We have planned and conducted the audit to obtain
sufficient assurance that the financial statements
are not materially distorted.

Examination of information relating to amounts and
facts in the financial statements was performed on
a selection basis.

We also considered accounting principles and me-
thods used for the preparation of the financial sta-
tements as well as significant judgments and asse-
ssments of the entity in the financial statements. We
assessed the suitability of the financial statements
presentation.

Our responsibility is to perform such procedures so
that we in our best opinion obtain all the informati-
on essential for the auditing of financial statements
and we obtain sufficient evidence that the financial
statements are not significantly misstated (whether
caused by mistakes, fraud or other causes).



ProhlaSujeme, ze provedeny audit Ucetni zavérky ve
spole¢nosti DEK a.s. poskytuje pfimereny podklad
pro vydani vyroku auditora.

5. Hlavni zjisténi

Jsou obsaZena v dopise vedeni Ucetni jednotky,
svou povahou v§ak vyznamné neovlivnila Ucetni za-
vérku spole¢nosti.

6. Vyrok auditora k ucetni zaverce

Podle naseho ndzoru informace uvedené v Ucet-
ni zavérce ve vSech vyznamnych ohledech vérné
zobrazuji majetek, zavazky a vlastni kapitdl spolec-
nosti DEK a.s. k 31.12.2009, vysledek hospodaren(
a penézni toky za Ucetni obdobf 2009 v souladu
s pravnimi normami CR upravujicimi oblast Gdet-
nictvi platnymi k datu sestaveni Ucetni zaverky, a to
zdkonem ¢. 563/1991 Sb., o Ucetnictvi, vyhlaskou
500/2002 Sb, a Ceskymi téetnimi standardy.

We declare that the audit performed on the financial
statements of the company DEK a.s. provides suffici-
ent evidence for the issuance of the audit opinion.

5. Principal findings

Principal findings are stated in the management letter,
but they have not by their nature a significant influen-
ce on the financial statements of the company.

6. Audit opinion on financial
statements

In our opinion, information included in the financial
statements give in all material respects a true and fair
view of assets, liabilities and equity of the company
DEK a.s. as at 31 December 2009, of its financial per-
formance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the legislation valid in the Czech
Republic as adopted at the date of preparation of
the financial statements namely Act No. 563/1991
Col. on Accountancy, Decree No. 500/2002 Col. and
Czech Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
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7. Obchodni jméno a Cislo
osvedceni auditora

Audit provedla firma ATLAS AUDIT s.ro., K Bilé-
mu vrchu 1717, Celdkovice, PSC 250 88, auditor
Ing. Tomas Bartos, ¢islo osvédceni 300.

v Celdkovicich, dne 3. 5. 2010

ATLAS AUDIT s.r.o.
Ing. Tomas Barto$
auditor
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7. Auditor’'s name and licence

The audit was performed by the company ATLAS AU-
DIT s.ro., 1717 K Bilému Vrchu, Celdkovice, postal
code 250 88, auditor Mr. Tomas Bartos, licence No.
300.

Celdkovice, on 3 May 2010

ATLAS AUDIT s.r.o.
Ing. Tomas Barto$
auditor



Financni vykazy
DEK a.s.

Financial Statements
DEK a.s.
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Rozvaha Balance Sheet
AKTIVA ASSETS 2009 2008 2007
Brutto Korekce Netto Netto Netto
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
Gross Provision  Netamount Netamount Netamount
amount CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
CZK'000
Dlouhodoby majetek Non-current assets 5804 117 -48155 5755962 5835655 5563009
Dlouhodoby nehmotny majetek  Non-current intangible assets 2786 -1756 1030 1668 2277
Software Software 2786 -1756 1030 1668 2277
Dlouhodoby hmotny majetek Non-current tangible assets 107 696 -46 399 61297 120 352 10 862
Stavby Buildings 0 0 0 0 0
Samostatné movité véci Equipment 107 596 -46 399 61197 120 352 10 811
a soubory movitych véci
Nedokonéeny dlouhodoby Tangible assets in the course 0 0 0 0 0
hmotny majetek of construction
Poskytnuté zdlohy na dlouhodoby  Advances paid for tangible fixed 100 0 100 0 51
hmotny majetek assets
Dlouhodoby finanéni majetek Long-term investments 5693 635 5693635 5713635 5549870
Podily v ovlddanych a fizenych Investments in controlled entities / 5693 635 5693 635 5713635 5549 870
osobdch subsidiaries
Obézna aktiva Current assets 14 293 -1 204 13 089 16716 59 684
Zésoby Inventories 0 0 0 0 0
Dlouhodobé pohledavky Long-term receivables 2131 0 2131 888 0
Dlouhodobé dariova pohleddvka  Deferred tax asset 2131 0 2131 888 0
Kratkodobé pohledavky Short-term receivables 12 056 -1204 10 852 7 825 59 131
Pohleddvky z obchodnich vztahl  Trade receivables 4212 -1204 3008 1894 55 380
Stat dariové pohleddvky Taxes and state subsidies receivable 3315 0 3315 3707 0
Kratkodobé poskytnuté zélohy Short-term advances paid 108 0 108 95 335
Dohadné Ucty aktivni Anticipated assets 4421 0 4421 2129 3416
Kratkodoby finanéni majetek Financial assets 106 0 106 8 003 553
Penize Cash in hand 106 0 106 188 341
Usty v bankéch Cash at bank 0 0 0 7815 212
Casové rozliseni Accruals and deferrals 10 433 0 10433 8976 896
Naklady pfistich obdobf Prepaid expenses 9831 0 9831 8976 896
PFijmy pfistich obdobf Accrued revenue 602 0 602 0 0
AKTIVA CELKEM TOTAL ASSETS 5828 843 -49359 5779484 5861347 5623589
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Rozvaha

Balance Sheet

(pokracovani) (continued)
PASIVA LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2009 2008 2007
Netto Netto Netto
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
Net amount Net amount Net amount
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Vlastni kapital Equity 5 634 805 5472 957 5502 196
Zakladni kapital Share capital 5502 000 5502 000 5502 000
Kapitalové fondy Capital contributions -46 870 -46 870 0
Rezervni fondy a ostatni fondy ze zisku Reserve funds and other reserves 915 439 0
Zakonny rezervni fond / Nedélitelny fond Statutory reserve fund, non-distributable 915 439 0

reserves
Statutérni a ostatni fondy Statutory and other reserves 0 0 0
Vysledek hospodareni minulych let Retained earnings 16912 7872 0
Vysledek hospodareni bézného ucetniho Profit (loss) for the current period (+/-) 161 848 9516 196
obdobi
Cizi zdroje Liabilities 144 679 388 390 121 393
Rezervy Provisions 1174 0 0
Rezerva na dari z pfijmd Income tax provision 1174 0 0
Dlouhodobé zavazky Long-term liabilities 0 0 274
OdloZeny dariovy zévazek Deferred tax liability 0 0 274
Kratkodobé zavazky Short-term liabilities 65 828 296 518 121 119
Zavazky z obchodnich vztahd Trade payables 31818 19 700 18 587
Zévazky - ovladajici a fidici osoba Liabilities — controlled entities / subsidiaries 29 640 247 537 87 536
Zévazky k zaméstnancdm Liabilities to employees 2029 2583 3341
Zavazky ze socidiniho a zdravotniho pojisténi  Liabilities for social security and health 1257 1421 1888
insurance

Stat - darioveé zavazky a dotace Taxes and state subsidies payable 0 812 8782
Kratkodobé prijaté zalohy Short-term advances received 839 504 0
Dohadné Ucty pasivni Anticipated liabilities 245 23 961 985
Bankovni uvéry a vypomoci Bank loans and borrowings 77 677 91 872 0
Bankovni Uvéry dlouhodobé Long-term bank loans 63 472 77672 0
Bankovn( Uveéry kratkodobé Short-term bank loans and overdrafts 14 205 14 200 0
Casové rozliseni Accruals and deferrals 0 0 0
PASIVA CELKEM LIABILITIES AND EQUITY TOTAL 5779 484 5861 347 5623 589
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Vlykaz zisku a ztraty

Income Statement

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Trzby za prodej zbozf Sales of goods 0 14 539 0
Néklady vynaloZené na prodej zboZ{ Cost of goods sold 0 14 539 0
Obchodni marze Gross profit 0 0 0
Vykony Sales of production 273129 289 289 165 135
Trzby za prodej vlastnich vyrobkd a sluZzeb  Sales of own products and services 273129 289 289 165135
Vykonova spotieba Cost of sales -170 608 -219 051 -95 387
Spotieba materidlu a energie Raw materials and consumables -10 465 -10 569 -26 610
Sluzby Services -160 143 -208 482 -68 777
Pridana hodnota Added value 102 521 70 238 69 748
Osobni naklady Staff costs -54 416 -75 005 -58 532
Mzdové néklady Wages and salaries -39 047 -54 803 -42 210
Naklady na socidini zabezpecéeni Social security and health insurance costs -12397 -17 427 -14 704
a zdravotnf pojisténf
Socidlni naklady Other social costs -2972 2775 -1618
Dané a poplatky Taxes and charges -2 684 -1 857 -1 006
Odpisy dlouhodobého nehmotného Depreciation of non-current assets -31 650 -27 339 -1578
a hmotného majetku
Trzby z prodeje dlouhodobého majetku  Sale of non-current assets and raw 31175 5986 214
a materidlu materials
Trzby z prodeje dlouhodobého majetku Sale of non-current assets 31175 5986 214
Trzby z prodeje materidlu Sale of raw materials 0 0 0
Z(statkova cena prodaného Net book amount of non-current assets -31 422 -6 521 -447
dlouhodobého majetku a materialu and raw materials sold
ZUstatkovd cena prodaného Net book amount of non-current assets -31 422 -6 521 -447
dlouhodobého majetku sold
Zména stavu rezerv a opravnych Increase / (decrease) in operating -1 204 0 0
polozek v provozni oblasti provisions
Ostatni provozni vynosy Other operating income 5930 69 307 92
Ostatni provozni naklady Other operating charges -13610 -13 590 -4 740
Provozni vysledek hospodareni Operating result 4640 21219 3751
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Vykaz zisku a ztraty

Income Statement

(pokracovani) (continued)
2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Trzby z prodeje cennych papird a podili Income from sales of securities and shares 0 47 308
Prodané cenné papiry a podily Securities and shares sold 0 -67 308
Viynosy z podild v ovldadanych a fizenych Income from investments in controlled 165 200 18 900
0sobam a v Ucetnich jednotkach pod entities / subsidiaries and associates
podstatnym viivem
Viynosové uroky Interest income 516 2058 327
Nakladové Uroky Interest expense -8 531 -14 876 -2 478
Ostatni finanéni vynosy Other financial income 15 2659 64
Ostatnf finanéni néklady Other financial expense -109 -1 549 -82
Finanéni vysledek hospodareni Financial result 157 091 -12 808 -2 169
Dani z pfijma za béZnou ¢innost Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities 117 1105 -1 386
- splatna - current -1125 -58 -1112
— odlozena — deferred 1242 1163 -274
Vysledek hospodareni za béznou Profit or loss on ordinary activities after 161 848 9516 196
cinnost taxation
Mimoradny vysledek hospodareni Profit (loss) on extraordinary items after 0 0 0
taxation
Vysledek hospodareni za tucetni obdobi  Net profit (loss) for the financial period 161 848 9516 196
(+5)
Vysledek hospodareni pied zdanénim Net profit (loss) before tax (+/-) 161 731 8411 1582
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Prehled o penéznich tocich

Cash Flow Statement

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
PENEZNI TOKY Z HLAVNI VYDELECNE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CINNOSTI (PROVOZNI CINNOST)
Ugetni zisk (+) / ztréta (-) z bé2né &innosti Net profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before 161 731 8411 1582
pred zdanénim tax
Upravy o nepenézni operace Adjustments for non-cash movements: -126 492 29907 3962
Odpisy dlouhodobych aktiv Depreciation of non-current assets 31650 27 339 1578
Zména stavu opravnych poloZek Change in provisions -1204 0 0
Zisk (-) / ztrata (+) z prodeje dlouhodobych aktiv  (Profit)/loss from disposal of fixed assets 247 535 233
Vynosy z dividend a podild na zisku Dividend income -165 200 -18 900 0
Vylctované ndkladové a vynosové Uroky Net interest expense (income) 8015 12818 2151
Ostatni nepenézni operace Other non-cash movements 0 8115 0
Cisty penézni tok z provozni &innosti pred Net cash flow from ordinary activities before tax, 35239 38318 5544
zdanénim, zménami pracovniho kapitalu changes in working capital and extraordinary
a mimoradnymi polozkami items
Zmény stavu nepeénéZnich slozek pracovniho Working capital changes -192 369 213 305 57 829
kapitalu
Zména stavu pohleddvek (Increase)/decrease in receivables and -3119 43 501 -59 700
prepayments
Zména stavu zévazk( Increase/(decrease) in short-term payables and -189 250 169 804 117 529
accruals
Zména stavu zasob (Increase)/decrease in inventories 0 0 0
Cisty penézni tok z provozni ¢innosti pred Net cash flow from ordinary activities before -157 130 251 623 63 373
zdanénim a mimoradnymi polozkami tax and extraordinary items
Uroky vyplacené Interest paid -2 738 -2 395 0
Uroky pfijaté Interest received 0 2 0
Zaplacena dari z pifjm0 za béZnou ¢innost Income tax on ordinary activities paid 2110 -5162 0
Prijaté dividendy a podily na zisku Dividends received 165 200 18 900 0
Cisty penézni tok z provozni &innosti Net cash flow from ordinary activities 7 442 262 968 63 373
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Prehled o penéznich tocich
(pokracovani)

Cash Flow Statement

(continued)

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK’'000 CZK’'000
PENEZNI TOKY Z INVESTICNI CINNOSTI CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Vlydaje spojené s nabytim dlouhodobych aktiv Acquisition of non-current assets -3379 -353 376 -64 434
Prijmy z prodeje dlouhodobych aktiv Proceeds from sale of non-current assets 2235 5986 214
PUjcky a Uvéry spiiznénym osobam Loans to related parties 0 0 0
Cisty penézni tok z investiéni ginnosti Net cash flow from investing activities -1144 -347 390 -64 220
PENEZNI TOKY Z FINANCNi CINNOSTI CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dopady zmén dlouhodobych resp. kratkodobych — Change in long- and short-term liabilities -14195 91872 0
zavazk(
Zména stavu vlastniho kapitalu: Changes in equity: 0 0 0
Vyplacené dividendy Dividends paid 0 0 0
Cisté penézni toky z finanéni ginnosti Net cash flow from financing activities -14 195 91 872 0
Cisté zvy$eni /snizeni penéznich prostiedkd Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash -7 897 7 450 -847
a penéznich ekvivalent( equivalents
Stav penéznich prostiedkd a penéznich Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 8 003 553 1400
ekvivalentd na poéatku roku of the year
Stav penéznich prostiedki a penéznich Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 106 8003 553

ekvivalent(i na konci roku

year
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Priloha k ucetni zavéerce

Notes to Financial statements
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Prehled o zménach vlastniho

Statement of Changes in

. , .
kapitalu Shareholder’s Equity
Zakladnf Kapitdloveé Zakonny  Nerozdéleny Celkem
kapital fondy  rezervni fond zisk / tis. K&
tis. K& tis. K& tis. KE  Neuhrazena
ztrata
tis. K&
Share capital Capital Statutory Retained Total
CZK'000 reserves  reserve fund earnings / CZK'000
CZK’'000 CZK'000 Accumulated
losses
CZK’'000
Zstatek Balance as at 2000 0 0 0 2000
k 31. prosinci 2006 31 December 2006
Nepenézni vklad spole¢nikd Non-monetary contribution of 5500 000 0 0 0 5500 000
shareholders
Pridél do rezervniho fondu Contribution to reserve fund 0 0 0
Vyplacené dividendy Dividend paid 0 0 0
Viysledek hospodareni za Net profit/(loss) for the current 0 196 196
Ucetni obdobf period
Z(statek Balance as at 5502 000 0 0 196 5502 196
k 31. prosinci 2007 31 December 2007
PrirGistek nerozdéleného zisku  Increase of net profit and 0 0 400 7715 8115
a zakonného rezervniho fondu  statutory reserve fund (merger
Z titulu fuze spole¢nosti of the company Stavebniny
Stavebniny Matyas, a.s. Matyas, a.s.)
Pridél do rezervniho fondu Contribution to reserve fund 0 0 39 -39 0
Ostatni kapitalové fondy Other capital reserves 0 -46 870 0 0 -46 870
Vyplacené dividendy Dividend paid 0 0 0 0 0
Viysledek hospodareni za Net profit/(loss) for the current 0 0 0 9516 9516
Ucetni obdobf period
Zstatek Balance as at 5502 000 -46 870 439 17 388 5472 957
k 31. prosinci 2008 31 December 2008
Pridel do rezervniho fondu Contribution to reserve fund 0 0 476 -476 0
Ostatni kapitalové fondy Other capital reserves 0 0 0 0
Viyplacené dividendy Dividend paid 0 0 0 0
Vlysledek hospodareni za Net profit/(loss) for the current 0 0 161 848 161 848
Ucetni obdobf period
ZUstatek Balance as at 5502 000 -46 870 915 178 760 5634 805

k 31. prosinci 2009

31 December 2009
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Ostatni kapitdlové fondy vznikly v roce 2008 vylou-
¢enim hodnoty finanéni investice a zékladniho kapi-
talu spolecnosti Stavebniny Matyas a.s. po prevzeti
jment této spole€nosti. Nerozdéleny zisk a zakonny
rezervni fond spole¢nosti Stavebniny Matyas pak
byly na zékladé projektu této fuze prevedeny na od-
povidajici Ucty Spole¢nosti.

1. VSeobecné informace

Spole¢nost DEK a.s. (ddle ,Spolecnost”) byla zapsa-
na do obchodniho rejstiiku dne 18. prosince 2006 pod
identifikacnim ¢islem 276 36 801 a jeji sidlo je v Praze
10, Tiska'ské 10/257, PSC 108 00. Predmétem pod-
nikani Spole¢nosti je zprostifedkovani sluzeb, poskyto-
vani software a poradenstvi v oblasti hardware a soft-
ware, zpracovani dat, reklamni ¢innost a marketing,
veden( Ucetnictvi a dariové evidence. Tyto Cinnosti jsou
poskytovany zejména spolec¢nostem v rdmci skupiny
podnikd DEK.

SloZeni predstavenstva k 31. prosinci 2009 bylo na-
sledujict:

Capital funds resulted from the merger of Stavebniny
Matyas a.s. with the Company as a net balance of the
value of financial investment in DEK a.s. and the value
of share capital in Stavebniny Matya$ a.s. Retained
profit and the statutory reserve fund of Stavebniny Ma-
tyas a.s. have been transferred to the corresponding
accounts of the Company.

1. General information

DEK a.s (,the Company") was incorporated in the
Commercial Register on 18 December 2006 under
ID Number 276 36 801 and its registered office is at
10/257 Tiskarska, Prague 10, Postal Code 108 00.
The Company’s principal business is the provision
of services and software, software and hardware
consultancy, data processing, advertising and mar-
keting activities, accounting and tax consultancy
services. These activities are mainly provided to the
companies within the DEK Group.

The members of the Board of Directors as at 31 De-
cember 2009 were as follows:

Funkce Poznamka

Position Note

Ing. Vit Kutnar predseda jmenovan 31. kvétna 2009
Chairman appointed on 31 May 2009

Ing. Petra Kutnarova, MBA ¢len predstavenstva jmenovdna 31. kvétna 2009
Member appointed on 31 May 2009

Doc. Ing. Zdenék Kutnar, CSc. ¢len predstavenstva jmenovan 31. kvétna 2009
Member appointed on 31 May 2009
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Slozeni dozor¢i rady k 31. prosinci 2009 bylo na-
sleduijict:

The members of the Supervisory Board as at 31 De-
cember 2009 were as follows:

Funkce Poznamka

Position Note

Ing. Jan Pravecek predseda jmenovan 31. kvétna 2009
Chairman appointed on 31 May 2009

Ing. Jindfich Horék ¢len predstavenstva jmenovan 31. kvétna 2009
Member appointed on 31 May 2009

Ondrej Hrdlicka ¢len predstavenstva jmenovan 31. kvétna 2009
Member appointed on 31 May 2009

V roce 2009 doslo ke zménam ve sloZeni predsta-
venstva a dozor¢i rady. Zmeny probéhly 31. kvétna
2009 a vsichni ¢lenové statutarnich organd jsou za-
psani v obchodnim rejstiiku.

2. Ucetni postupy

(a) Zakladni zdsady zpracovani Gcetni zavérky
Ugetni zavérka je sestavena v souladu s U&etnimi
predpisy platnymi v Ceské republice a Ceskymi
Udetnimi standardy. Ugetni zavérka je sestavena
v historickych cendch.

(b) Dlouhodoby nehmotny majetek

Nakoupeny nehmotny majetek je vykazan v pofizo-
vacich cendch, které zahrnuji cenu, za kterou byl

majetek porizen, a naklady s jeho pofizenim sou-
visejici.
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Changes were made to the Board of Directors and
the Supervisory Board in 2009. Changes were made
on 31 May 2009 and all Board members are registe-
red in the Commercial Register.

2. Accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in ac-
cordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Prin-
ciples in the Czech Republic and Czech Accounting
Standards. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

(b) Intangible non-current assets
Purchased intangible non-current assets are recor-

ded at cost, which include costs incurred in bringing
the assets to their present location and condition.



Dlouhodoby nehmotny majetek — software - je od-
pisovan metodou rovnomérnych mési¢nich odpist
na zakladé jeho predpokladané Zivotnosti po dobu
36 mésicd.

Nehmotny majetek, jehoZ pofizovaci cena neprevy-
Suje 60 000KCE za polozku, je Uctovan do nakladd
pfi pofizent.

Pokud zlstatkova hodnota aktiva presahuje jeho
odhadovanou zpétné ziskatelnou ¢astku, je zdstat-
kova hodnota aktiva snizena o opravnou polozku na
tuto zpétné ziskatelnou ¢astku.

(c) Dlouhodoby hmotny majetek

Nakoupeny dlouhodoby hmotny majetek je vykazan
v pofizovacich cenach, které zahrnuji cenu, za kte-
rou byl majetek pofizen, a naklady s jeho pofizenim
souvisejict.

Dlouhodoby hmotny majetek je odpisovan meto-
dou rovnomérnych odpisl na zékladé jeho predpo-
kladané Zivotnosti nasledujicim zplsobem:

= Motorova vozidla a vysokozdvizné voziky 4 roky

= Pocitace a jejich pfislusenstvi, inventar,
elektrické zafizeni 3 roky

= Privésy 3 roky

Néklady na opravy a udrzbu dlouhodobého hmot-
ného majetku se Uctuji pfimo do nékladd. Technic-
ké zhodnoceni dlouhodobého hmotného majetku je
aktivovano. Hmotny majetek v pofizovaci cené do
40 000 K¢ za poloZku je Uctovan do nékladd pfi spo-
tfebé a je veden v podrozvahové evidenci.

Intangible non-current assets (software) are amorti-
sed by applying the straight-line method on a mon-
thly basis over their estimated useful lives of 36
months.

Intangible non-current assets with a unit cost of less
than CZK 60 ths. are expensed upon consumption.

A provision for impairment is established when the
carrying value of an asset is greater than its estima-
ted recoverable amount.

(c) Tangible non-current assets

Acquired tangible non-current assets are recorded
at cost, which include costs incurred in bringing the
assets to their present location and condition.

Tangible non-current assets are depreciated by ap-
plying the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

= Vehicles and lift trucks 4 years
= Computers, equipment, furniture

and fittings 3 years
= Trailers 3 years

Repairs and maintenance expenditures relating to
tangible non-current assets are expensed as incur-
red. Property enhancements are capitalised. Tan-
gible non-current assets with a unit cost of less than
CZK 40 ths. are expensed upon consumption and
recorded in the supporting evidence.
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Pokud zlstatkova hodnota aktiva presahuje jeho
odhadovanou zpétné ziskatelnou ¢éstku, je zlstat-
kova hodnota aktiva snizena o opravnou polozku na
tuto zpétné ziskatelnou ¢astku.

(d) Majetkové Ucasti ve spolecnostech s rozho-
dujicim a podstatnym vlivem

Spole¢nost s rozhodujicim vliivem (dcefina spole¢-
nost) je podnik ovladany Spole¢nosti, jehoZ finanéni
a provozni procesy Spolecnost mizZe ovladat s ci-
lem ziskavat prinosy z jeho ¢innosti.

Majetkové Ucasti ve spolecnostech s rozhodujicim
vlivem jsou ocenény pofizovaci cenou sniZzenou
0 opravnou polozku zohledrujici pfipadné sniZzenf
hodnoty.

(e) Pohledavky

Pohledavky jsou vykdzany v nomindini hodnoté snize-
né o opravnou poloZku k pochybnym pohledavkam.

Opravna polozka k pohledavkam je vytvofena na za-
kladé vékové struktury pohledéavek a individudiniho
posouzeni bonity diuznikd.

(f) Penize a penézni ekvivalenty

Spolec¢nost sestavila prehled o penéznich tocich
s vyuzitim nepfimé metody. PenéZni ekvivalenty
predstavuji kratkodoby likvidni majetek, ktery lze
snadno a pohotové prevést na predem znamou
¢astku v hotovosti.
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A provision for impairment is established when the
carrying value of an asset is greater than its estima-
ted recoverable amount.

(d) Investments in subsidiaries and associated
undertakings

A subsidiary is an enterprise that is controlled by the
Company, which means that the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
thereof in order to obtain benefits from its activities.

Equity investments in subsidiaries and associates
are recorded at cost less a provision for diminution
in value.

(e) Receivables

Receivables are stated at the nominal value less
a provision for doubtful amounts.

A provision for bad debts is created on the basis of
an aging analysis and individual evaluation of the
collectibility of the receivables as at the year-end.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company has prepared a cash flow statement
following the indirect method. Cash equivalents re-
present short-term liquid investments, which are re-
adily convertible for a known amount of cash.



(g) Prepocet cizich mén

Transakce provadené v cizich méndch jsou prepoc-
teny a zauctovany pevnym kursem, ktery je stanoven
Ctvrtletné podle kurzu platného k prvému dni Gtvrtletf
podle kursového listku Ceské narodni banky.

VSechna penézni aktiva a pasiva vedena v cizich
ménach byla prepocétena devizovym kursem zve-
fejnénym Ceskou narodni bankou k datu Udetnf
zavérky. V8echny kursové zisky a ztraty z prepoctu
pohledavek a zdvazkd jsou Uctovany do vykazu zis-
ku a ztraty.

(h) Vynosy

Trzby jsou zaudétovany k datu uskutecnéni sluzeb
a jsou vykazany po odeéteni slev a dane z pfidané
hodnoty. Vynosy z pojistného plnéni, kde je znama
¢éstka k datu Ucetni zavérky a které budou vyplace-
ny az v ndsledujicim ucetnim obdobf jsou zauctova-
ny na dohadné Ucty aktivni.

(i) Leasing

Porizovaci cena majetku ziskaného formou financ-
niho a operativniho leasingu neni aktivovana do
dlouhodobého majetku a je Uctovana do nakladd
rovnomerné po celou dobu trvani leasingu. Budou-
cf leasingové spldtky, které nejsou k rozvahovému
dni splatné, jsou vykdzany v pfiloze k ucetni zavér-
ce, ale nejsou zachyceny v rozvaze.

(g) Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are
translated and recorded at the fixed rate of exchange
valid on the first day of the quarter as published by
Czech National Bank.

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies have been translated at the year-
end exchange rate as published by the Czech Nati-
onal Bank. All foreign exchange gains and losses
from translation of receivables are recognised in the
profit and loss account.

(h) Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised upon the performance of
services and are stated net of discounts and Va-
lue Added Tax. Revenues from insurance benefits
(in case of an amount known at the balance sheet
date) which will be received in the next period are
recorded on accrued assets.

(i) Leases

The costs of assets held under both finance and
operating leases are recorded as expenses evenly
over the lifespan of the lease. Amounts payable in
future periods but not yet due are disclosed in the
notes but not recognised in the balance sheet.
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(j) Penzijni pfipojisténi

Spole€nost v soucasné dobé poskytuje svym za-
méstnanciim penzijni pripojisténi. K financovani
statniho dlchodového pojisténi hradi Spole¢nost
pravidelné odvody do stétniho rozpodtu.

(k) Urokové naklady
Naklady spojené s Uvéry jsou Uctovany do nakladd.
(I) Odlozena dan

Odlozena dan se vykazuje u vSech pfechodnych
rozdild mezi zlstatkovou hodnotou aktiva nebo
pasiva v rozvaze a jejich daffovou hodnotou. Od-
loZena dariova pohleddvka je zadctovana, pokud je
pravdépodobné, Ze ji bude moZné dariové uplatnit
v budoucnosti.

(m) Spfiznéné strany

Spfiznénymi stranami Spole¢nosti se rozumi:

= spoleénici / akcionafi, kteff pfimo nebo nepfimo
mohou uplatfiovat podstatny nebo rozhoduijicf viiv
u Spolecnosti, a spole¢nosti, kde tito spolecnici /
akcionafi maji podstatny nebo rozhodujici vliv;

« Clenové statutarnich, dozordich a fidicich organt
a osoby blizké témto osobdm, véetné podnikd,
kde tito ¢lenové a osoby maji podstatny nebo
rozhoduijici vliv;

= spolecnosti, které maiji spole¢ného ¢lena vedenf
se Spolec¢nosti.

Vlyznamné transakce a z(statky transakci se spfiz-
nénymi stranami jsou uvedeny v poznamce 13.
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(j) Pension plans

The Company operates a pension plan for its
employees. Regular contributions are made to the
state to fund the national pension plan.

(k) Interest costs
Interest costs on borrowings are expensed.
(I) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary diffe-
rences between the carrying amount of an asset or
liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. De-
ferred tax assets are recognised if it is probable that
sufficient future taxable profit will be available aga-
inst which the assets can be utilised.

(m) Related parties

The Company’s related parties are considered to
be the following:

= shareholders, of which the Company is a subsidiary
or an associate, directly or indirectly, and subsidia-
ries and associates of these shareholders;

= members of the Company’s statutory and supervi-
sory bodies and management and parties close to
such members, including entities in which they have
a controlling or significant influence; and

= companies with the same member of manage-
ment.

Material transactions and outstanding balances
with related parties are disclosed in Note 13.



(n) Nasledné udalosti

Dopad uddlosti, které nastaly mezi rozvahovym
dnem a dnem sestaveni Ucetni zaverky je zachycen
v Ucetnich vykazech v pfipadg, Ze tyto udalosti po-
skytly doplfiujici informace o skute¢nostech, které
existovaly k rozvahovému dni.

V pfipadé, Ze mezi rozvahovym dnem a dnem se-
staveni Ucetni zavérky doslo k vyznamnym uda-
lostem zohledriujicim skutecnosti, které nastaly po
rozvahovém dni, jsou disledky téchto uddlosti po-
psany v piiloze Ucetni zavérky, ale nejsou zalctova-
ny v Ucetnich vykazech.

(0) Zmény ucetnich metod v roce 2009

Od roku 2009 Spole¢nost Uctuje a vykazuje odlisné
odhad dané z piijm0 pravnickych osob, a to v po-
loZce Rezerva na dari z pifjmd. Do roku 2008 se
tento odhad Uctoval a vykazoval v poloZce Stat —da-
fové zavazky a dotace. Novy postup povaZuje Spo-
leCnost za spravnéjsi. Zmena uctovani a vykazovani
odhadu dané z pifjmd nema vliv na hospodaisky
vysledek spole¢nosti.

(n) Subsequent events

The effects of events that occurred between the ba-
lance sheet date and the date of preparation of the
financial statements are recognised in the financial
statements in the case that these events provide
further evidence of conditions that existed as at the
balance sheet date.

Where significant events occur subsequent to the
balance sheet date but prior to the preparation of the
financial statements that are indicative of conditions
that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date, the
effects of these events are disclosed, but are them-
selves not recognised in the financial statements.

(o) Changes in accounting methods in 2009

Estimate of the income tax has been recorded and
included in the financial statements differently since
2009 - in the balance sheet item “Income tax provisi-
on”. This estimate was recorded and included in the
financial statements in the item “Taxes and state sub-
sidies payable” until 2008. The new method is con-
sidered more accurate. The change of accounting
treatment of the estimate of the income tax does not
have any impact on the net profit of the company.

139



3. Dlouhodoby nehmotny majetek

3. Intangible non-current assets

2009 2009 1. ledna 2009 PrirQstky / Vyfazeni  31. prosince 2009
tis. K& preuctovani tis. K& tis. K&
tis. K&
1 January 2009 Additions / Disposals 31 December 2009
CZK'000 transfers CZK'000 CZK'000
CZK'000
Software — pofizovaci cena Software — costs 2 551 235 0 2786
Software — opravky Software — accumulated 883 873 0 1756
amortisation
ZUstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 1668 1030
2008 2008 1. ledna 2008 PrirQstky / Viyfazeni  31. prosince 2008
tis. K& preuctovani tis. K& tis. K&
tis. K&
1 January 2008 Additions / Disposals 31 December 2008
CZK'000 transfers CZK'000 CZK'000
CZK'000
Software — pofizovaci cena Software — costs 2536 484 469 2 551
Software — opravky Software — accumulated 259 624 0 883
amortisation
ZUstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 2277 1668
2007 2007 1. ledna 2007 PrirCistky / Vyfazeni  31. prosince 2007
tis. K& preuctovani tis. K& tis. K&
tis. K&
1 January 2007 Additions / Disposals 31 December 2007
CZK'000 transfers CZK'000 CzK'000
CZK’'000
Software — pofizovaci cena Software — costs 2536 2536
Software — opravky Software — accumulated 259 259
amortisation
ZUstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 0 2277
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4. Dlouhodoby hmotny majetek

. Tangible non-current assets

2009 2009 1. ledna 2009 PrirQstky / Viyfazeni  31. prosince 2009
Porizovaci cena Costs tis. K& preuctovani tis. K& tis. K&
tis. K&
1 January 2009 Additions / Disposals 31 December 2009
CZK'000 transfers CZK'000 CzK'000
CZK'000
Dopravni zafizeni a stroje Vehicles and machinery 141190 2149 42911 100 428
Provozni a obchodnf vybaveni  Equipment, furniture 6 467 701 0 7168
a inventar and fittings
Nedokonéeny hmotny majetek  Tangible assets in the 0 3295 3295 0
course of construction
Poskytnuté zalohy Advances paid for 0 102 2 100
non-current assets
Celkem Total 147 657 6247 46 208 107 696
2009 2009 1. ledna 2009 Odpisy Viyfazeni  31. prosince 2009
Opréavky Accumulated depreciation tis. K& tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
1 January 2009 Depreciation Disposals 31 December 2009
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Dopravni zafizenf a stroje Vehicles and machinery 24 803 28 347 11489 41 661
Provozni a obchodni vybaveni  Equipment, furniture and 2502 2236 0 4738
a inventar fittings
Celkem Total 27 305 30583 11489 46 399
Zlstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 120 352 61297

141



4. Dlouhodoby hmotny majetek

4. Tangible non-current assets

(pokracovani) (continued)
2008 2008 1. ledna 2008 Prirdstky / Viyfazeni  31. prosince 2008
Pofizovacf cena Costs tis. K& preuctovani tis. K& tis. K&
tis. K&
1 January 2008 Additions / Disposals 31 December 2008
CZK'000 transfers CZK'000 CZK'000
CZK'000
Dopravni zafizenf a stroje Vehicles and machinery 7989 136 080 2879 141 190
Provozni a obchodni vybaveni  Equipment, furniture 4141 2326 0 6 467
a inventar and fittings
Nedokonéeny hmotny majetek  Tangible assets in the 0 138 406 138 406 0
course of construction
Poskytnuté zalohy Advances paid for 51 0 51 0
non-current assets
Celkem Total 12181 276 812 141 336 147 657
2008 2008 1. ledna 2008 Odpisy Viyfazeni  31. prosince 2008
Opréavky Accumulated depreciation tis. K& tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
1 January 2008 Depreciation Disposals 31 December 2008
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Dopravni zafizenf a stroje Vehicles and machinery 869 25107 1173 24 803
Provozni a obchodni vybaveni  Equipment, furniture and 450 2052 0 2502
a inventar fittings
Celkem Total 1319 27 305
Zlstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 10 862 120 352
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4. Dlouhodoby hmotny majetek

4. Tangible non-current assets

(pokracovani) (continued)
2007 2007 1. ledna 2007 Prirdstky / Viyfazeni  31. prosince 2007
Porizovaci cena Costs tis. K& preuctovani tis. K& tis. K&
tis. K&
1 January 2007 Additions / Disposals 31 December 2007
CZK'000 transfers CZK'000 CzK'000
CZK'000
Dopravni zafizenf a stroje Vehicles and machinery 0 7989 7989
Provozni a obchodnf vybaveni  Equipment, furniture and 0 4141 4141
a inventar fittings
Nedokonéeny hmotny majetek  Tangible assets in the 0 18727 18727 0
course of construction
Poskytnuté zalohy Advances paid for 0 3418 3367 51
non-current assets
Celkem Total 0 34 275 22 094 12 181
2007 2007 1. ledna 2007 Odpisy Vyfazeni  31. prosince 2007
Opréavky Accumulated depreciation tis. K¢ tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
1 January 2007 Depreciation Disposals 31 December 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000 CzK'000
Dopravni zafizenf a stroje Vehicles and machinery 0 869 0 869
Provozni a obchodni vybaveni  Equipment, furniture and 0 450 0 450
a inventar fittings
Celkem Total 0 1319 0 1319
Zlstatkova hodnota Carrying amount 0 10 862
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Spolecnost rovnéz pouZiva majetek ziskany formou
finanéniho leasingu, ktery je vSak Uctovan jako dlou-
hodoby hmotny majetek aZ po skonceni doby lea-
singu. Udaje 0 operativnim leasingu jsou uvedeny

v poznamce 14.

Leasingové splatky ze souc¢asnych smluv o financ-
nim leasingu Ize analyzovat takto:

The Company uses assets under finance lease con-
tracts that are not recorded as fixed assets in the
financial statements until the expiration of the lease.
Information about operating leases is in note 14.

The leases may be analysed as follows:

31. prosince 2009

31. prosince 2008

31. prosince 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Splacené splatky Amounts paid on current finance 71 846 74082 34773
lease contracts

Splatky splatné do jednoho roku Amounts payable within one year 36 501 72777 73 565

Splatky splatné pozdéji Amounts payable after more than one 0 37 469 110717

year
Celkova vyse splatek splacenych Amounts paid and payable on 108 347 184 328 219 055

i splatnych ze sou¢asnych smluv

current contracts
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5. Majetkové Ucasti ve
spolecnostech s rozhodujicim
vlivem

Majetkové Ucasti ve spolecnostech s rozhodujicim
vlivem predstavuji investice do kmenovych akcif
nebo podild v piipadé spole¢nosti s ru¢enim ome-
zenym.

5. Investments in subsidiary
undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings comprise
ordinary shares.

K'31. prosinci 2009 Pocet akcif Nominalni hodnota Porizovaci cena Podil na zakladnim
tis. K& tis. K& kapitalu
%
As at 31 December 2009 Number of shares Nominal value Costs Capital share
CZK'000 CZK'000 %
DEKTRADE a.s.* 100 1000 5500 000 100%
DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. - 67 794 ' 67 794 ' 100%
DEKWOOD s.r.o.* - 10 200 10 200 100%
DEKMETAL s.r.o.* - 200 200 100%
DEKSTONE s.ro.* - 200 200 100%
DEKPROJEKT s.r.o.* - 200 200 100%
Moje stavebniny s.r.o.* - 200 200 100%
G SERVIS CZ, s.ro.* - 200 114 841 100%
Polydek, a.s.* - - - 0%
Opravnd polozka 0
Provision for diminution in value
ZUstatkova hodnota 5693 635

Carrying amount

V roce 2009 doslo ke snizeni viastniho kapitalu u dcefinych
spolec¢nosti DEKMETAL s.r.o. (40 mil. K&), DEKSTONE s.r.o.

(80 mil. K&) a k navysenf vlastniho kapitélu u dcefinné spole¢nosti
DEKTRADE SR s.r.0. (50 mil. K¢).

T 2604 tis. EUR

* tyto spole¢nosti majf sidlo na adrese Tiskafska 10/257, Praha
10, PSC 108 00
Spole¢nost DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. sidli Elektrarenska 12 428,
Bratislava, 831 04

The equity of the subsidiaries DEKMETAL s.r.o. and DEKSTONE
s.r.o. was decreased of CZK 40 mil., CZK 30 mil. respectively, in
2009 and the equity of DEKTRADE SR was increased of CZK
50 mil

" EUR 2604 ths.

* the registered office of these companies is at 10/257 Tiskarska,
Prague 10, postal code 108 00.
DEKTRADE SR s.r.0. has its registered office in the Slovak
Republic: 12 428 Elektrarenska, Bratislava, postal code 831 04
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5. Majetkove ucasti ve
spolecnostech s rozhodujicim
vlivem (pokracovani)

5. Investments in subsidiary
undertakings (continued)

Vlysledek hospodarenf 2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
Net profit/ loss 2009* 2008 2007
CZK’'000 CZK’'000 CZK’'000
DEKTRADE a.s.* 132987 ** 147 843 1165974
DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. -8986 ** -30 -
DEKWOOD s.r.o.* 404 881 791
DEKMETAL s.r.o.* -4 329 ** 331 4936
DEKSTONE s.r.0.* 131 8 68
DEKPROJEKT s.r.o.* 2599 1716 1529
Moje stavebniny s.r.o.* 8 43 80
G SERVIS CZ, s.ro.* 1190 13516 5635
Polydek, a.s.* 21876 ** 85519 36 760
Vlastni kapital k 31. prosinci 2009 k 31. prosinci 2008 k 31. prosinci 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
Equity as at 31 December 2009* as at 31 December as at 31 December 2007
CZK'000 2008 CZK'000

CZK'000
DEKTRADE a.s.* 786614 ** 810170 661 905
DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. 59882 ** 17 826 -
DEKWOOD s.r.o.* 9847 10 251 -629
DEKMETAL s.r.o.* 1138 ** 45 467 5136
DEKSTONE s.r.0.* 407 30276 268
DEKPROJEKT s.ro.* 2844 1945 1729
Moje stavebniny s.r.o.* 311 303 260
G SERVIS CZ, s.ro.* 953 13737 17 621
Polydek, a.s.* 154 608 ** 132732 93 350
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* tyto spole¢nosti maji sidlo na adrese Tiskarskd 10/257, Praha
10, PSC 108 00
Spole¢nost DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. sidlf Elektrérenska 12 428,
Bratislava, 831 04

** tyto Udaje jsou predbézné - zndmy k datu této Ucetni zaverky,
u spole¢nosti DEKTRADE SR s.r.0. byly Udaje prepocteny
kurzem EUR vi¢i CZK k 31.12.2009 (pro rok 2008 a 2007
kurzem SKK v(¢i CZK k 31.12.2008 a 31.12.2007).

V z4dné ze spolecnosti s rozhodujicim vlivem kro-
mé spolecnosti Polydek, a.s., neni rozdil mezi pro-
centem podilu na vlastnictvi a procentem podilu na
hlasovacich prdvech. Spole¢nost Polydek, a.s. je
dcefinou spole¢nosti Spole¢nosti DEK a.s. na za-
kladé ovladaci smlouvy uzavfené 1.1.2007.

Spole¢nost méla v roce 2009 z téchto majetko-
vych Ucasti pfijaté dividendy ve vysi 165 200 tis. K&
(2008: 18 900 tis. K&, 2007: 0 tis. K<), a to divi-
dendy ze spole¢nosti DEKTRADE a.s. ve vysi
150 000 tis. K& (2008: 0 K&), G SERVIS CZ, s.ro.ve
vys$i 13 500 tis. K& (2008: 17 400 tis. K&) a ze spo-
le¢nosti DEKPROJEKT s.r.o. ve vysi 1 700 tis. K¢
(2008: 1 500 tis. K&).

* the registered office of these companies is at 10/257 Tiskarska,
Prague 10, postal code 108 00.
DEKTRADE SR s.r.0. has its registered office in the Slovak
Republic: 12 428 Elektrarenska, Bratislava, postal code 831 04.

** preliminary data — as known on the date of the preparation of
these financial statement. Data of DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. was
translated from EUR using the foreign exchange rate of EUR to
CZK on 31 December 2009 as published by the Czech
National Bank (in 2008 and 2007 the foreign exchange rate of
SKK to CZK on 31 December 2008, respectively 2007).

There are no differences between the percentage
of ownership and the percentage of voting rights in
any subsidiary undertaking, with exception of POLY-
DEK a.s. POLYDEK a.s. is a subsidiary on the basis
of a controlling agreement concluded on 1 January
2007.

Dividends received from these subsidiaries in 2009
amounted to CZK 165 000 ths.(2008: 18 900 ths.,
2007: CZK Oths.) in total. Dividends of CZK 150 000
ths. were received from DEKTRADE a.s. (2008: CZK
0 ths.), from G SERVIS CZ s.r.o. CZK 13 500 (2008:
CZK 17 400 ths.) and dividends from DEKPROJEKT
s.r.o CZK 1 700 ths. (2008: CZK 1 500 ths.).
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6. Pohledavky

6. Receivables

31. prosince 2009

31. prosince 2008

31. prosince 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Pohleddvky z obchodnich Trade receivables
vztaht
— do splatnosti current 288 623 55 231
— po splatnosti —overdue 3924 1271 149
Celkem Total 4212 1894 55 380
Jiné pohledavky Other receivables
— do splatnosti —current 7 844 5931 3751
— po splatnosti —overdue 0 0 0
Celkem Total 7 844 5931 3751
Opravné polozky na pochybné Provision for doubtful - 1204 0 0
pohledavky receivables
OdloZena dariové pohleddvka  Deferred tax asset 2131 888 0
Cista hodnota pohledavek Net total receivables 12983 8713 59 131

Nezaplacené pohledévky z obchodnich vztah( ne-
jsou zajisteny. Z pohledavek po splatnosti v roce
2009 je 2 639 tis. K¢ do 180 dnd.
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Outstanding receivables have not been secured.
The amount of CZK 2 639 ths. from the total over-
due receivables in 2009 is overdue for less than 180

days.



7. Vlastni kapital

7. Equity

Schvélené a vydané akcie Authorised and issued share capital Pocet 31. prosince 2009
tis. K&

Number 31 December 2009

CZK'000

Kmenové akcie v hodnoté 20 000K¢E, pIné splacené Ordinary shares of CZK 20000, fully paid 275100 5502 000

Hlavni akcionai
(s hlasovacimi pravy vice nez

The primary shareholders

31. prosince 2009
exceeding 20 % of the share 9

%

31. prosince 2008
%

31. prosince 2007
%

20%) capital:
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
% % %
Ing. Vit Kutnar Ing. Vit Kutnar 71 69 69
Ostatni akcionafi Other shareholders 29 31 31

(méné nez 20 %)

(less than 20 %)

Zakonny rezervni fond nelze rozdelit mezi akcionare,
ale Ize jej pouzit vyhradné k Uhradé ztrat. V souladu
s pfislusnymi ustanovenimi obchodniho zékoniku
Spolec¢nost vytvafi zakonny rezervni fond ve vysi
5% z Cistého zisku ro¢né, dokud vyse tohoto fondu
nedosahne 20 % zdakladniho kapitalu.

The statutory reserve fund may not be distributed
to shareholders, but may be used to offset losses.
The Company is required by law to transfer 5% of
its annual net profits to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance of this reserve reaches 20% of the
issued share capital.
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8. Zavazky 8. Liabilities

31. prosince 2009 31. prosince 2008 31. prosince 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Zavazky z obchodnich vztahd  Trade liabilities
— do splatnosti current 30137 16 892 18 445
— po splatnosti —overdue 1681 2808 142
Zévazky z obchodnich Trade liabilities total 31818 19 700 18 587
vztahd celkem
PGjcky od spiiznénych stran Borrowings from related
parties
— do splatnosti —current 29 640 247 537 87 536
— po splatnosti —overdue 0 0 0
PGjéky od spfiznénych stran  Borrowings from related 29 640 247 537 87 536
celkem parties total
Jiné zdvazky Other liabilities
— do splatnosti — current 4370 29 281 14 996
— po splatnosti — overdue 0 0 0
Jiné zavazky celkem Other liabilities total 4370 29 281 14 996
Zéavazky celkem Liabilities total 65 828 296 518 121 119
VySe uvedené zavazky nebyly zajistény zadnym Trade and other payables have not been secured
majetkem Spolecnosti. over any assets of the Company.

150



9. Uvéry a ostatni pdjcky 9. Bank loans and other borrowings

31. prosince 2009 31. prosince 2008 31. prosince 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
CZK'000 CZK’'000 CZK’'000
Bankovn( kontokorenty Bank overdrafts 0 0
Jiné bankovni Uvéry splatné Other bank loans due within 14 205 14 200
do jednoho roku (v&etné &asti 1 year (including current
dlouhodobych Uvérd splatné portion of long-term loans)
do 1 roku)
Dlouhodobé uveéry se Long-term loans due between 56 800 56 800 0
splatnosti 1 -5 let 1-5years
Dlouhodobé uveéry se Long-term loans due after 5 6672 20872 0
splatnostf vice nez 5 let years
Celkem Total 77 677 91 872 0
Spole¢nosti byl poskytnut Uvér na investice od Ko- The Company obtained an investment loan from Ko-
mercni banky se splatnosti do roku 2015. Tento Uver mercni Banka, repayable until 2015. This loan is secu-
je zajisten ru¢enim od spole¢nosti DEKTRADE a.s. red by a guarantee of the companies DEKTRADE a.s.
a POLYDEK, a.s. a avalovanou bianco sménkou. and POLYDEK a.s. and by a coaccepted blank bill.
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7

10. Dan z prijm(

Darlovy naklad zahrnuije:

10. Taxation

The income tax expense consists of the following:

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Splatnou dari Current tax expense 1125 58 1112
Odlozenou darn Deferred tax expense -1242 -1163 274
Celkem Total -117 -1 105 1386
Splatna dan byla vypocitana ndsledovneé: The current tax was calculated as follows:
2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Zisk pred zdanénim Profit before tax 161 731 8411 1582
Dariové neuznatelné ndklady ~ Non-tax deductible costs 2282 3984 4520
Rozdil mezi darovymi Difference between 7047 6783 -1369
a Ucetnimi odpisy accounting and tax
depreciation and amortisation
Prijaté dividendy Dividend received (165 200) (18 900) 0
Darovy zaklad Net taxable profit 5 860 278 4733
Dari z pifjm0 prav. osob ve Corporate taxation 20 % 1172 58 1135
Wi 20% (in 2008: 21%, 2007: 24 %)
(2008: 21%, 2007: 24%)
Slevy na dani Tax bonifications 0 - 23
Dodate¢nd dariova priznanf Additional tax returns -47 - -
Celkova dariova povinnost Tax expense 1125 58 1112
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10. Dan z prijm(
(pokracovani)

V roce 2009 doslo ke zméné metodiky uctovani
dané z pfijm0 na rozvahovych Uétech. Dari z prijmd
se vykazuje jako rezerva namisto zévazkd (pfipad-
né pohleddvek) vici statu. Tato zména nema Zadny
dopad do vysledku hospodareni spole¢nosti.

Odlozenéa dariova pohledévka (+) / zévazek (-) je
vypoctena ve vysi 19 % (dariova sazba pro nasledu-
jici obdobi ocekavané realizace odlozené dané ) ze
zdkladu a Ize ji analyzovat nasledovné:

10. Taxation
(continued)

The methodology of the accounting for estimate
of income tax on the balance sheet accounts was
changed in 2009. The estimate of Income tax is re-
corded as “Income tax provision” instead of “Tax
and state subsidies payable” (as it had been until
2008). This change does not have any impact on
the net profit of the company.

The deferred tax asset/(liability) is calculated at 19%
(the rate enacted for the period of expected realisati-
on of deferred tax) and can be analysed as follows:

31. prosince 2009

31. prosince 2008

31. prosince 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
CZK’'000 CZK'000 CZK’'000
Odlozena dariova Deferred tax asset/ liability:
pohleddvka/zavazek z titulu:
Rozdil mezi dariovou a Uéetni  Difference between tax and 10529 4 554 1369
zUstatkovou cenou majetku accounting depreciation and
amortization
Opravné polozky Provisions 686 0 0
Celkem Total 11 215 4554 1369
Sazba odloZené dané Deferred tax rate 19% 19,5% 20%
Cista odlozena dariova Net deferred tax 2131 888 -274

pohledéavka/ (zavazek)

asset/ (liability)
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11. Analyza zaméstnancu 11. Employee analysis

Pocet zaméstnancl Number of employees 2009 2008 2007
Pocet ¢lenll predstavenstva, kteff jsou Members of the Board of Directors — 1 3 3
zameéstnanci employees
Primérny pocet ostatnich ¢lent vedent Average number of other members of 4 4 10
management
Primérny podet ostatnich zaméstnanct Average number of other staff 99 128 96
Celkem Total 104 135 109
Pocet ¢lend dozordi rady, kteff jsou Members of the Supervisory Board — 0 0 0
zamestnanci employees
Vedeni spoleCnosti zahrnuje vykonné Cleny pred- The Company’s management includes the Mem-
stavenstva a ostatni feditele pfimo podrizené fedi- bers of the Board of Directors and other directors
teli Spole¢nosti. directly reporting to the General Director of the
Company.
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11. Analyza zaméstnanc(

11. Employee analysis

(pokracovani) (continued)
Vedenf Ostatnf Celkem
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
Management Other staff Total
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
2009 2009
Mzdové naklady Wages and salaries 3946 35101 39 047
Odmeény &lentim vedeni Board emoluments 0 0 0
Naklady na soc. zabezpeceni Social security costs 1339 11 058 12397
Ostatnf socidlni naklady* Other social costs* 0 2972 2972
Celkem Total 5285 49 131 54 416
2008 2008
Mzdové naklady Wages and salaries 5988 48 815 54 803
Odmeény ¢lentim vedeni Board emoluments 0 0 0
Néklady na soc. zabezpecen( Social security costs 2096 15 331 17 427
Ostatni socidlni néklady* Other social costs* 0 2775 2775
Celkem Total 8084 66 921 75 005
2007 2007
Mzdové naklady Wages and salaries 16 646 25564 42210
Odmény ¢lentim vedeni Board emoluments 0 0 0
Naklady na soc. zabezpeceni Social security costs 5826 8878 14704
Ostatnf socidlni naklady* Other social costs* 0 1618 1618
Celkem Total 22 472 36 060 58 532
* nerozliuje se | * not distinguished

Ostatnf transakce se zaméstnanci Spole¢nosti jsou Other transactions with the Company’s employees
popsany v poznamce 13 Transakce se spfiznénymi are described in Note 13 Related party transac-
stranami. tions.
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12. Clen&ni vynos( podle odvétvi

Vynosy z bézné ¢innosti byly tvofeny nasledujicim

zplisobem:

12. Revenue analysis

Revenue from ordinary activities has been genera-

ted as follows:

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK’'000 CZK’'000
Poskytovani sluzeb Services provided
— tuzemsko — domestic 263 531 278 029 147 498
— zahranic¢i — foreign 9598 11 260 17 637
Prodej zboZi Sales of goods
— tuzemsko — domestic 0 14 539 0
Jiné provozni vynosy Other operating income
— tuzemsko — domestic 37 105 71449 306
— zahranicf — foreign 0 3844 0
Trzby z prodeje cennych Income from sales of
papird securities and shares
— tuzemsko — domestic 0 47 308 0
Viynosy z podild v oviddanych  Income from long-term
a fizenych osobéach investments
— tuzemsko domestic 165 200 18 900 0
Uroky Interest income
— tuzemsko — domestic 516 2058 327
Ostatni finanéni vynosy Other financial income
— tuzemsko — domestic 15 2659 64
Celkem Total 475 965 450 046 165 832
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13. Transakce se spfiznénymi

stranami

Spole¢nost se podilela na téchto transakcich se

spfiznénymi stranami:

13. Related party transactions

The Company was involved in the following related

party transactions:

2009 2008 2007
tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
2009 2008 2007
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
Poskytované sluzby Services provided 269 618 286 739 161 425
Prodej zbozi Sales of goods 0 13410 0
Prodej majetku Sales of non-current assets 26 834 4367 0
Prodej trznich podil(i Sale of market shares 0 68 870 0
Prodej finan¢ni investice Sale of financial investment 0 47 308 0
Prijaté droky Interest received 516 2056 0
Prijaté dividendy Dividends received 165 200 18 900 327
Celkem Total 462 168 441 650 161 752
Prijaté sluzby Services consumed 36 001 44 381 17 358
Nakoupené zbozi Purchases of goods 208 1028 0
Nakoupeny dlouhodoby Purchases of non-current 0 4023 0
majetek assets
Uroky placené Interest paid 5792 12482 2478
Celkem Total 42 001 61914 19 836
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13. Transakce se spfiznénymi
stranami (pokracovani)

Spole¢nost vykazovala tyto zlstatky se spfiznénymi
stranami:

31. prosince 2009

13. Related party transactions
(continued)

The following related party balances were outstan-
ding as at:

31. prosince 2008 31. prosince 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000

Pohledévky z obchodniho Trade receivables 0 0 85 096
styku

Ostatni pohleddvky Other receivables 0 177 0

Pljcky poskytnuté Borrowings receivable 130 759 51394 0

Pohledavky celkem Receivables total 130 759 51571 85 096

Zd4vazky z obchodniho styku Trade liabilities 26 961 15076 21349

Ostatni zdvazky Other liabilities 0 26 307 0

PGjcky pfijaté Borrowings payable 160 399 298 931 87 536

ZAavazky celkem Liabilities total 187 360 340 314 108 885

Uvéry a pljéky poskytnuté a prijaté jsou Urodeny
trznimi drokovymi sazbami. Pohleddvky a zavazky
z obchodniho styku vznikly za podminek obvyklych
v béZném obchodnim styku. Spolecnost nevytvarf
opravnou poloZku k pohleddvkam za spfiznénymi
stranami.

Clenlim predstavenstva Spole¢nosti, &lenfim do-
zor¢i rady ani hlavnimu akcionari nebyly poskytnuty
zadné uvéry. Kromé vySe uvedeného nebylo v prd-
béhu let 2007-2009 akcionardm, ¢lendim statutdr-
nich a dozorcich orgdnl a fidicim zaméstnancdm
poskytnuto zadné dalsi pInéni ani v penézni ani
v naturaini formé.
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The borrowings receivable and payable bear inte-
rest at market interest rates. Trade receivables and
payables from these transactions arose under the
same terms and conditions as with unrelated par-
ties. Receivables from related parties have not
been provided for.

No loans were provided to the members of the Bo-
ard of Directors, to the members of the Supervisory
Board or to the main shareholder. Apart from the
above stated remuneration and benefits, there was
no other consideration provided to the Company’s
shareholders, members of the Company’s boards
or management in 2007-2009.



14. Smluvni zavazky
Spole¢nost neméla k 31. prosinci 2009 zadné smluv-
ni investicni zavazky.

Déle ma Spole€nost smluvni zavazky z operativnich
leasingl a nama:

14. Commitments
The Company has no capital commitments con-
tracted as at 31 December 2009.

The Company has the following commitments in
respect of operational leases:

31. prosince 2009 31. prosince 2008 31. prosince 2007

tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

CZK’'000 CZK'000 CZK’'000

Splatné do 1 roku Current within one year 4956 5948 3994

Splatné v obdobi 1 - 5 let Due after one year but within 19 825 23792 16 020
five years

Splatné v obdobf delsim nez Due after five years 4 956 tis. rocné 5948 tis. rocné 4005 tis. rocné

5 let upraveno o inflaci upraveno o inflaci upraveno o inflaci

4 956 ths. annually 5948 ths. annually 4 005 ths. annually

adjusted for inflation adjusted for inflation adjusted for inflation

15. Potencialni zavazky

Veden( Spole¢nosti si neni védomo zadnych poten-
cidlnich zavazk( Spole¢nosti k 31. prosinci 2009.

16. Nasledné udalosti

Po rozvahovém dni nedos$lo k zaddnym udélostem,
které by meély vyznamny dopad na uéetni zavérku
k 31. prosinci 20009.

15. Contingent liabilities

The management of the Company is not aware of
any significant unrecorded contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2009.

16. Subsequent events
No events have occurred subsequent to the year-

end that would have a material impact on the finan-
cial statements as at 31 December 2009.
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Schvaleni ucetni zaverky
Tato Ucetni zavérka byla pfedstavenstvem schvdle-

na k predlozeni valné hromadé a z povéreni pred-
stavenstva podepséna.

31. brezna 2010

Ing. Vit Kutnar

predseda predstavenstva
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Statutory approvals

These financial statements have been approved for
submission to the general meeting of shareholders
by the Company’s Board of Directors and have
been signed on their behalf.

On 31 March 2010

Ing. Petra Kutnarova, MBA
financéni reditelka
Finance Director



/prava o vztazich
mezi propojenymi
osobami

za rok 2009 statutarniho organu
spole¢nosti DEK a.s.

podle ustanoveni § 66a) Obchodniho zdkoniku

1. Ovladana osoba

Spole¢nost: DEK a.s.

se sidlem na adrese: Praha 10, Tiskarska 10/257
PSC: 108 00

IC: 276 36 801

zastoupena: Ing. Vit Kutnar

pfedseda predstavenstva
zapsana v obchodnim rejstriku vedeném Méstskym
soudem v Praze, oddil B, vlozka 11400

Ovladana osoba je obchodni spole¢nost, ktera se
zabyva zejména zprostfedkovanim sluzeb, posky-
tovani software, poradenstvim v oblasti hardwa-
re a software, zpracovanim dat, reklamni ¢innostf
a marketingem, vedenim Ucetnictvi a dariové evi-
dence. Tyto cinnosti jsou poskytovdny zejména
spole¢nostem v rdmci skupiny DEK.

Report on relations
between related
parties

in the accounting period 1 January
2009 — 31 December 2009
prepared by statutory body of DEK
a.s.

in accordance with § 66a) of the Commercial Code

1. Controlled entity

Company: DEK as.
Registered office: Praha 10, Tiskarska 10/257
Postal code: 108 00
ID No.: 276 36 801
Represented by: Ing. Vit Kutnar
Chairman of the Board of Directors
registered in the Commercial Register maintained
by the Municipality Court in Prague, Section B,
Insert 11400.

Controlled entity is the company providing services,
software, consultancy for software and hardware,
processing of data, providing marketing and adver-
tisement services, accountancy and tax evidence.
These services are provided mainly for the compa-
nies within the Group DEK.
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2. Ovladajici osoba 2. Controlling entity

Controlling entity was in 2009 Ing. Vit Kutnar, domi-
ciled Nad Primaskou 1008/17, Praha 10, personal
ID No. 691202/0335 (with share of 71 %), Chairman
of the Board of Directors and General director.

Ovladajici osobou byl v roce 2009 Ing. Vit Kutnar,
Nad Primaskou 1008/17, Praha 10, .¢. 691202/0335
(podil 71%), pfedseda predstavenstva a generdini
feditel.

3. Ostatni propojené osoby 3. Other related parties

Obchodnf firma Sidlo IC Datum vzniku  Hlavni predmét ¢innosti Principal business
Company Registered office ID No. Date of
establishment
DEKTRADE as. Tiskarskd 10/257 48589837 8.3.1993 koupé a prodej stavebnich Purchase and sale of construction
Praha 10, PSC 108 00 materiald, inZenyrska materials, engineering and
a poradenska ¢innost ve consultancy in building industry,
stavebnictvi a projektova building design
¢innost ve vystavbé
DEKMETAL s.ro. Tiskarska 10/257 276 42381 2.1.2007 Kovoobrabé&gstvi, vyroba Metal machining, metal products
Praha 10, PSC 108 00 vyrobkd z plechu
DEKSTONE s.r.0. Tiskarska 10/257 276 43671 5.1.2007 Zpracovani kamene, vyroba  Stone working, production of
Praha 10, PSC 108 00 stavebnich hmot a vyrobkd, — construction materials and
velkoobchod products, wholesale
DEKPROJEKT sro.  Tiskafské 10/257 276 42 411 2.1.2007 Projektova a inZzenyrskd Engineering and consultancy in
Praha 10, PSC 108 00 ¢innost ve vystavbé, reklamni  building industry, building design,
¢innost a marketing advertisement and marketing
DEKWOOD s.r.o. Tiskarska 10/257 27609111 9.10. 2006 Viyroba pilarska Sawmill production and wood
Praha 10, PSC 108 00 a impregnace dreva impregnation
Moje stavebniny s.ro. Tiskarskd 10/257 27914089 15.6.2007 Velkoobchod a maloobchod ~— Wholesale and retail of
Praha 10, PSC 108 00 se stavebnim materidlem construction material
G SERVIS CZ, s.ro.  Tiskarskd 10/257 26226 367 18.10.2000  Projektova ¢innost ve Building design activities
Praha 10, PSC 108 00 vystavbé
Polydek a.s. Tiskarska 10/257 25071670 16. 8. 1996 Prondjem nebytovych prostor Operating lease of non-residential
Praha 10, PSC 108 00 space
DEKTRADE SR s.ro. Elektrarenska ]2428 43821103 10. 11. 2007 Maloobchod a velkoobchod, Wholesale and retail of
Bratislava, PSC 831 04 zprostredkovatelskd ¢innost  construction material
ENERGO Tiskarska 10/257 28547 551  24. 3. 2009 Prondjem nemovitosti, byt Operating lease of real property,

HELVIKOVICE as. Praha 10, PSC 108 00 a nebytovych prostor flats and non-residential space
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3. Ostatni propojené osoby
(pokracovani)

V8echny vysSe uvedené propojené osoby jsou 100%
dcefinymi spolec¢nostmi ovlddané osoby, kromé
spole€nosti POLYDEK a.s. a spole¢nosti ENERGO
HELVIKOVICE a.s. Spole¢nost POLYDEK a.s. je
propojenou osobou na zakladé ovidadaci smlouvy
uzavfené v roce 2007, spolednost ENERGO HELVI-
KOVICE a.s. je 100% dcerfinou spole¢nosti spolec-
nosti POLYDEK a.s.

4. \/ztahy mezi propojenymi
osobami

Uzaviené smlouvy v roce 2009:

3. Other related parties
(continued)

All related parties mentioned above are 100% sub-
sidiaries of the controlled entity with the exception of
the companies POLYDEK a.s. and ENERGO HEL-
VIKOVICE a.s. The company POLYDEK as. is re-
lated party on the basis of a controlling agreement
concluded in 2007, the company ENERGO HELVI-
KOVICE a.s. is a 100% subsidiary of the company
POLYDEK a.s.

4. Relations between related
parties

Contracts concluded in 2009:

Spole¢nost Typ smlouvy Predmét pinénf Type of contract Subject of a contract
Company
DEKTRADE a.s. Smilouva o technické Technick& pomoc pro Contract of technical Technical services for
pomoci DEKTRADE services DEKTRADE
Kupni smlouva Prodej vysokozdviznych Purchase contract Sale of lift trucks
vozikd
DEKTRADE a.s. — Smlouva o ndjmu movité Néjem poditacd Operating lease contract Lease of computers
organizacéni zloZka véci

DEKMETAL s.r.0.

Smlouva o poskytovani
sluzeb

Poskytovan( finan¢nich
a konzulta¢nich sluzeb

Contract of services

Financial and consultation
services

DEKWOOD s.r.o.

Dodatek ¢. 1 ke smlouve
0 ndjmu movité véci —
stroje

Najem susarny feziva
a fidici jednotky k susarné

Amendment No. 1 to the
contract of opeting lease of
an asset — the machine

Operating lease of oven for
sawn wood including
control unit

V8echny spole¢nosti
skupiny DEK

All companies in the
Group DEK

Ramcova smlouva o plj¢ce  Sjednani kratkodobé pdjcky

General agreement of the
intragroup borrowings

Borrowings within the
Group
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4. Vztahy mezi propojenymi 4. Relations between related
osobami (pokracovani) parties (continued)

Vzdjemné vynosy se spfiznénymi subjekty: Sales of goods and services and other revenues to
the related parties:

Spole¢nost Prodej vyrobkd Poskytnuté  Prodej majetku Prodej trznich ~ Finanéni vynosy Celkem
a zboZi sluzby tis. K& podild tis. K& tis. K&
tis. KE tis. K& tis. K&
Company Sales of Services Sale of Sale of business Financial Total
products and provided non-current shares income CZK'000
goods CZK'000 assets CZK’'000 CZK'000
CZK'000 CZK'000

DEKTRADE a.s. 0 233 304 26 834 0 150 000 410138
DEKWOOQOD s.r.o. 0 1980 0 0 0 1980
DEKMETAL s.r.0. 0 8212 0 0 0 8212
DEKSTONE s.r.0. 0 2690 0 0 0 2690
DEKPROJEKT s.r.o. 0 6 863 0 0 1700 8563
DEKTRADE SR s.r.0. 0 11 301 0 0 0 11 301
G SERVIS CZ, s.ro. 0 4950 0 0 13 500 18 450
Polydek a.s. 0 95 0 0 0 95
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4. \/ztahy mezi propojenymi
osobami (pokracovani)

Vzdjemné nakupy se spfiznénymi subjekty:

4. Relations between related

parties (continued)

Purchases costs and expenses from the related

parties:

Spolec¢nost Nakup vyrobkd, Prijaté sluzby Finan¢ni néklady Dividendy prijaté Celkem
zbozi a dl. majetku tis. K& tis. K& tis. K& tis. K&
tis. K&

Company Purchase of Services Financial costs Dividend received Total
products, goods CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
and non-current

assets
CZK'000

DEKTRADE a.s. 202 18 088 0 0 18 290

DEKWOOD s.r.0. 4 4 0 0 8

DEKMETAL s.ro. 0 0 0 0 0

DEKSTONE s.r.o. 2 0 0 0 2

DEKPROJEKT s.r.o. 0 670 0 0 670

DEKTRADE SR s.r.o. 0 1495 0 0 1495

G SERVIS CZ, s.ro. 0 3 0 0 3

Polydek a.s. 0 15 642 0 0 15 642
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Rozhodné obdobf

Tato zprdva je zpracovana za posledni icetni obdobi,
tj. za obdobi od 1. ledna 2009 do 31. prosince 2009.

Zaver

Tato zprava o vztazich mezi propojenymi osobami za
rok 2009 byla zpracovana statutarnim organem ovla-
dané osoby, spole¢nosti DEK a.s., na zékladé ddajd,
které byly ovlddané osobé o propojenych osobdch
v dobeé zpracovani zpravy dostupné & zname.

Zpréva o vztazich mezi propojenymi osobami bude
predloZena k ovéereni auditorovi, ktery bude provadét
kontrolu Ucetni zavérky ve smyslu zvliastniho zékona.
Vzhledem k tomu, Ze ovlddand osoba je povinna ze

zakona zpracovavat Vyroéni zpravu, bude tato zprava
k vyro¢ni zprave pfipojena jako jeji nedilna soucast.

V Praze, dne 10. kvétna 2010

Ing. Vit Kutnar

predseda predstavenstva
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Determination period

This report was prepared for the recent accounting
period, i.e. for the period from 1 January 2009 to
31 December 20009.

Conclusion

This Report On Relations between Related Parties for
the year 2009 was prepared by the statutory body
of the controlled entity, the company DEK a.s., on
the basis of information of related parties known and
available at the time of preparation of the report.

The Report On Relations between Related Parties will
be submitted to the auditor’s approval as required by
the Czech legislation.

With respect to the fact that the controlled entity is ob-
liged to prepare Annual report for the year ended 31
December 2009, this Report On Relations between

Related Parties is integral part of the Annual report.

Prague, on 10 May 2010

Ing. Vit Kutnar
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Osobnosti
odpovedné za
Vyrocni zpravu

a udalosti po datu
ucetni zaverky

Cestné prohlagent

Nize uvedené osoby odpovédné za pfipravu vyroc-
ni zpravy prohlasuji, Ze Udaje uvedené ve vyrocni
zprave odpovidaji skuteCnosti a zadné podstatné
okolnosti, které by mohly ovlivnit pfesné a spravné
posouzeni skupiny DEK, nebyly védomeé opomenu-
ty ani zkresleny.

Po datu Ucetni zavérky do data vydani vyroéni zpra-
vy nedoslo ve skupiné DEK ani spoleCnosti k zad-
nym podstatnym udalostem, ovliviiujicim posouzenf
majetkové a finanéni situace a vysledkd hospodare-
ni podnikatelské ¢innosti.

V Praze, dne 10. kvétna 2010

Ing. Vit Kutnar

predseda predstavenstva
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Persons
responsible for the
Annual Report anad
post-balance sheet
events

Affirmation

The persons stated below, responsible for the prepa-
ration of this Annual Report, hereby declare that the
information contained in this Annual Report is factual
and that no substantive matters that could influence
an accurate and correct evaluation of the Group DEK
have been knowingly omitted or distorted.

No material events have occurred between the
balance sheet date and the date of preparation of this
Annual Report that have had an impact on an assess-
ment of the Company's or Group's assets, liabilities
and equity or the results of its operations.

Prague, on 10 May 2010

-

£

Ing. Petré Kutnarova, MBA
financéni feditelka
Finance Director



Zaver

Zpracovani vyro¢ni zpravy ke dni 31. prosince 2009
bylo zajisténo statutarnim organem DEK a.s.
Zprdva byla zpracovdna podle nejlepsiho védomi
a znalosti zpracovatele, ¢erpanych z dostupnych
dokumentd a podkladd, a s vynaloZzenim maximal-
niho Usili.

Vyroéni zprava byla predloZena k prezkoumani do-
zor¢i rade, které své stanovisko pfednese na radné
valné hromadé spolec¢nosti.

Conclusion

The preparation of the Annual Report was ordered
by the statutory body of DEK a.s. as at 31 December
2009. The Annual Report was prepared to the best
of knowledge of the processor based on the under-
lying documentation available and with the maximum
effort.

The Annual Report was submitted for the revision of

the Supervisory Body, which statement on this report
will be reported at the annual general meeting.
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Kontakty

DEK a.s.
Tiskarska 10
108 00 Praha 10

IC: 27636801
DIC: CZ27636801

Spoleénost zapsana 18. 12. 2006 v obchodnim rejs-
tfiku, vedeném Méstskym soudem v Praze oddil B.,
vlozka 11400.

tel.. +420 234 054 286
fax: +420 234 054 279
e-mail: info@dek.cz
www.dek.cz
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DEK a.s.
Tiskarska 10
108 00 Praha 10
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The Company registered in the Commercial Regis-
ter at 18 December 2008 maintained by the Munici-
pal Court in Prague, Section B, Insert 11400.
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